
For requests for further information 
Contact: Nikki Bishop, Democratic Services Officer   
Tel: 01270 686462 
E-Mail: Nikki.bishop@cheshireeast.gov.uk  

 
Highways and Transport Committee 

 

Agenda 

Date: Thursday, 21st September, 2023 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: The Capesthorne Room - Town Hall, Macclesfield SK10 1EA 
 

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the top of each report. 
 
It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making meetings 
are audio recorded and the recordings will be uploaded to the Council’s website. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
 To note any apologies for absence from Members. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable 

pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda. 
 

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting  (Pages 3 - 10) 
 
 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting held on 20 July 

2023. 
 

4. Public Speaking/Open Session   
 
 In accordance with paragraph 2.24 of the Council’s Committee Procedure Rules and 

Appendix on Public Speaking, set out in the Constitution, a total period of 15 minutes 
is allocated for members of the public to put questions to the committee on any matter 
relating to this agenda. Each member of the public will be allowed up to two minutes 
each to speak, and the Chair will have discretion to vary this where they consider it 
appropriate. 
 
Members of the public wishing to speak are required to provide notice of this at least 
three clear working days’ in advance of the meeting. 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:Nikki.bishop@cheshireeast.gov.uk
https://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/your_council/constitution.aspx


 
 
 
 

5. Winter 2022/23 End of Season Review  (Pages 11 - 28) 
 
 To receive an update on the Highway’s Winter Service Operations during the 22/23 

winter season and the service for the winter of 23/24. 

 
6. Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Programme - Update  (Pages 29 - 36) 
 
 To receive a report which provides an update on Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (EVI) 

across the borough. 
 

7. Middlewich Eastern Bypass - Submission of a Full Business Case to the 
Department for Transport  (Pages 37 - 124) 

 
 To consider a report which seeks approval of a funding strategy for the Middlewich 

Eastern Bypass scheme and to submit a Full Business Case to the Department for 
Transport. 
 

8. Work Programme  (Pages 125 - 128) 
 
 To consider the Work Programme and determine any required amendments. 

 
THERE ARE NO PART 2 ITEMS 
 
 
Membership:  Councillors C Browne (Chair), L Braithwaite, R Chadwick, P Coan, 
A Coiley, L Crane (Vice-Chair), H Faddes, A Gage, C Hilliard, R Moreton, H Moss, J Priest 
and M Sewart 
 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Highways and Transport Committee 
held on Thursday, 20th July, 2023 in the The Capesthorne Room - Town Hall, 

Macclesfield SK10 1EA 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillor C Browne (Chair) 
Councillor L Crane (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors L Braithwaite, R Chadwick, A Coiley, H Faddes, A Gage, 
C Hilliard, R Moreton, J Snowball, H Moss and M Sewart 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
Tom Moody, Director of Highways and Infrastructure 
Richard Hibbert, Head of Strategic Transport and Parking  
Hayley Kirkham, HS2 Programme Director  
Paul Davies, Contract Operations Manager 
Dom Proud, Contract Director  
Steve Reading, Principal Accountant  
Adrian Leslie, Solicitor – Legal Services  
Genni Butler, Acting Public Rights of Way Manager  

  Nikki Bishop, Democratic Services Officer 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors John Priest 
(Councillor Judy Snowball was present as substitute) and Peter Coan.  
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 22 June 2023 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  
 

4 PUBLIC SPEAKING/OPEN SESSION  
 
Councillor Michael Unett, Alsager Town Councillor, addressed the 
Committee in relation to items 8 (Parking Review - MTFS Initiatives 2023-
24) and 10 (Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy). Councillor Unett 
welcomed the proposed Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy and 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



highlighted that Alsager had a number of points across the town that had 
been earmarked for electric charging installation for a number of years.  
 
Councillor Unett requested that, in relation to item 8 (Parking Review – 
MTFS Initiatives 2023-24), any proposals formed following public 
consultation were presented to the Highways and Transport Committee for 
consideration/approval prior to implementation.    
 

5 HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE: 2022/23 ANNUAL REVIEW  
 
The Committee considered the report which provided an update on 
performance across the Infrastructure and Highways Service during 2022-
23.  
 
Committee Members noted the large-scale highways network across the 
borough which included 2,162km of footways, 1,047 bridges and 
structures, over 40,000 streetlights and 5.8million m2 of grass verge. The 
Committee thanked officers across the service for their hard work and 
efforts throughout 2022-23.  
 
The Committee also thanked Hayley Kirkham, Paul Griffiths and their 
teams for their work in preparing the Council’s Petition against HS2 Phase 
2b and for the support they had provided to Town and Parish Councils in 
order to help them achieve their aspirations through the petitioning 
process. 
 
It was noted that there had been a decrease in the investment for category 
1 defects during 2022-23 compared to 2021-22 and that this was expected 
following the proactive approach in maintenance and Level 2 patching 
works undertaken. It was highlighted that an additional £19m of capital 
investment, over four years, had been identified for the highways network. 
Members queried how many extra kilometres of Level 2 works the 
additional capital investment had been able to fund during 2022-23.  
 
RESOLVED (unanimously):  
 
That the Highways and Transport Committee 
 

1. Note the performance of the Infrastructure and Highways Services 
during 2022/23.  
 

2. Note the on-going work of the Highways Service to support delivery 
of the Council’s Brighter Futures Customer Strategy.    

 
6 LEAD LOCAL FLOOD AUTHORITY: 2022/23 ANNUAL REVIEW  

 
The Committee considered the report which provided an update on activity 
in relation to the Council’s role as Lead Local Flood Authority during 2022-
23.  
 

Page 4



It was requested that consideration was given to funding for flood risk 
management and suggested that an accrual of monies for flood risk be 
identified outside of the highways and infrastructure budget which 
Members felt was already under significant pressure. It was confirmed that 
in response to flooding incidents there was a redistribution of funding 
across the service. The service received an income from fees for use of 
the highway and that any surplus would be put aside to form a small 
reserve for flooding to provide some flexibility to manage pressures and 
reduce the impact this had on pothole repair funding.  
 
Cllr Sewart referred to serious flooding incidents in Poynton in 2016 and 
2019 and thanked the team for the excellent work that they did following 
both incidents.  
 
RESOLVED (unanimously): 
 
The Highways and Transport Committee  

1. Note the update on activity in relation to the Council’s role as Lead 

Local Flood Authority undertaken in 2022/23. 

 

2. Agree that the Committee will monitor the activity of the Council in 

discharging its duties as Lead Local Flood Authority in 2023/24 and 

receive an annual report. 

 
7 STREET LIGHTING ENERGY SAVINGS: CONSULTATION 

PROPOSALS AND OPTIONS UPDATE  
 
The Committee considered the report which provided an update on 
progress against the MTFS revenue saving proposals PL23-27 (energy 
saving measures from streetlight). It was reported that the Council 
provided over 40,000 streetlights across the Borough and the proposals 
set out within the report sought to reduce energy consumption by reducing 
the number and timing of streetlighting either by turning streetlights off 
completely or in part, commencing Winter 2023.  
 
The Committee noted the difficult financial challenges facing the Council 
and that energy prices would continue to rise during 2023-24. It was 
confirmed that the Council’s price per unit of electricity would increase by 
11% to £0.294 per kWh adding a further £137,000 pressure to the existing 
street lighting energy budget in 2023-24. The Committee agreed that 
taking no action was not an option.  
 
The Committee were supportive of the flexibility of the Central 
Management System (CMS) and its ability to give control over the exact 
switch on/off times of individual streetlights and the ability to turn 
streetlights back on in high-risk areas or in the event of an emergency. 
The Committee requested that a review of any proposal subsequently 
implemented following Committee approval is brought back to the 
Committee to reflect on how this had worked over a 12-month period. 

Page 5



Members queried the costs of CMS implementation. Officers committed to 
keeping the Committee informed of the implementation costs, following a 
market feasibility study.  
 
Committee Members were supportive of streetlighting energy savings 
proposals being put out to public consultation in September/October 2023 
on the basis that the feedback from consultation informed the final 
proposals that would be considered by the Committee prior to any change 
being implemented. It was confirmed that consultation would also involve 
statutory partners including the Police.  
 
RESOLVED (unanimously): 
 
That the Highways and Transport Committee 
 

1. Note progress to date in relation to energy savings measures 
from streetlights. 
 

2. Agree a delegation of authority to the Director of Highways and 
Infrastructure, in consultation with the Chair of Highways and 
Transport Committee, to finalise the initiatives and take all 
steps to complete public consultation on the energy saving 
options as set out in Table 1 of the committee report. 
 

3. Note that the outcomes of consultation will be reported to 
Committee in January 2024 together with recommendations on 
an implementation plan.  

 
8 PARKING REVIEW - MTFS INITIATIVES 2023-24  

 
The Committee considered the report which provided an update on 
progress towards delivery of the Parking Review included in the adopted 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). The Committee noted that 
Cheshire East Council had not increased parking charges since 2018, 
where tariffs were increased by 10pence and that there was significant 
difference in the location of charged and free car parking across the 
Borough as a result of legacy arrangements inherited by the Council.  
 
There was agreement amongst most Committee Members that 
harmonisation of tariffs was needed to ensure a fairer system across 
Cheshire East. Committee Members were pleased to learn that there had 
been clear consideration given to mitigations where charges could be 
introduced to existing free car parks and that the proposed demand 
responsive pilot scheme could result in reduced charging at certain times 
of the day. The Committee requested that the feedback from public 
consultation was shared and that the final proposals due to be considered 
by the Committee in January 2024 reflect the feedback received during the 
consultation process. It was also requested that consideration was given 
to introducing a period of free parking across all towns.  
 

Page 6



It was noted that the costs of running the parking service were 
considerably higher compared to neighbouring authorities. It was 
requested that a detailed breakdown of the service running costs were 
provided to the Committee at a future meeting.  
 
RESOLVED (by majority): 
 
That the Highways and Transport Committee 
 

1. Note the scope of the parking initiatives and the contribution of 
these to delivering the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy, 
as adopted at council on 22 February 2023. 
 

2. Agree a delegation of authority to the Director of Highways and 
Infrastructure, in consultation with the Chair of Highways & 
Transport Committee, to finalise proposals relating to these 
initiatives and take all steps to complete public and statutory 
consultation. 

 
3. Agree that Committee receive further briefings on these proposals 

in advance of public consultation, in accordance with the 
Consultation and Engagement Plan (Appendix 1) and that the work 
programme be updated accordingly. 

 
4. Note that the outcomes of consultation will be reported to 

committee in January 2024, with recommendations on an 
implementation plan 

 
9 FLEXILINK DEMAND-RESPONSIVE TRANSPORT SERVICE  

 
The Committee considered the report which sought approval to launch 
public consultation on modernisation of the FlexiLink Demand Responsive 
Transport Service. It was noted that FlexiLink was a demand responsive 
bus service which operated across the borough and was funded by the 
Council as part of the supported bus network.  
 
The Committee welcomed the report and praised the service and officers 
involved. The Committee acknowledged that the existing service had 
grown to become vital to users, particularly those in rural communities. 
Members supported the proposal to launch a public consultation on a 
series of options to improve the service seeking views from existing 
service users, residents and stakeholders.  

It was requested that consideration be given to working with business 
improvement districts, town councils and business groups to create 
targeted and specific offerings to drive demand on specific days. It was 
agreed this would be considered as part of the consultation process.   
 
RESOLVED (unanimously): 
 

Page 7



That the Highways and Transport Committee 
 

1. Note the review of the Council’s FlexiLink bus service.  
 

2. Approve the proposal to launch a public consultation to seek the 
views of service users, residents and stakeholders. 

 
3. Approve the Consultation & Engagement Plan. 

 
4. Delegate approval of the consultation material for publication to the 

Director of Infrastructure and Highways who will make all 
necessary arrangements to undertake public consultation.  

 
.  
 

10 ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STRATEGY  
 

The Committee considered the report which provided an update on work to 
develop a robust evidence based and strategic approach to the provision 
of Electric Vehicle (EV) charging points across the Borough. The report 
sought approval of the Council’s updated EV Charging Strategy. 

Cllr Hilliard requested that consideration was given to the uptake of active 
travel and micro mobility across the borough and not just the uptake of 
electric cars and vans as this was important for driving forward town centre 
travel and vitality. Officers confirmed that there would be engagement with 
infrastructure providers to identify potential options.  

RESOLVED (unanimously):  

That the Highways and Transport Committee 

1. Approve the EV Strategy (Appendix 1) which will become part of 
the Council’s adopted transport policy framework. 

 
2. Approve development of a funding bid to the Local Electric 

Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) Fund in line with the EV Strategy 
and authorise the Director of Infrastructure and Highways to 
submit the bid, accept the funding grant when offered. 

 
3. Delegate authority to the Director of Infrastructure and 

Highways to spend the money when received and make all 
necessary arrangements to: 

a. Launch procurement activities for a strategic EV 
infrastructure investment and delivery partner/s for 
programmes such as the On-street Residential Charge 
points Scheme (ORCS) and the Local Electric Vehicle 
Infrastructure Fund (LEVI). 
 

b. Award contract/s to invest in, deliver, operate, and 
maintain publicly available charge points. 

Page 8



 
c. Call off the contract/s for future phases of charge point 

delivery. 
 

d. Implement the measures contained within the strategy 
through joint working with a range of partners. 

 
4. Note that Committee will receive reports as part of the forward 

work programme to provide updates on the delivery of these 
programmes. 

 
11 FINAL OUTTURN 2022-23  

 
The Committee received the report which provided an overview of the 
Cheshire East Council provisional outturn for the financial year 2022/23 
and the financial performance of the Council relevant to the Highways and 
Transport Committee remit. 
  
RESOLVED (unanimously):  
 
That the Highways and Transport Committee 
 

1) Note the report of the Corporate Policy Committee Consider the 
financial performance of the Council in the 2022/23 financial year 
relevant to their terms of reference. 
 

2) Note the delegated decisions relating to supplementary revenue 
estimates for specific grants coded directly to services in 
accordance with Financial Procedure Rules as detailed in Section 2 
of each Committee Appendix (Annex 2). 
 

3) Note the update on performance with regard to the MTFS 2023-27 
approved budget policy change items, in respect of Services within 
the remit of the Committee (Annex 3).  

 
12 PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23  

 
The Committee received the Public Rights of Way Sub Committee Annual 
Report 2022-23. The Committee noted the work for the Public Rights of 
Way Sub Committee as set out within the report. 
  
Members queried what training would be required for the Committee 
following the decision made at Full Council on 19 July 2023 to incorporate 
the functions of the Public Rights of Way Sub Committee into the 
Highways and Transport Committee. It was confirmed that Democratic 
Services would arrange training and communicate full details with 
Committee Members in the near future. 
 

Page 9



Members noted the hard work of the Public Rights of Way team in difficult 
circumstances in keeping the network maintained. 
 
RESOLVED (unanimously): 
 
That the Highways and Transport Committee 
 

1. Note the Public Rights of Way Sub Committee Annual Report 2022-
23.  

 
13 WORK PROGRAMME  

 
The Committee considered the Work Programme and noted that: 
 

1. Externally Funded Transport Schemes – Phase 1 had been 

added to the Work Programme for consideration in September 

2023. 

2. As a result of the resolution relating to item 8 (Parking Initiatives 

– MTFS Initiatives 2023-24) the item ‘Parking Review 

Consultation Plan’ scheduled for September 2023 Committee 

would no longer be required and would be removed from the 

Committee Work Programme.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Work Programme be noted. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 11.44 am 
 

Councillor C Browne (Chair) 
 

 
 
 

Page 10



    

 

 

 

             

        

 Highways and Transport Committee 

 21/09/2023 

 Winter 2022/23 End of Season Review 

 

Report of: Tom Moody, Director of Highways and Infrastructure 

Report Reference No: HTC/05/23-24 

Ward(s) Affected: All Wards 

 

Purpose of Report 

1 This report details the Council’s Highway’s Winter Service Operations 
during the 22/23 winter season and outlines the service for the winter of 
23/24. 

Executive Summary 

2 To accord with the Code of Practice “Well Managed Highway 
Infrastructure” (WMHI) and to comply with its duty as Highway Authority, 
it is important that the Council has an up to date Winter and Adverse 
Weather Policy, including a prioritised gritting network developed on 
clear, evidence-based criteria. 

3 The Council doesn’t possess sufficient funds to treat every road in the 
Borough. Overall, the Council manages the entire network with less 
funding than is required to deliver the highest service levels across all 
the various highway assets and services (ie carriageways/bridges/street 
lighting/gritting etc). As such the Council must implement a risk based 
approach to the allocation of its highway budgets in order to ensure the 
Council is addressing its legal responsibilities; thus the greatest 
consideration is given to the areas that receive winter maintenance and 
the type that is deployed. This ensures that as far as is practicable, risks 
are managed whilst prudently managing the available budgets. 

4 In October 2021 the Council implemented new winter gritting routes, 
following a lengthy process of development and consultation. 

OPEN 

Page 11 Agenda Item 5



  
  

 

 

The current winter service gritting routes can be found via the below link 
and are denoted via black and white lines. 
https://maps.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ce/webmapping?&e=378220.01&n=36
4472.00&layers=TN_S_Gritting2021_LINE_CURRENT&s=250000.00&
bm=oscolour  

5 This paper details conditions experienced over the winter of 2022/23, 
together with information gathered around the success and issues 
experienced during the season. 

6 For the 23/24 winter season, the only amendments that are proposed to 
the winter service routes are those which address changes to bus 
routes which are eligible for gritting. This may see a number of roads 
added or removed from the gritting routes as required. 

7 The paper also details a proposed process by which members can 
highlight any issues that may be addressed by introducing new criteria 
to the scoring matrix for the 24/25 season. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Highways and Transport Committee is recommended to:  

1. Note the findings of the 22-23 winter service paper. 

2. Note the proposed process for highlighting issues that may lead to new 

criteria for the scoring matrix. 

 

Background 

8 The current winter gritting routes were introduced in October 2021.  
These operated for the 2021/22 winter season.  Following the first 
annual review carried out in May and June 2022, a number of minor 
amendments were made to the routes. 

Treatments 

9 Table 1 below provides a summary of the precautionary treatments 
(gritting) undertaken during the 22/23 winter season which ran from 
01/10/2022 to 30/04/2023. 

10 The Council undertake precautionary treatments after carrying out 
detailed weather forecasting that considers factors such as air 
temperature, dew point, humidity, precipitation, cloud cover and road 
surface temperature. These factors determine the time of gritting, the 

Page 12

https://maps.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ce/webmapping?&e=378220.01&n=364472.00&layers=TN_S_Gritting2021_LINE_CURRENT&s=250000.00&bm=oscolour
https://maps.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ce/webmapping?&e=378220.01&n=364472.00&layers=TN_S_Gritting2021_LINE_CURRENT&s=250000.00&bm=oscolour
https://maps.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ce/webmapping?&e=378220.01&n=364472.00&layers=TN_S_Gritting2021_LINE_CURRENT&s=250000.00&bm=oscolour


  
  

 

 

salt spread rates and if any second runs are required if conditions 
deteriorate, or if rain or snow occurs for example. 

11 The weather doesn’t always behave as forecasted. Table 1 indicates in 
the last column the number of instances where the forecast temperature 
did not occur, even though all forecasting information pointed towards a 
gritting run being required. This situation is not desirable, due to the 
costs involved, but it can often be a very marginal call with the 
importance of road safety weighing heavily in the decision-making 
process. 

12 As can be seen in the summary of winter treatments table below, there 
have been at least 42 days on which road surface temperatures were 
forecast to fall below freezing and actually did, and hence gritting 
operations took place. This is broadly comparable to the 39 of the 21/22 
season. 

Domain 
No of 
routes 

No of treatments 
(gritting runs) 

No of 
treatments 

days 

Treatment 
days when 
frost/ice did 
not occur 

High East 
(Macc) 

2 107 78 2 

East 
(Macc) 

8 62 48 6 

South 
(Wardle) 

7 62 48 6 

 
 

    

 Table 1 – Treatment Summary  

Town and Parish Agreements 

13 In the 22/23 season the Council undertook a level of top up gritting for a 
number of Town and Parish Councils, under the agreements this will 
continue until 30/4/25. These agreements see roads treated that are 
considered locally important by the Town and Parish Councils. 

14 The Towns and Parish Councils who have entered into these 
agreements are: 

 Alderley Edge Parish Council 

 Bollington Town Council 

 Macclesfield Town Council 

 Wilmslow Town Council 

 

Page 13



  
  

 

 

Annual Operational Review 

15 As part of the annual review of the Council’s Adverse Weather Plan, at 
the end of each winter season an operational review of the winter 
service is undertaken in order to identify operational issues that have 
occurred through the winter season.  

16 This review includes assessment of the accuracy of forecasts, fleet 
performance, staffing issues, driver feedback regarding the practicality 
of operating the routes and other wider issues. 

17 This year’s review concluded: 

 That the forecast accuracy and level of service provided by the 

forecaster was good.   

 There were occasional issues with vehicle breakdowns and the 

lack of availability of some parts.  This resulted in front-line gritters 

being off the road for longer than expected.  It was therefore 

necessary to use the spare vehicles more than previous years, but 

all treatments were completed within the required time.  

 In previous years, shift arrangements and rotas varied across the 

two depots.  For the 2022/23 season, these were standardised, 

reducing the overall number of drivers needed and providing 

resilience as required. 

 There were a number of roads where occasional difficulties were 

encountered gritting due to parked vehicles. 

18 The roads that experienced issues with parked cars were: 

 Stanley Road, Knutsford 

 Bexton Road, Knutsford 

 King Street, Knutsford 

 High Street, Mow Cop 

 Brocklehurst Avenue, Macclesfield 

 Redway, Bollington 

19 These roads will continue to be on the treatment routes and as part of 
the Council’s highway winter communications plan, contact will be made 
with the residents on these streets requesting their co-operation.  It 
should be noted that due to the difficulties parked vehicles can cause, 
treatment may not always be possible; however every effort is made in 
these circumstances to deliver the service. 

20 This review forms part of a wider review which is undertaken annually to 
understand any issues that have occurred on the network or changes in 
the network that may require amendments to the treatment routes.  

Page 14



  
  

 

 

Service Requests and Correspondence 

21 A total of 582 service requests relating to winter service have been 
received from members of the public, town and parish councils, ward 
members and the police between 1st May 2022 and 31st April 2023. 
This correspondence has been received via the council’s website, email 
and phone calls to the contact centre. 

22 A broad analysis has been undertaken of the 582 service requests that 
have been received, 244 relate to grit bins (largely the replenishment of 
salt), 8 were from the police.  94 were from the general public and 
related to a few roads removed from the treated network. 

23 There are a small number of locations which have generated multiple 
enquiries. Comments regarding these roads are generally that as they 
are no longer gritted, they have become icy and dangerous, with some 
reports of road traffic collisions and vehicles leaving the road. These 
are: 

 Chelford Road, Prestbury 

 Scott Road, Prestbury 

 Childs Lane, Smallwood 

 Warmingham Lane, Middlewich 

 Bollin Grove, Prestbury 

 Bond Street, Macclesfield 

 Bradwell Road, Sandbach 

 Church Hill, Knutsford 

24 As a result of the issue at Church Hill, the council is exploring options 
with regards to the way Church Hill is used.  Until this is implemented 
the Council will apply temporary road closures when icy conditions are 
forecast. 

Incidents 

25 Information regarding Incidents on the network has been gathered from 
a number from a number of sources: 

 Police Stats 19 Data 

 Contact with the Police 

 Fire Service incident responses 

 Anecdotal evidence from newspapers and contact centre reports. 

26 Stats 19 Data is police data on road accidents and is a standardised 
national format.  The Stats 19 Data records injury and fatal accidents 
only. The Council receive regular updates on this data. An analysis of 

Page 15



  
  

 

 

the official Stats 19 Data shows that between 01/10/2022 and 
30/04/2023 25 injury collisions occurred on the highway network  where 
road conditions were described as frost, snow or ice in the Stats 19 
reports, further details can be found in Appendix 1. The 25 Stats 19 
accidents  occurred on both the treated and untreated network, 3 of 
these are recorded to have occurred on a road that were removed from 
the treated network , these occurred on: 

 8/12/22 - Love Lane, Betchton 

 16/12/22 - The Hollow, Odd Rode 

 8/12/22 – Coronation Road Congleton 

27 Of the 25 injury accidents where the road conditions were described as 
frost, snow or ice, there was one which was a fatality.  This occurred in 
Heron Crescent, Crewe. Heron Crescent doesn’t form part of the 
treated network and never has done. 

28 Cheshire Fire and Rescue have responded that they don’t hold any 
records of the road conditions when they respond to incidents; however, 
an analysis of their incident responses  shows that they did not attend to 
any incidents on roads removed from the treated network when icing 
conditions may have occurred.  

29 The Council received 26 reports of incidents on the network over the 
22/23 season; of the 26, 9 related to roads removed from the winter 
treatment network.  Further details can be found in Appendix 2 

30 Appendix 3 of this report details accident correlation data across the 
21/22 season and the 22/23 season. This combines Police, Fire, Stats 
19 and anecdotal Stats 19 Data to detail emerging patterns. 

31 As a result of emerging issues in the 21/22 season Coole Lane was 
reinstated and VMS signage were place on Warmingham Lane and 
Groby Road with A boards placed on Long Lane Wettenhall and Childs 
Lane Smallwood.  

32 This year anecdotal evidence suggests issues have occurred on 
Warmingham Lane and as such it is proposed to place further road 
signage on this route warning that the road is untreated. 

33 After analysing the winter season of 22/23 it is only proposed to amend 
the gritting routes to accommodate changes to bus routes which are 
eligible for gritting. This may see a number of roads added or removed 
from the gritting routes as required.   

 

 

Page 16



  
  

 

 

Future Developments 

34 The Council is keen to further develop its winter service and over the 
next twelve months will be investigating the feasibility of route-based 
forecasting which will give much more accurate forecasts for each 
gritting route. This will mean timelier treatments of specific routes and 
reduced wastage giving financial and environmental benefits.  In 
addition, the service is exploring gaining network wide traffic data to 
help inform the winter service network and wider network management 
activities moving forwards.   

35 A high level analysis has been undertaken regarding the amendment of 
the threshold which sees roads included for treatment in the winter 
service routes. Currently roads have to Score 1 (100) to be included in 
the winter service routes.  The below table summarises the details of 
should consideration be given to reducing the threshold in future years. 

  

Threshold  
Estimated 

Additional KM Cost 

(0.75)75 32.5 £130,000 

(0.5)50 55 £170,000 

Treatment to all primary 
schools 35.5 £142,000 

Table 2 – Additional Treatment Costs 

36 It should be noted that the above is indicative and may see roads never 
previously treated included in the winter service routes together with 
roads that cannot be physically treated. Under previous arrangements 
the Council didn’t treat to all primary schools. 

37 When considering amendments in future years it should be noted that 
the provision of additional treatment would likely have to be funded 
through the reduction of other key revenue activities such a drainage 
works and grass cutting etc. 

  

Page 17



  
  

 

 

Consultation and Engagement 

38 Ahead of the 24/25 winter season it is proposed to undertake an 
engagement exercise where members can identify criteria that should 
be considered for inclusion in the risk assessment. Members who wish 
to participate will be asked to engage with the service in the spring of 
2024.  

Winter Communication Plan 

39 A Winter Service Communication Plan is currently being developed in 
readiness for the 2023/24 season. This will help to familiarise road 
users with the winter treatment network and will include the following; 

 Highways Newsletter edition in October to include an article 

specifically on winter maintenance and links to guidance 

documents. 

 Social media posts in advance of and during the winter season 

providing guidance to drivers. 

 Update webpage to make this succinct and specific to the current 

gritting routes. 

 Regular updates via Gov Delivery on treatments during the winter 

season and any forthcoming periods of inclement weather. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

40 The Code of Practice WMHI recommends that ‘All aspects of the Winter 
Service Plan, including service delivery arrangements, should be 
reviewed annually in consultation with key stakeholders to take account 
of changing circumstances.’ As such the Council has undertaken an 
end of season review to evaluate any changes that are required for the 
23/24 season. An annual operational review will be undertaken at the 
end of each winter season. 

Other Options Considered 

41 The Council could choose not to undertake an end of season review; 
however, this would not align with the principles of Well Managed 
Highway Infrastructure and the Council’s adopted Winter Gritting Policy. 

42 It is not considered that there are any other options other than those set 
out within this report. 

 

Option Impact Risk 

Not to have 

undertaken the end 

of season review  

Lower quality less 

informed service 

Service doesn’t 

comply with WMHI 

Page 18



  
  

 

 

Implications and Comments 

Monitoring Officer/Legal 

43 The statutory basis for winter service in England and Wales is Section 
41 of the Highways Act 1980 (as amended). Section 41(1) states:  

“(1) The authority who are for the time being the highway authority for a 

highway maintainable at the public expense are under a duty to 

maintain the highway. 

(1) (A) In particular, a highway authority is under a duty to ensure, so far 

as is reasonably practicable, that safe passage along a highway is not 

endangered by snow or ice.” 

44 This duty is not absolute given its qualification of “reasonably 
practicable”. What is “reasonably practicable” has not been defined in 
statute. “Reasonably practicable", as traditionally interpreted, is a 
narrower term than "physically possible" and implies that a computation 
must be made in which the quantum of risk is placed in one scale and 
the sacrifice, whether in money, time or trouble, involved in the measure 
necessary to avert the risk is placed in the other; and that, if it be shown 
that there is a gross disproportion between them, the risk being 
insignificant in relation to the sacrifice, the person upon whom the duty 
is laid discharges the burden of proving that compliance was not 
reasonably practicable. Caselaw has also determined that Local 
Authorities should not take an overly restrictive approach to this test, 
especially during extreme and unforeseen weather events. In addition, 
the Traffic Management Act 2004 placed a network management duty 
on all local traffic authorities in England. It requires Authorities to do all 
that is reasonably practicable to manage the network effectively to keep 
traffic moving. In meeting the duty, Authorities should establish 
contingency plans for dealing promptly and effectively with unplanned 
events, such as unforeseen weather conditions, as far as is reasonably 
practicable. 

45 The Winter and Adverse Weather Policy along with the Adverse 
Weather Plan and Winter Risk Assessment Methodology and Scoring 
Matrix determine which roads will form the Winter Treated Network. The 
Council are under a general duty to keep these documents under 
review. In accordance with the Winter and Adverse Weather Policy 
“consideration will be given to addressing winter conditions on areas of 
the public highway which are not included on the treated network”. 

46 The Winter and Adverse Weather Policy also states “…the Council will 
work in partnership with the Town and Parish Councils, and supply 

Page 19



  
  

 

 

chain partners to arrange for snow clearance work on local roads and in 
town centre areas”.  

47 Section 150 of the Highways Act 1980 puts a separate duty on the 
highway authority to clear snow from the highway, but only if it is 
causing an obstruction. 
 

Section 151 Officer/Finance 

48 Of the circa £10.562m annual highway revenue budget, the department 
makes provision to spend circa £1.838m on winter maintenance, this 
equates to around 17% of the highway revenue budget.  Amongst other 
activities, the highway revenue budget is typically spent on pothole 
repair, grass cutting, gully emptying and road marking renewals.  Any 
increase in winter service costs through increasing the network size or 
extended period of winter weather that haven’t been budgeted for, have 
to be managed within the existing highways revenue budgets by 
reducing activities in other areas. 

49 For the 23/24 winter season, the increase cost or reduction of costs of 
adding/reducing additional milage to the winter treatment routes, as a 
result of bus route changes will be managed through existing highways 
revenue budgets by adjusting the amount of work undertaken in other 
highway revenue areas. As with most activities that the highway 
department undertakes, winter service utilises staff, plant, materials and 
fuel and as such this area of the service is exposed to inflationary 
pressure. Any inflationary pressure experienced in the department and 
within this particular activity will have to be considered and activities 
prioritised to try and remain within existing budgets. 

Policy 

50 The recommendations in this report align with industry guidance and 
see the Winter and Adverse Weather Policy and Plan kept up to date. 

An open and enabling 
organisation  

Ensure that there is 
transparency in all aspects 
of council decision making 

Support a sustainable 
financial future for the 
council, through service 
development, improvement 
and transformation 

A council which 
empowers and cares 
about people 

Work together with 
residents and partners 
to support people and 
communities to be 
strong and resilient 

A thriving and 
sustainable place  

Reduce impact on 
the environment 

A transport network 
that is safe and 
promotes active 
travel 

 

Page 20



  
  

 

 

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 

51 This report sets out the results of an annual review of the winter gritting 
routes, a process which aligns with the recommendations of Well 
Managed Highway Infrastructure and as such the Winter & Adverse 
Weather Policy 2020 approved by Cabinet (report of 04/02/2020(105)). 
There are no changes to the adopted policy itself and as such the 
associated Equality Impact Assessment undertaken at the time of 
approval remains valid. 

Human Resources 

52 There are no human resource implications of the paper. 

Risk Management 

53 The recommendations of this paper help the council to address its 
statutory duties under the Highways Act 1980 and also follow the best 
practice identified by the industry guidance document Well Managed 
Highway Infrastructure (2016). 

Rural Communities 

54 There are no rural communities impacts of this paper. 

Children and Young People including Cared for Children, care leavers and 
Children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) 

55 There are no Children and Young People/Cared for Children 
implications of this report. 

Public Health 

56 There are public health implications of this report. 

Climate Change 

57 The delivery of winter service activities has an impact on the Councils 
Carbon footprint.  The potential implementation of route based 
forecasting in the future may see this reduce. 

  

Page 21



  
  

 

 

Access to Information 

Contact Officer: Matthew Davenhill, Contract Asset Manager 

Matthew.davenhill@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

01260 371026 

Appendices: Appendix 1 - Stats 19 Accidents with road conditions of 
Ice/frost/snow 

Appendix 2 - Contact Centre Reports on Treatment 
Days 

Appendix 3 – Accident Correlation Summary on 
Treatment Days 

Background 
Papers: 

N/A 

  

Page 22

mailto:Matthew.davenhill@cheshireeast.gov.uk


  
  

 

 

Appendix 1 

 

OPEN  

 

Appendix 1 - Stats 19 Accidents with road conditions of Ice/frost/snow 

 

Road on the Treated Network 

 06/12/2022 - A49 Whitchurch Road 

17/01/2023 – A49 Whitchurch Road 

19/01/2023 – A49 Whitchurch Road 

10/12/2022 - A556 Chester Road, Plumley 

20/1/2023 - Sandbach Road South, Alsager 

19/1/2023 – Salters Lane Lower Withington 

9/12/2022 – Wilmslow Road Alderley Edge 

9/3/2023 - Church Street, Mow Cop 

12/12/2022 - Bonis Hall Lane Prestbury 

14/12/2022 – Westminster Road Macclesfield 

16/12/2022 - Rainow Road, Macclesfield 

6/12/2022 - Shrigley Road South 

17/12/2022 – Macclesfield Road, Kettleshulme 

 

Roads on the untreated Network 

 

7/12/2022 - Clive Way Middlewich 

21/1/2023 – Heron Crescent Crewe 

15/12/22 - Tatton Street 

Page 23



  
  

 

 

8/12/2022 - B5081 Middlewich Road 

11/12/2022- Bagmere Lane/Brereton Heath Lane, Brereton Heath 

19/1/2023 – Davey Lane Alderley Edge 

8/12/2022 – Wilmslow Park South Wilmslow 

9/3/2023 – Higher Lane Bollington 

 

Roads Removed from the Treated Network 

8/12/2022 - Love Lane, Betchton 

16/12/2022 The Hollow, Odd Rode 

18/1/2023 – Coronation Road 

  

Page 24



  
  

 

 

Appendix 2 

 

OPEN  

 

Appendix 2 - Contact Centre Reports on Treatment Days 

 

Reports of Issues on Roads, other than those previously removed 

Roads Included on Treatment Routes  

9/12/2022 – accident Tabley Hill Lane, Tabley   

 13/12/2022 – accident on motorway bridge, Swineyard Lane, Tabley  

 16/01/2023 – report of several accidents, Castle Hill, Prestbury 

 19/01/2023 – multiple accidents, Buxton New Road, Wildboarclough  

 19/01/2023 – accident, Coole Lane, Newhall    

 19/01/2023 – report of several accidents, Wrexham Road, Bulkeley  

 

Reports of issues on Roads Not Treated 

9/12/2022 – accident Swineyard Lane, Tabley 

17/12/2022 – accident, Dean Way, Bollington   

17/12/2022 – accident, Hazelhurst Drive, Bollington   

18/01/2023 – report of several accidents, South Park Drive, Poynton   

18/01/2023 – report of several accidents, Redshank Drive, Macclesfield 

18/01/2023 – accident, Bollin Grove, Prestbury 

19/01/2023 – report of 2 accidents, Alsager Road, Hassall 

19/01/2023 – report of 2 accidents, Holehouse Lane, Adlington   

19/01/2023 – reports of several accidents, Anglesey Drive, Poynton 

19/01/2023 – accident, Wards Lane, Bradwall 

Page 25



  
  

 

 

14/02/2023 – accident, Church Hill, Knutsford 

 

Reports of Issues on Roads Removed 

9/12/2022 – several reports of accidents on Scott Road, Prestbury  

12/12/2022 – reports of several accidents, Chantry Road, Disley 

12/12/2022 – report of several accidents, Long Lane, Spurstow  

18/01/2023 – report of multiple accidents, Pinewood Road, Wilmslow  

18/01/2023 – reports of accidents, Chelford Road, Prestbury 

18/01/2023– report of accident, Scott Road, Prestbury  

18/01/2023 – report of several accidents, Moss Lane, Alderley Edge  

19/01/2023 – report of 3 accidents, Warmingham Lane, Middlewich 

23/01/2023 – reports of accidents, Manor Park South, Knutsford

Page 26



    

 

 

Appendix 3 

 

Appendix 3 – Accident Correlation Summary on Treatment Days 

Notes: 1+ indicates where the contact specified accidents but didn’t give an exact figure. Police, Fire, Public and stats 19 

indicates the source of the report.  

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



    

 

 

 

             

 

BRIEFING REPORT   

 Highways and Transport Committee 

 21 September 2023 

EV Infrastructure Programme – Update 

 

Report of: Tom Moody, Director of Infrastructure and Highways 

Report Reference No: HTC/14/23-24 

Ward(s) Affected: All Wards 

 

Purpose of Report 

1 This report provides an update to the Committee regarding Electric 
Vehicle Infrastructure (EVI) in the borough, particularly regarding the 
use of funding secured from the Office for Zero Emission Vehicles 
(OZEV). This funding will lead to the delivery of additional EV 
chargepoints across the borough. 

2 The report contributes to the following priority outcomes identified in the 
Corporate Plan: 

(a) GREEN –through its proposals to improve EV charging provision 
across the Borough, the Council will encourage earlier adoption 
of electric vehicles, which will positively contribute to our 
response to the climate emergency and to reducing local air 
quality problems in urban areas. 

(b) FAIR – the proposals are intended to create greater consistency 
and availability of EV chargepoints, removing some of the long-
standing barriers to the use of electric vehicles within the 
Borough. 

3 This report summarises progress against measures set in the Cheshire 
East Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy, approved by the Highways 
and Transport Committee on 20 July 2023. 

OPEN 

Page 29 Agenda Item 6



  
  

 

 

Executive Summary 

4 The Council has already invested to provide several electric vehicle 
chargepoints through several actions.  Past demonstration projects 
have provided a small number of legacy sites for public chargepoints.  
More recently, programmes to install EV chargepoints at council offices, 
depots and leisure centres have increased scope for public access to 
EV charging. However, there remain significant gaps in the provision 
across Cheshire East; notably, a lack of public chargepoints in 
Macclesfield town centre, Congleton, Poynton and many rural areas. 

5 Under the On Street Residential Chargepoint Scheme (ORCS), OZEV 
awarded the Council £151,100 towards investment in chargepoints 
across the Borough. Match-funding (circa £50k) to be provided by the 
contracted chargepoint operator (CPO). This funding will provide 28 
chargepoints across 15 locations. Recent discussions with OZEV have 
indicated that this funding will be extended to enable completion of the 
programme. 

6 The Council has also received an indicative Local Electric Vehicle 
Infrastructure (LEVI) funding allocation of £2.172 million.  This will need 
to be supplemented by substantial private sector funding under the 
terms of the grant. It is expected that this funding will be provided by the 
appointed CPO, following a competitive tendering process. To secure 
this funding allocation, the Council must submit a business case and 
complete a process of technical approvals. 

7 Further funding is provided through the LEVI capability fund. The 
allocation to the Council is £389,000, made available to increase officer 
resources for EVI delivery including recruitment / redeployment of staff. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Highways and Transport Committee is recommended to: 
 

1. Note the update provided in this report. 
 

2. Note that the Director of Infrastructure and Highways will take actions 
to increase staff resources to support EVI expansion, utilising the 
LEVI Capability Fund grant received by Cheshire East Council. 

 
3. Agree that the Director of Infrastructure and Highways, in consultation 

with the Chair of Highways and Transport Committee, finalise and 
submit a business case to Government to secure the Council’s LEVI 
Fund grant. 

 

Page 30



  
  

 

 

Background 

8 The Council has already invested to provide several electric vehicle 
chargepoints, however there are significant gaps in the current provision 
across Cheshire East. Notably, there is a lack of public chargepoints in 
Macclesfield town centre, Congleton, Poynton and many rural areas. 

9 Cheshire East Council was awarded £151,100 from the ORCS fund 
towards £205,000 of EV chargepoints in August 2022. The balance of 
funding (circa £50,000) is to come from the private sector. The intended 
programme consists of 13 car parks and 2 on-street locations, 
delivering in total 28 chargepoints. The programme is expected to be 
completed in 2024. 

10 The Council has also been allocated an indicative £2.172m of Local 
Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) funding. This funding must be 
supplemented by private investment from CPOs. To draw down this 
funding, a Business Case and contract documents are to be agreed 
with OZEV, with a Business Case to be submitted during November 
2023. 

11 Alongside the capital funding for LEVI, Cheshire East Council has been 
allocated a total of £389,000 from a Capability Fund. This funding is 
available on the expectation that it will be used to increase officer 
resources for EVI delivery, for example through recruitment, internal 
transfers, or extension to the remit of existing staff.  

12 To provide advice to local authorities, OZEV has appointed a Support 
Body which advises OZEV on the assessment of local authority 
submissions. Engagement with local authorities is almost exclusively via 
the Support Body, as shown in the diagram below. 

 

Page 31



  
  

 

 

Briefing Information 

13 Key activities relating to the delivery of chargepoints to date are: 

 ORCS tender process November to December 2022. 

o No supplier appointed because no compliant tender was 

received, and costs were too high. 

 Engagement with the Support Body to develop a way forward for 

delivery that might combine ORCS and LEVI. 

 Formal early market engagement with the CPOs to develop the 

attractiveness of future tender opportunities. Key lessons were: 

o Review/extend the contract term. 

o Comments on the technical specification, including positive 

feedback about emerging LEVI guidance. 

 Engagement with departments across the Council to revise the 

technical details of our specification for ORCS and align it with some 

of the LEVI guidance. 

14 More recently, discussions with OZEV and the Support Body aimed to 
agree an approach to deliver ORCS and LEVI in Cheshire East.  These 
meetings had two objectives: 

(a) To ensure ORCS chargepoints are delivered. 

(b) To proceed in a way that did not compromise future LEVI funding. 

15 Consequently, OZEV confirmed that they intend to extend the ORCS 
funding term beyond FY23/24, recognising the challenges that the 
Council has faced during procurement. This will ensure that the 
infrastructure delivered by ORCS delivers the best possible value for 
residents of Cheshire East and for Government, whilst minimising risk to 
the Council. This means that delivery of ORCS is not at risk because of 
funding timescales. 

16 OZEVs preference is for procurement and delivery of ORCS and LEVI 
programmes to be separated. The key reasons are: 

 The terms of ORCS and LEVI grants are different. ORCS funding 

must be spent in accordance with the funding submission and be 

able to demonstrate this to the National Audit Office. 

 Completing ORCS procurement and delivery separately is an 

opportunity to learn lessons on a relatively small procurement 

exercise in advance of the much higher value LEVI procurement.  

Page 32



  
  

 

 

17 The revised timescale for ORCS procurement is set out in Table 1. This 
work will involve several officer teams including highways, legal and 
procurement specialists. 

Table 1: ORCS and LEVI Delivery Next Steps 

Approximate 
timescale 

Task 

September  Finalise ORCS tender documents and specification and launch 
procurement. 

 Prepare job description and person specification for the EVI 
officer role(s) recruitment. 

October  Launch ORCS procurement late September / early October 

September 
to November  

 Prepare the LEVI Business Case that is needed to formally 
secure the indicative allocation of £2.172m and submit in 
November.  

 

Implications 

Monitoring Officer/Legal 

18 All activities summarised above fall under the resolutions of the 
Highways and Transport Committee on 20 July 2023 Item 10.  

19 All decision makers need to ensure that they are not only empowered 
under the Constitution to make a decision but that they are also 
authorised under the Financial Procedure rules to incur the financial 
consequence of every decision that they make. 

20 Under the Financial Procedure Rules chapter 3 part 4 section 4 of the 

Constitution dated July 2023 at paragraph 6.23 Directors may make 

applications for grants, where the application does not create a 

commitment, financial or otherwise, in consultation with the Chief 

Finance Officer, and, if grant funding is in excess of £1m then the 

Corporate Leadership Team must be consulted in advance. 

 

20 Successful grant applications require a supplementary estimate to incur 
spending, in line with the approval limits set out in the Constitution 
(Chapter 3 Part 3). Receipt of grant funding over £1m requires Council 
approval. Delegation of acceptance of the funding to the Chief 
Executive will facilitate timely dissemination of grant funding to meet 
need. When utilising any grant funding the Council must ensure that it 
complies with any grant funding terms and conditions 

 

 

Page 33



  
  

 

 

Section 151 Officer/Finance 

22 For existing officers, the staff resources for the delivery of this Cheshire 
East Electric Vehicles Charging Strategy and subsequent procurement 
will be funded from the established annual budget for the Strategic 
Transport & Parking Service. 

23 Delivery of EV charging infrastructure within the ORCS and LEVI 
programmes is expected to be funded from a range of sources 
including: 

 private sector investment; 

 external Government grant funding; and 

 potential for a small allocation from LTP (Local Transport Plan) 

Integrated Transport Block funding. 

24 If the Council is successful in its bid for the £2,172,000 of Local Electric 
Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) funding, a supplementary capital estimate 
will be required to approve the new scheme/funding within the Council’s 
capital programme. 

25 The operation and maintenance of chargepoints will be funded by the 
private sector under a concession contract. 

26 Recruitment of new staff is provided for through the LEVI Capability 
Fund. It is intended that the contracts for ORCS and LEVI will 
incorporate a concession fee that covers the cost to the Council of EVI, 
such as gritting and officer time. These costs will be apportioned on a 
pro rata basis across chargepoints across the borough. As such the 
revenue accrued through this process will increase over time and is 
unlikely to cover all officer costs in the first years of the contracts. The 
LEVI Capability Fund will cover these costs for three years and will 
therefore not impact on current budgets or the MTFS. 

Policy 

27 The Cheshire East Electric Vehicles Charging Strategy has been 
undertaken to ensure there is a consistent policy fit with all relevant 
adopted and emerging local policies including: the Environment 
Strategy, Local Transport Plan, Local Transport Development Plans, 
Corporate Plan 2021 – 2025; regeneration masterplans for Crewe and 
Macclesfield; Town Vitality Plans; and the Car Parking Strategy. 
Chargepoint delivery to achieve the objectives of the Electric Vehicle 
Charging Strategy is therefore consistent with the wider policy of the 
Council. 

Page 34



  
  

 

 

An open and enabling 
organisation  

Chargepoint delivery 
will: 

 Support a sustainable 
financial future for the 
Council, through 
service development, 
improvement and 
transformation. 

A council which 
empowers and cares 
about people 

Chargepoint delivery 
will support the priority 
to: 

 Work together with our 
residents and partners 
to support people and 
communities to be 
strong and resilient. 

A thriving and 
sustainable place  

Chargepoint delivery 
will support the 
priorities: 

 A great place for 
people to live, work 
and visit. 

 Welcoming, safe and 
clean neighbourhoods. 

 To reduce the impact 
on our environment. 

 Thriving urban and 
rural economies with 
opportunities for all. 

 To be carbon neutral 
by 2025. 

 

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 

28 This update relates to activities to deliver the Cheshire East Electric 
Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy, which was approved alongside its 
Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) on 20 July 2023. No update to that 
EqIA is required currently. 

Human Resources 

29 LEVI Capability Funding will provide for the recruitment of additional 
staff and training of both existing and additional staff. 

30 It is recommended to delegate authority to the Director of Infrastructure 
and Highways to appoint EVI staff under the LEVI Capability Fund 
comprising up to 2 FTE (Full Time Equivalent) appointments.  

Risk Management 

31 Delivery of chargepoints funded by ORCS and LEVI are reported on in 
the EVI Project Board chaired by the Head of Strategic Transport & 
Parking Service. A project risk register is maintained detailing mitigation 
measures. 

Rural Communities 

32 As part of the strategy, public car parks operated by the Council in 
principal towns, key service centres and local services centres have 
been considered. These locations are anticipated to act as hubs for 
surrounding areas. Additionally, the strategy includes a specific 
measure for delivering chargepoints in rural locations. Delivery of 

Page 35



  
  

 

 

chargepoints through LEVI will seek to support the strategy in this way 
where this can be achieved in a viable way. 

Children and Young People including Cared for Children, care leavers and 
Children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) 

33 No direct implications for children and young people have been 
identified. 

Public Health 

34 Chargepoint delivery falls under the EV Charging Strategy, which has 
been aligned with the Council’s stated policies and action plans relating 
to air quality management. This considers the impact of transport on 
issues affecting public health, most notably air quality and the 
contribution that electric vehicles can make to reducing tailpipe air 
pollutants. 

Climate Change 

35 EV chargepoint delivery will accelerate the transition from petrol and 
diesel Internal Combustion Engines, both for private vehicles and fleet 
(including Council) vehicles used by residents throughout the Borough.  
Therefore, these EV chargepoint programmes are an important element 
of the Council strategy for decarbonisation as a response to climate 
change. 

 

Access to Information 

Contact Officer: Richard Hibbert   

Head of Strategic Transport & Parking Service 

richard.hibbert@cheshireeast.gov.uk  

Appendices: None 

 

Background 
Papers: 

Cheshire East Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy, 
approved by the Highways and Transport Committee 
on 20 July 2023. 

 

Page 36

mailto:richard.hibbert@cheshireeast.gov.uk


    

 

 

 

 

       

 Highways and Transport Committee 

 21 September 2023 

 Middlewich Eastern Bypass – Submission of a Full Business 

Case to the Department for Transport 

 

Report of: Tom Moody, Director of Highways and Transport  

Report Reference No: - HTC/44/22-23 

Ward(s) Affected: Middlewich and Brereton Wards  

 

Purpose of Report 

1 The report seeks approval of a funding strategy for the scheme in 
accordance with an updated budget estimate and to submit a Full 
Business Case (“FBC”) to the Department for Transport (“DfT”) to 
secure grant funding of £46.80 million towards the cost of the scheme. 

2 The report notes that once the DfT grant funding is in place, the contract 
to construct the scheme can be entered into with the Councils 
appointed Contractor, Balfour Beatty, via a Notice to Proceed issued in 
accordance with the Council’s existing two stage Delivery Agreement 
with Balfour Beatty under the Scape Framework contract. 

3 The report outlines how the scheme will contribute towards the 
Council’s Corporate Plan by providing a transport network that is safe 
and promotes active travel. 

Executive Summary 

4 The Council has set out a clear vision and strategy of sustainable 
economic growth in the adopted Local Plan Strategy. A key element of 
this strategy is a significant investment programme in transport to 
support housing and jobs in the Borough. 

5 The Middlewich Eastern Bypass scheme will improve the highway 
network in Middlewich by relieving congestion and road safety concerns 

Page 37 Agenda Item 7



  
  

 

 

in Middlewich town centre, improving journey times on the wider 
highway network and will enable the full development of Strategic 
Location LPS 44 (Midpoint 18) in the adopted Local Plan Strategy. The 
Scheme will support economic growth, employment and housing 
delivery in the town and the surrounding area. 

6 The scheme comprises a 10m wide single carriageway road, extending 
from a new roundabout off Pochin Way to the north, to a new 
roundabout junction at its southern end where it joins the A533 Booth 
Lane. Booth Lane will be realigned to connect with the scheme. The 
scheme includes new bridges over the Trent and Mersey Canal and the 
Sandbach to Northwich Railway Line. It will create approximately 2.7km 
of new roads with street lighting and dual use footways and cycleways 
with safe crossing facilities. As part of the scheme, it will be necessary 
to alter private means of access to some properties. 

7 The current programme is for the main works to start in spring 2024, 
with an estimated 34-month construction period. 

8 The estimated total cost of the scheme is £95.74 million, (This includes 
expenditure of £1.2 million on development of the Outline Business 
Case, which predates the current scheme, which was funded by a DfT 
grant.) 

9 The previous scheme costs estimate from February 2023 was for £92.5 
million and this value is included in the Council’s current Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS). The increase is due to recent volatile market 
conditions resulting in exceptional levels of inflation in the construction 
sector which has affected the prices of the work packages from the 
supply chain. 

10 An appropriate allowance for further inflation and project risk is included 
in the scheme estimate. 

11 HS2 have also now provided an undertaking to contribute a 
proportionate amount towards the scheme costs, as the new bypass will 
help in accommodating HS2 Phase 2b traffic when that scheme is being 
constructed. This contribution will be approximately £1.73m which is 
over half of the current £3.24m funding gap.  

12 This report recommends that the additional £3.24 million required to 
fund and forward fund the scheme is made available from the Council’s 
existing “Strategic Capital Projects” budget in the MTFS and that when 
HS2 pay their contribution, that the budget is reimbursed.  

13 So if the recommendation is accepted, the Council would effectively be 
forward funding this HS2 contribution (at risk) from within the additional 

Page 38



  
  

 

 

£3.24m that this report recommends providing. This would be in a 
similar way to other developer contributions. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Highways and Transport Committee is recommended to:  

1. Approve the Draft Full Business Case for the Middlewich Eastern Bypass, 
annexed to the report. 
 

2. Authorise the Executive Director – Place in consultation with the Committee 
Chair to make minor modifications to the Draft Full Business case prior to 
submission of the Full Business Case to the Department for Transport (DfT). 
 

3. Approve the submission of the Full Business Case for the Middlewich Eastern 
Bypass (Appendix 1) to the DfT seeking a grant contribution of £46.80 million 
towards the total scheme cost. 

 
4. Subject to approval of the Full Business Case by the DfT, approve the release 

of the Department for Transport grant funding to the value of £46.80 million for 
a contribution towards the delivery of the scheme. 

 
5. Note that the total estimated scheme cost has increased from £92.50 million to 

£95.74 million. 
 

6. Recommend that a virement for £3.24 million is considered by the Director for 
Finance and Customer Services in consultation with the Chair of the Highways 
and Transport Committee and the Chair of the Finance Sub-Committee, from 
the Strategic Capital Projects programme, increasing the Council contribution 
to £24.81 million towards the scheme.  
 

7. Approve the forward funding and underwriting at risk of the agreed contribution 
to the scheme from HS2 in accordance with Assurance C6.22 the Phase 2b 
(Crewe - Manchester) Draft Register of Undertakings and Assurances v1.4 
 

8. When the HS2 contribution is paid, approve the reimbursement of the Strategic 
Capital Programme budget with that contribution. 
 

9. Approve the ongoing forward funding of expenditure on the scheme, including 
all costs of entering into the construction contract, in advance of Section 106 
(S106) developer contributions, and note that this presents financial risks as 
outlined in the financial implications of the report. 

 
10. Note the authorisation already given by Cabinet on 15 January 2019 to 

delegate to the Executive Director – Place in consultation with the Finance and 
Communications Portfolio Holder, exercise powers to undertake all the 

Page 39



  
  

 

 

necessary and prudent preparatory site clearance and general construction 
works in advance of Stage 2 Construction phase before funding approval from 
DfT.  

 
11. Note the authorisation given by Cabinet on 15 January 2019 to delegate to the 

Executive Director – Place in consultation with the Finance and 
Communications Portfolio enter into a two stage Delivery Agreement with the 
Contractor for the delivery of the MEB via the Scape Framework. 

 

Background 

14 The Middlewich Eastern Bypass scheme involves the construction of 
2.7km of single carriageway road to follow an approximate north-south 
alignment to the east of Middlewich, providing a new route between the 
A54 Holmes Chapel Road and the A533 Booth Lane to the south of the 
town. It is located within Cheshire East borough, apart from a small area 
of the northern section which is in Cheshire West & Chester (CWAC) 
borough. A scheme plan can be found attached in Appendix 2. 

15 The scheme sits on the eastern edge of the Middlewich Settlement 
Zone and will provide traffic routes which will avoid Middlewich town 
centre, relieving congestion and significantly contributing to the delivery 
of objectives within the Local Plan Strategy; supporting the economic 
growth targets of Middlewich and the sub-region, which aim for up to 
1,950 new dwellings and c.6,500 additional jobs in the town. Policy PG7 
of the Local Plan states that Middlewich is expected to accommodate 
development of 70 ha of employment land and the bypass is required to 
release a substantial proportion of this land. 

16 Paragraph 15.510 of the Local Plan Strategy (LPS) states that the 
bypass is: ‘a key piece of infrastructure vital to the future prosperity of 
Middlewich, Cheshire East and the wider region’. 

17 Within the Local Plan Strategy, the scheme is linked specifically to the 
Midpoint 18 Business Park (LPS 44, also branded as “Magnitude”), 
providing suitable means of access to significant currently inaccessible 
areas of the allocated site. The scheme is also referred to in Table 3.1 
of the Site Allocations and Development Policies Document (SADPD), 
which contains the breakdown of LPS and other sites expected to 
contribute to the recovery of forward funded infrastructure schemes, as 
mentioned in Policy GEN 4 of the SADPD. 

18 The scheme will help mitigate the effects of development of the Local 
Plan sites: LPS 42 – Glebe Farm, Middlewich; LPS 43 - Brooks Lane, 
Middlewich; LPS 44 - Midpoint 18, Middlewich; LPS 45 - Land off 
Warmingham Lane West (Phase II), should they all come forward, and 

Page 40

https://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/planning/local-plan/local-plan-strategy-web-version-1.pdf
https://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/planning/spatial-planning/cheshire_east_local_plan/site-allocations-and-policies/sadpd-examination/documents/examination-library/adopted-sadpd.pdf


  
  

 

 

as highlighted in Table 3.1 of the SADPD and as mentioned in Policy 
GEN 4 of that document. 

19 The Council has developed a detailed design and obtained full planning 
permission for the scheme from Cheshire East and CWAC Councils (as 
a small section at the north end of the scheme lies within the 
administrative area of CWAC). 

20 The scheme has been the subject of extensive reporting to Cabinet and 
Committee through its lifecycle which has covered the financial risks to 
the Council in detail from the requirement for the Council to forward 
fund the scheme. 

21 The Council is the Local Highway Authority responsible for maintaining 
the public highway in the Borough and it will therefore maintain the 
scheme where it lies within the Borough of Cheshire West & Chester via 
an agreement under Section 8 of the Highways Act 1980.  

22 Much of the land required for the scheme is under the control of four 
principal landowners and the Council has already entered into 
conditional framework agreements with these landowners prior to 
acquiring their interests on a private treaty basis subject to approval of 
the Full Business Case (FBC) and grant of final funding by the DfT. 

23 The Highways and Transport Committee at its meeting on 9 December 
2022, authorised the making of a Compulsory Purchase Order, Side 
Roads Order and Bridge scheme for the delivery of the Middlewich 
Eastern Bypass scheme, the Committee were made aware of financial 
cost and implications to the Council of the scheme, including the 
requirement to forward fund the scheme at risk until the approval of the 
FBC by the DfT. 

24 Orders for the scheme were made on 12 January 2022. A public inquiry 
into the Orders was held by the Secretary of State for Transport from 8 
to 11 November 2022 and the Orders were confirmed with minor 
modifications by the Secretary of State on 6 June 2023.The scheme 
has a confirmed Side Roads Order (“SRO”) as works are required to 
realign the existing public highways and make changes to private 
means of access. 

25 To meet the programme for the scheme, the Council will need to submit 
the FBC to DfT for approval in September 2023 (as recommended in 
this report) and undertake further work prior to approval of the FBC and 
release of the DfT grant funding from the Large Local Majors 
Programme as follows: 

• Negotiations will continue with affected landowners to secure the 
land required for the scheme by agreement. The Council has 

Page 41



  
  

 

 

confirmed Compulsory Purchase Orders and will proceed with the 
implementation of the CPO and the use of statutory powers of 
acquisition, should the negotiations fail.  

• Carry out advance works and general construction works in the 
Stage 1 preconstruction phase in advance of Stage 2 
construction phase.  

• Advance works are required to be completed in sufficient time to 
ensure environmental and ecological mitigations, utilities and 
service diversions and general site works are sufficiently 
progressed to enable the main works to commence on 
programme.  

• The Council’s appointed contractor Balfour Beatty will enter into 
discussions with their supply chain prior to the issue of a Notice to 
Proceed to Stage 2 construction phase, to ensure best value and 
timely commencement of the main works. 

26 The two-stage Delivery Agreement with Balfour Beatty has been 
structured to allow these works that are critical to programme 
efficiencies to commence in the preconstruction phase in advance of 
the final funding contribution from the DfT. 

27 Engagement of the contractor in the preconstruction phase has allowed 
a programme to be refined so as to proceed with delivery of the scheme 
in early 2024, with an estimated 34-month construction period with the 
road opening in May 2026 and full completion during Spring 2027. 

28 The anticipated key programme dates for delivery of the scheme are set 
out in Table 1 below, though this is subject to change, particularly where 
dependent on timescales for approval of the FBC as advised by the 
DfT. 

Table 1: Programme Key Dates (estimated) 

Activity Programme Date 

Submit FBC to the DfT September 2023 

Approval of FBC / Receive DfT 
Funding  

December 2023 

Receive Contractor Offer for 
Stage 2 works (Target Cost) 

January 2024 

Page 42



  
  

 

 

Instruction to Proceed (Notice to 
Proceed) to Stage 2 construction 

February 2024 

Implementation (GVD and/or NtT) January 2024 – April 2024 

Site Clearance and Advance 
works start  

January 2024 

Access Date – All of the site for 
main works 

April 2024 

scheme in Use May 2026 

Planned Completion November 2026 

Completion Date February 2027 

 

Scheme Costs 

29 The total scheme cost estimate figure includes all sunk costs to date in 
developing the scheme, the estimated costs to purchase the land, an 
allowance for compensation costs (known as Part 1 Claims), the 
contract costs for construction, future professional fees, utility diversions 
and allowances for future risks. A breakdown of the scheme cost is 
contained in Table 2 below 

Table 2: Total Estimated scheme Costs 

Project Stage Estimated 
Cost £M 

CONSTRUCTION  

Stage 1 Preconstruction 4.99 

Stage 2 Construction 49.46 

Combined Stage 1 and Stage 2 54.45 

DEVELOPMENT  

Development Cost [Design, stats, fees, 
compensation, inflation] 

18.23 

Land and Property 19.20 

Page 43



  
  

 

 

Project Risk 3.86 

Total Development Cost 41.29 

TOTAL PROJECT COST 95.74 

 

30 Scheme costs incurred to date amount to £20.40 million – of which 
approximately £8.0 million is for the land acquisition. The remaining 
£12.4 million is for development and design work, ground investigation 
and early enabling works including service diversions and 
environmental and ecology work.  

31 The Council’s overall expenditure on the scheme is expected to be 
£95.74 million, which exceed the current funding outlined in the MTFS 
by £3.24 million. 

Scheme Funding 

32 The scheme costs will be funded from a combination of funds from the 
DfT’s Large Local Majors Programme grant funding (£48.06 million), 
together with a Local Contribution of £47.68 million.  

33 The Local Contribution towards the cost of the scheme will be met from 
a combination of external (mainly S106 developer contributions) and a 
capital contribution from the Council. 

34 The Local Contribution currently consists of £22.87 million from S106 
developer contributions (of which £12.19 million has already been 
agreed with the developers) plus £24.81 million from the council’s own 
funds.  

35 The scheme funding strategy seeks to maximise the level of 
contribution towards the scheme from developers of Location Plan 
Strategy (LPS) allocations that directly benefit from the scheme. 

36 Following previous decisions, anticipated S106 developer contributions 
are being forward funded (at risk) by the council until the monies have 
been received. 

37 The Council’s 2023-27 Medium-Term Financial Strategy, reported to 
Council in February 2023, shows funding for £92.5 million from the 
Council’s approved Capital Programme, meaning there is a £3.24 
million funding gap, now recommended to be met by an increased Local 
Contribution (as the DfT grant is fixed), which will be made up of 
combination of the new HS2 contribution of £1.73m (forward funded by 
the Council) plus the Council’s own funds. 

Page 44



  
  

 

 

38 This report recommends that the local contribution is adjusted upwards 
in the MTFS by £3.24 million to meet the funding gap, by using funds 
from the Strategic Capital Projects budget, which will be used to forward 
fund the HS2 contribution until HS2 make that payment. 

Department for Transport Grant 

39 The scheme secured entry into the DfT Large Local Majors (LLM) 
Programme by demonstrating a compelling case in the Outline 
Business Case for funding.  

40 There is high confidence that the DfT will approve the Full Business 
Case (FBC) when submitted and will confirm its funding commitment to 
the scheme. Subject to the agreement of the recommendations in this 
report, the FBC submission to the DfT will be in September 2023. 

Consultation and Engagement 

41 The scheme has been subject to extensive local consultation at the 
Planning Stage and demonstrated high levels of local support. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

42 Before the construction contract can be awarded, the scheme FBC 
must be approved by the DfT (thus releasing the £46.80 million DfT 
grant) at a point when the target cost for the construction contract is 
agreed and all of the land needed has been acquired. 

43 A requirement of gaining programme entry into the DfT’s Programme 
was that the Council would accept all of the cost inflation risks for these 
schemes. The total DfT contribution for the scheme is therefore fixed at 
£48.06 million, of which £1.26 million has already been received for 
development of the Outline Business Case. 

44 Representations have been made to the DfT for a relaxation to this, to 
recognise the current unprecedented market conditions, but they have 
not agreed to take any of the inflation risk. 

45 The developers’ contribution part of the funding package is a key risk. 
However, to submit the FBC for the scheme, the Council must be able 
to demonstrate that it has the means to deliver the scheme; hence the 
requirement to underwrite any funding shortfall.  

46 The submission of a FBC to the DfT for approval and release of final 
grant funding of £46.80 million towards the scheme enables the Council 
to proceed with the development and delivery of the scheme.  

Page 45



  
  

 

 

47 The Council’s appointed contractor Balfour Beatty has now engaged 
with its supply chain to provide an updated scheme cost for Stage 2 
construction phase target cost contract.  

48 The scheme was competitively tendered under arrangements set out in 
the delivery agreement between the Council and Balfour Beatty and 
was in accordance with the Councils Contract Procedure Rules.  

49 Current volatile market conditions are causing significant increases in 
the construction cost estimates. In particular, the unprecedented rises in 
material, plant and labour prices have had a significant impact. The 
recent exceptional level of inflation has also affected the value of the 
land required for the scheme, thus affecting the total project cost.  

50 The public Inquiry, along with a longer period than anticipated for a 
Secretary of State for Transport decision to confirm the Orders has 
resulted in a delay to the programmed start of main construction works 
which resulted in increase in the overall estimated scheme cost, due to 
inflation. 

51 A significant amount of expenditure is forecast for after the construction 
has ended for expenses relating to the land acquisition and any 
property compensation payable, so factors such as long-term 
assumptions on land and property prices over a lengthy period have 
been factored into the overall cost estimate.  

52 The cost forecasts also contain a significant allowance for risk, which 
may or may not be realised, but the forecasts presented contain the 
appropriate allowance at this stage of project development. 

53 The Stage 1 and Stage 2 contract values shown Table 1 are subject to 
change if more of the main works are moved into Stage 1 to take place 
in advance of Stage 2 construction. This may be necessary to avoid 
delay to the start of main construction works. Therefore, the figures of 
Stage 2 construction costs may be different at the target cost stage prior 
to entering into contract with Balfour Beatty. However, the overall 
estimated scheme costs should remain the same. 

54 The total anticipated S106 developer contributions for the scheme is 
£22.87 million, of which the Council has received £1.4 million to date. 
Further details on S106 contributions are explained in the Financial 
Implications section.  

55 Utility service diversions are required in advance of the scheme. These 
works can only be carried out by the utility companies, who have 
extended lead times and are often a primary reason for programme 
delays and cost overruns. Therefore, in certain key locations, early 

Page 46



  
  

 

 

delivery of service diversion works is important to reduce the risk of 
disruption to Stage 2 construction works. 

56 Early works are also required to be undertaken by the Contractor in 
Stage 1 preconstruction phase, in advance of any funding decision by 
the DfT. These works are necessary to ensure a prompt start to the 
main Stage 2 construction phase and that an efficient construction 
programme can be maintained. Without these advance works, seasonal 
ecological constraints could add up to 8 months to the construction 
programme.  

57 The two-stage delivery agreement with the contractor has been 
structured in such a way as to allow work to take place in the Stage 1 
preconstruction phase with main works in Stage 2 construction phase 
proceeding only on the issue of a Notice to Proceed instruction following 
an unconditional offer of funding from the DfT. The advance work is 
carried out in advance of the DfT funding decision and so carries a 
financial risk to the council. 

58 If there is a delay in approval of the FBC and final funding offer from the 
DfT, it may prove necessary to gain access to third party land for time-
critical ecology mitigation works. In such a case, it may be necessary to 
exercise the Council’s CPO powers in advance of a final funding 
decision, if access cannot be negotiated by an agreement. 

Other Options Considered 

 

Option Impact Risk 

Fund the 

scheme entirely 

through Local 

Contribution (ie 

do not await a 

decision on the 

Full Business 

Case) 

If the Council were to 

proceed without DfT funding 

of £48.06m, then it would 

need to find this money from 

within its own resources. 

As the MTFS Capital 
programme is fully utilised, 
meaning an extra £48.06m 
is unaffordable without a 
significant reprofiling or 
cancellation of existing 
schemes within the capital 
programme.  

Cancel the 
scheme 

The MEB is a Local Plan led 
scheme which will deliver 
the main strategic 
employment allocation and 
housing growth as well as 
transport benefits. 1,950 
new dwellings and 6,500 
additional jobs are directly or 
indirectly linked to the 

Cancellation of the 
scheme at this stage could 
cause reputational 
damage with funders. 

It could also affect the 
credibility of any future 
Council funding bids.  

Page 47



  
  

 

 

delivery of the scheme 
These benefits will be lost.  
The expenditure to date on 
the scheme of approximately 
£20m million would need to 
be met by the Council’s 
Revenue budget. 

Stop all current 
work on the 
scheme whilst 
awaiting a DfT 
decision on the 
business case. 
 

There would be a delay to 
the programme and a 
consequent increase in 
estimated scheme cost due 
to inflation 

If the current trial 
embankment works are 
stopped, this will prevent 
the collation of data to 
record the settlement 
period, which forms a key 
part of the earthworks 
programme in the 
construction stage. 
Unknown settlement 
period will prolong the 
construction programme 
by approximately 3-5 
months and increase the 
scheme costs. 
 
Stopping utility diversion 
works will increase the risk 
of disrupting critical 
activities in the 
construction stage due to 
their long lead in times 
resulting in programme 
delays and additional costs 
to the scheme. 
 
Stopping vegetation 
clearance works and early 
ecological works in early 
2024 will delay the 
construction programme 
by approximately 5 months 
until the end of bird nesting 
season in September 
2024, resulting in 
prolongation and additional 
inflation costs to the 
scheme. 

Page 48



  
  

 

 

Implications and Comments 

Monitoring Officer/Legal 

59 The Council should only use its compulsory purchase powers where it is 
expedient to do so and to justify the interference with the human rights 
of those with an interest in the land affected, the Council should use all 
its endeavours to acquire any land required through negotiation and by 
private treaty. 

60 Recommendations 10 and 11 refer the use of a Cabinet delegation to 
officers in consultation with the Finance and Communications Portfolio 
Holder. Following the introduction of the Committee system and the 
decision of the Council at its meeting on 19 April 2021, the Transitional 
Arrangements will apply with the decision being delegated to officers 
with the Chair of the relevant committee being consulted.  

61 Any decision the Council takes should be transparent, appropriate 
proportionate and should comply with the Wednesbury reasonableness 
tests, a failure to comply with this could result in the decision being 
Judicially reviewed. 

62 The Council will need to ensure that it spends any grant funding in 
accordance with any specific grant conditions. 

Section 151 Officer/Finance 

63 The estimated project outturn cost of the scheme is £95.74 million 
including prior year’s spending to develop the scheme. A breakdown of 
the scheme cost is contained in Table 2 (paragraph 29) 

64 The additional budget required for the scheme will have to be vired from 
within the existing capital programme as there is no scope within the 
Capital Financing Budget that funds the prudential borrowing for the 
Council to increase the overall programme. 

65 Any funds received from HS2 to fund the Middlewich Eastern Bypass 
(MEB) will be used to replenish the capital allocation the budget will be 
vired from and will not be used to increase the MEB budget further.  

66 The scheme maximises reliance on local funding sources, referred to as 
the Local Contribution, from third-party developer sources. 

67 Third party contributions are estimated based upon current or 
committed S106 developer agreements (or equivalent). Over time the 
proportion of third-party funding is likely to change in response to 
development activity in the local area. For this reason, the local funding 
contribution has been shown as a combination of both Council and 

Page 49



  
  

 

 

third-party funding. Any change in either element will have a direct 
impact on the funding obligation arising from the other source. 

68 In September 2017 it was agreed that the Council will continue to seek 
alternative funding sources from developer contributions, which could 
be used to recoup its contribution whilst ensuring a maximum local 
contribution. This approach is retained, ensuring that any call on 
Councils’ resources is minimised. 

69 In the scenario where a FBC is submitted but grant funding is not 
approved by the DfT and the scheme cannot progress, the Council will 
be exposed to a risk of funding all of the costs associated with 
development and preconstruction works (in the order of £20.40 million) 
to that point of scheme development. This costs also includes the 
purchase of land or assets acquired by negotiation in advance of the 
submission of the FBC and securing DfT Large Local Majors (LLM) 
grant funding to the value of £46.06 million. Any such land acquired 
would have a realisable value. Based on the current scheme estimates 
and forecasts, this is a maximum estimated financial exposure of 
approximately £ 20.40 million, less £1.26 million secured from the DfT 
for OBC development (less land acquisition costs) which would need to 
be funded from revenue. 

70 The Council has taken all necessary professional advice to assess the 
delivery costs of the scheme. The scheme estimate includes a robust 
allowance for project risk. 

71 The Council’s predicted overall expenditure on the scheme is as shown 
in Table 2 at para. 29 and includes expended costs incurred in scheme 
development and preconstruction to date.  

72 The scheme is also referred to in Table 3.1 - Breakdown of LPS and 
other sites expected to contribute to the recovery of forward funded 
infrastructure schemes in the SADPD, and as mentioned in Policy GEN 
4 of that document. 

73 Viability work and working with the developers has established a 
financial model for Local Contribution from applications based on the 
anticipated total development floorspace coming forward. This levy will 
cover employment, residential and mixed uses. 

74 The Council has resolved to underwrite and forward fund all developer 
contributions until such time as S106 contributions become payable.  

75 Compensation (and land) costs form an element of the total cost of the 
scheme. These are expected to be resolved over a period of up to 7 
years after the opening of the road. Developer funding income will also 
come on-line over this period as S106 agreements are realised. 

Page 50



  
  

 

 

76 Table 3 below shows how the scheme will be fully funded with the 
required additional virement in place. 

Table 3: Funding Arrangements 

Funding Funding 
Contribution £M 

Department for Transport (DfT) Grant:  

Outline Business Case (OBC) Stage – 
Funding Received 

1.26 

Full Business Case (FBC) Stage – Confirmed 
Order 

46.80 

Local Contribution:  

Cheshire East Council (CEC) - Local 
Contribution 

21.57 

Developer S106 Contribution 22.87 

Original Funding Value 92.50 

Additional Cheshire East Council (CEC) - 
Local Contribution  
(of which £1.73m is anticipated to come from 
HS2) 

3.24 

Revised Funding Value 95.74 

 

Policy 

77 In implementing the consented scheme and Orders, the Council must 
have regard to national policy, the development plan and other relevant 
local policy and guidance. The relevant national planning policy is 
contained in the National Planning Policy Framework and the relevant 
Development Plan. The Development Plan is the Cheshire East Local 
Plan Strategy (“the Local Plan”). There is strong alignment between the 
priorities that have been defined at the local and sub-regional level, and 
those that underpin the Government’s transport policy at a national 
level. This includes the need to build a strong and competitive economy, 
enhance connectivity and access to employment opportunities. 

78 The need for the scheme is clearly established in the adopted Local 
Plan and SADPD, identifying from the outset the need to improve 

Page 51



  
  

 

 

transport connections to deliver the Local Plan. There is also 
acknowledgement of the key contribution that infrastructure schemes 
play in supporting employment and the need to develop the 
infrastructure to ensure the sustainability of Midpoint 18. The scheme 
development and appraisal are consistent with another of the 
Government’s core objectives: to provide value for money in the 
provision of major transport infrastructure. 

79 SADPD Policy GEN 4 - Recovery of forward-funded infrastructure costs, 
states that sites which rely on infrastructure to mitigate the effects of 
their development, and make it acceptable in planning terms, should 
contribute to their provision and refers to Table 3.1 - Breakdown of LPS 
and other sites expected to contribute to the recovery of forward funded 
infrastructure schemes (of the SADPD), which specifically mentions the 
sites are expected to contribute to the scheme. 

80 By providing connectivity to new and existing areas of Middlewich and 
additional highway capacity to relieve existing congestion and cater for 
additional traffic from development, the scheme would support the Local 
Plan Strategy. The scheme is thus considered to be in line with local 
policy and essential for the delivery of the future economic growth plans 
of Cheshire East Council. 

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 

81 All public sector acquiring authorities are bound by the Public Sector 
Equality Duty as set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. This 
means that they must have ‘due regard’ or think about the need to: 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who don’t 

• foster or encourage good relations between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who don’t 

82 Having ‘due regard’ means public authorities must consciously consider 
or think about the need to do the three things set out in the public sector 
equality duty. 

83 In implementing the consented scheme and Order (e.g. powers of entry 
and powers to make side road orders) acquiring authorities must have 
regard to the effect of any differential impacts on groups with protected 
characteristics.  

84 To date, equality implications have been considered in the options 
appraisal and are incorporated into the Outline Business Case. An 

Page 52



  
  

 

 

Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) was prepared to accompany the 
planning application for the scheme and was considered in determining 
to grant planning permission. The EqIA will continue to be considered 
and, where appropriate, reviewed during the life of the scheme. 

85 Turning to the exercise of compulsory purchase powers, it should be 
noted that a significant area of land close to, though not within, the CPO 
boundary is owned and occupied by members of the Gypsy & Traveller 
communities. In implementing this scheme and exercising the powers 
necessary for delivery, it is not considered that any group with protected 
characteristics are adversely affected when it comes to the application 
of the Public Sector Equality Duty. 

86 Having said this, in progressing the Orders and carrying out any further 
consultations, the Council will consider the needs of persons with 
protected characteristics and the requirements of the Public Sector 
Equality Duty. 

Human Resources 

87 It shall be necessary to ensure that sufficient resource is allocated in 
Estates, Highways, Legal and Planning Services to support delivery of 
the scheme. If additional temporary resources are required these will be 
met from the project budget. 

Risk Management 

88 A risk register has been developed through the lifecycle of scheme 
development.  

89 The Council will be required to accept all responsibility for cost 
increases beyond the cost envelope provided within the Full Business 
Case when it is approved for funding by the Department for Transport.  

90 Until the point at which the Department for Transport make their final 
investment decision based on the Full Business Case, any Council 
funding of scheme development is at risk. 

91 Risk management issues are unchanged from previous Cabinet / 
Committee reports. A risk register has been produced in the preceding 
stages of the project development and this will be reviewed and 
updated through the current stage of works. Capital cost risks are 
informed by a comprehensive qualitative risk assessment. 

92 A major risk for any highway scheme is land assembly and any 
substantive delay to this is likely to adversely impact on the project 
programme and the start of the construction programme. 

Page 53



  
  

 

 

93 The financial estimate for the scheme has ensured there is included a 
budget for costs associated with any early acquisitions, including 
payment of professional fees incurred by affected landowners, required 
to meet the programme for starting construction. Where possible the 
Council has entered into early option agreements to acquire land to 
mitigate the costs associated with the early acquisitions. 

94 Robust governance arrangements for the scheme have been operating 
within the strategic infrastructure project management framework and a 
risk register is in place, which include monitoring an effective control of 
identified risks and issues. 

95 An independent Gateway Review by Local Partnerships of the project 
and its management arrangements recently concluded and gave the 
following (currently draft) assessment of Delivery Confidence: 

Delivery Confidence Assessment Amber 

The Review Team finds that there is strong support and a robust case has been 

made for the new Bypass that has the ability to unlock new homes.  

The Review team finds that there is strong support for project from Council 

Members and senior stakeholders. The project aligns well with regional 

strategic priorities as well as the Council’s regional strategic priorities. Excellent 

progress has been made.  However, several important issues and tasks need to 

be completed. 

We found there has been good communications with the local community and 

senior stakeholders evidenced by the approach to public consultation and the 

fact that there is strong political and senior stakeholder support for the project. 

We have given this project an Amber DCA as successful delivery appears 

feasible but significant issues already exist requiring management attention. 

Management is well aware of the issues and they should be resolvable. 

96 The assumed funding from S106 agreements is not all secured so there 
remains a funding risk. Mitigation of this risk is under way via close 
working with the planning team and negotiations with developers to 
ensure that sufficient contributions will be secured. There is also a risk 
of contributions not coming forward even though they have been signed 
in S106 planning obligations. The securing of S106 contributions is a 
decision of the local planning authority, and these projections are 
subject to the decision of the local planning authority when it considers 
the relevant planning applications. Based upon the award letter 
received from the Department for Transport in November 2017, the 
Council has exposed to all scheme costs beyond the £46.80 million 
Large Local Major Programme capital grant. 

Page 54



  
  

 

 

97 Paragraph 69 outlines the Council's financial exposure in the scenario 
where the scheme is developed to Full Business Case submission, but 
grant funding is not approved by the Department for Transport and the 
scheme cannot therefore progress to construction. 

98 Statutory Orders for the scheme have been made and these have been 
considered by the Secretary of State for Transport at Inquiry. The SoS 
has confirmed the scheme and Orders and the Council was notified of 
the decision on 8 June 2023. 

99 Significant utility infrastructure crosses the scheme, such as Scottish 
Power Energy Networks 33kV overhead lines. A utility C4 cost estimate, 
including risk, is included in the overall scheme Cost Estimate. 

100 The Council will be required to forward fund the whole of the local 
contribution and to underwrite third party contributions expected through 
S106 agreements, as developer contributions may take many years to 
collect. The Council’s aim is to maximize the level of funding from 
contributing Local Plan Sites from S106 developer contributions. The 
current estimate of funding from S106 agreements is as stated in Table 
3 at paragraph 76 based on developments that could be released by the 
scheme as set out in the Local Plan Strategy. The funding strategy for 
the scheme is to maximise the value of S106 developer contributions in 
the Local Contribution however, there is no guarantee that these 
developments will come forward or even if they do, that all predicted 
funding will be collected. 

Rural Communities 

101 As the scheme is to be primarily constructed within the boundaries of 
Local Plan housing allocations, it will not introduce any new severance 
of existing farms or communities that would not occur in any event once 
the allocations are brought forward for development. There are limited 
requirements for land outside of the allocations and negotiations are 
well advanced with conditional framework contracts in place with most 
major landowners in respect to securing the affected land parcels on a 
voluntary negotiated basis. 

102 The scheme would directly affect four Public Rights of Way (PRoW), 
one Regional Cycle Route and one Long Distance Path, as well as the 
wider road network resulting in a short- term disruption for non-
motorised users (NMUs). The adverse effects on NMUs would be 
reduced with mitigation and once the scheme is operational, the overall 
effect of the scheme on NMUs would be insignificant / beneficial 
because of the additional footway and cycleways included in the 
scheme design. 

Page 55



  
  

 

 

103 There may be some impact during the construction phase on the local 
road network as new roundabouts are constructed on Pochin Way and 
Cledford Lane and carriageway tie in works are carried out on Booth 
Lane (A533). The scheme will be constructed ‘offline’ as much as 
possible to maintain connectivity during construction. 

104 The scheme planning applications provide a comprehensive 
Environmental Assessment which considers the effect on the rural 
community. This assessment will include impacts such as noise, air 
quality, visual impact plus the scheme’s effects of Public Rights of Way 
and non-motorised users i.e., pedestrians, cyclists and equestrians. 

Children and Young People including Cared for Children, care leavers and 
Children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) 

105 The Scape Delivery Agreement entered in to by the Council and Balfour 
Beatty included a comprehensive framework to capture local Social and 
Community Value throughout the project. Opportunities to engage with 
local schools and colleges will arise as the scheme progresses for 
education and training purposes. The means by which young people 
can be encouraged to participate in the consultation process will be 
considered as part of the Consultation and Engagement Plan. 

Public Health 

106 The public health implications of the scheme were considered during 
planning through preparation of an Environmental Assessment to 
accompany the planning application. Cheshire East Council’s 
Environmental Health team were consulted and raised no objections in 
relation to Noise, Air Quality and Contaminated Land subject to 
conditions. 

107 The scheme will have environmental and public health benefits through 
reducing traffic congestion, improving travel times and journey reliability, 
and encouraging multi modal forms of transport such as cycling and 
walking. 

108 The reduction in the number of killed and seriously injured following 
road traffic collisions on the public highway in Cheshire East is a key 
aim of the Council and external stakeholders. 

109 As a result of the scheme, traffic flows on key corridors along the A54 
through Middlewich are predicted to fall in the opening year by c.30%. 

110 The scheme would result in significant benefit to the air quality 
experienced in the centre of Middlewich, especially in the Air Quality 
Management Areas. The scheme would also provide a benefit in terms 

Page 56



  
  

 

 

of road safety, noise levels in the centre of Middlewich, especially 
associated with the Noise Important Areas.  

111 Much of the scheme is constructed away from public roads and other 
areas of public access. However, where the scheme connects to 
existing roads or footpaths, temporary traffic management will be in 
place to keep road users and non-motorised users safe. 

112 Construction works will be undertaken in accordance with industry best 
practice for control of noise and vibration, including British Standard BS 
5228 Code of practice for noise and vibration control on construction 
and open sites. 

Climate Change 

113 The scheme has been subject to a comprehensive Environmental 
Appraisal as part of the statutory planning process. This has 
demonstrated the wider environmental and ecological impact of the 
bypass and the actions, necessary steps and responsibilities for 
implementing mitigation. 

114 Climate change implications are considered and reported upon in the 
Environmental Statement and apply particular focus to flood risk, 
biodiversity and ecological networks, and greenhouse gas emissions. 
The scheme maintains coherent ecological networks and generates 
biodiversity net gain. Flood risk to properties is not made worse by the 
scheme, and the scheme is designed to not be impacted by floods with 
an annual probability of occurrence of 1% with additional allowances for 
more severe flooding consistent with nationally adopted guidance. The 
increase in carbon as a result of the scheme compared to UK National 
Emissions shows that overall, it forms a very small contribution to 
carbon. 

115 The scheme is embedded in the Local Plan Strategy, which has been 
subject to Examination in Public by the Planning Inspectorate. The 
Local Plan has been deemed to be a robust plan for sustainable 
development across the borough. The scheme contributes to this 
overall plan for sustainable growth in Cheshire East by enabling growth 
through improved connectivity and reducing adverse impacts of traffic 
and travel. 

116 The scheme contributes to the plan for sustainable growth in Cheshire 
East by enabling growth through improved connectivity and reducing 
adverse impacts of traffic and travel. The completed scheme provides 
for enhanced facilities for non-motorised users in the form of improved 
pedestrian and cycling connectivity along the bypass and provides 
connectivity to employment zones within Midpoint 18 Business Park. 

Page 57



  
  

 

 

117 The connectivity benefits of the scheme will be delivered by relieving 
traffic congestion in the town and relieving delays on strategic roads 
linking mid Cheshire towns (e.g., the A54). The Middlewich Transport 
Consultation, which took place in August / September 2016, reported 
that 79% of respondents stated that there were severe congestion 
issues affecting roads in Middlewich. 61% of residents stated the top 
priority was building a bypass. 

118 It will improve environmental conditions within the town, through 
reductions in traffic related noise, severance and improved air quality 
and facilitate a package of complimentary measures to support town 
centre regeneration, accessibility, and public realm, including improved 
bus service reliability and restrictions on traffic and heavy goods vehicle 
movements on the A533 Leadsmithy Street and Lewin Street. 

119 The proposals include environmental mitigation for negative impacts of 
the scheme including the loss of trees and hedges because of the 
scheme. This includes planting for visual screening alongside 
watercourses or as reinforcement of existing planting areas; creating 
grassland habitat within and adjacent to the easement for the high-
pressure gas main; locating environmental mitigation within the 
Sanderson’s Brook corridor, which is classified as being within Flood 
Zone 3 and therefore unlikely to be brought forward for development. 

120 The proposed scheme supports the Local Plan Strategy, which has 
been subject to Examination in Public by the Planning Inspectorate. The 
Local Plan has been deemed to be a robust plan for sustainable 
development across the Borough. The scheme contributes to this 
overall plan for sustainable growth in Cheshire East by enabling growth 
through improved connectivity and reducing adverse impacts of traffic 
and travel. 

 

Access to Information 

Contact 
Officer: 

Chris Hindle, Head of Infrastructure  

chris.hindle@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

Neil Grundy, Infrastructure Delivery Manager 

neil.grundy@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

Dhiraj Limje, Project Engineer 

dhiraj.limje@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

Page 58

mailto:chris.hindle@cheshireeast.gov.uk


  
  

 

 

Appendices: Appendix 1 – Draft Full Business Case  

Appendix 2 – Scheme Plan  

Background 
Papers: 

Cabinet - 9 February 2016 
Item 100 
To consider the feasibility of the proposed scheme and to 
recommend a preferred route 
 
Cabinet - 3 May 2016 
Item 149 
To consider the results of the public consultation exercise relating 
to the proposed routes 
 
Cabinet - 8 November 2016 
Item 60 
To consider the feasibility of the scheme and to finalise the road 
alignment option 
 
Cabinet - 11 April 2017 
Item 124 
To consider and recommend the submission of the Outline 
Business case to the Department for Transport 
 
Cabinet - 12 September 2017 
Item 44 
To consider if to submit a planning application for the preferred 
route, and note the updating of the outline business case 
 
Cabinet - 12 June 2018 
Item 9 
To consider the planning and deliverability update 
 
Cabinet - 15 January 2019 
Item 78 
To consider the delivery strategy 
 
Cabinet - 9 July 2019 
Item 22 
To approve the acquisition of land required to deliver the scheme 
 
Cabinet - 7 July 2020 

Item 18 
To seek approval to proceed with the use of Compulsory Purchase 
Powers 
 

Page 59

http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s45721/Middlewich%20Eastern%20Bypass%20-%20report%20final.pdf
http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s47231/Middlewich%20Eastern%20Bypass%20-%20report%20final.pdf
http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s51155/Middlewich%20Bypass%20-%20report%20final.pdf
http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s54978/Middlewich%20Eastern%20Bypass%20-%20report%20final.pdf
http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s58080/Middlewich%20Eastern%20Bypass%20-%20report%20final.pdf
http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s64179/Middlewich%20Eastern%20Bypass%20-%20report%20final.pdf
http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s67941/Middlewich%20Eastern%20Bypass%20Delivery%20Strategy%20-%20report%20final.pdf
http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s70362/Middlewich%20Eastern%20Bypass%20-%20report%20final.pdf
http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s77981/Middlewich%20Eastern%20Bypass%20-%20report%20final%20.pdf


  
  

 

 

Highways and Transport Committee - 21 September 2021 
Item 19 
To seek approval to withdraw the made Compulsory Purchase 
Order and Side Roads Order 
 
Highways and Transport Committee 9 December 2021 
Item 39 
To authorise the making of a Compulsory Purchase Order, Side 
Roads Order and Bridge scheme for the delivery of the Middlewich 
Eastern Bypass scheme. 

 
Phase 2b (Crewe - Manchester) Draft Register of Undertakings 
and Assurances v1.4 

 

Page 60

http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s89002/MEB%20Commitee%20report-%20withdrawal%20v4.pdf
http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s90759/Highways%20Committee%20Nov%2021%20002.pdf
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fuploads%2Fsystem%2Fuploads%2Fattachment_data%2Ffile%2F1152439%2FRegister_of_Undertakings_and_Assurances_v1.4_.xlsx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fuploads%2Fsystem%2Fuploads%2Fattachment_data%2Ffile%2F1152439%2FRegister_of_Undertakings_and_Assurances_v1.4_.xlsx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK


 

   

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

Cheshire East Council  

Middlewich Eastern Bypass 

Full Business Case 
(Draft) 

Page 61



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 2 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary ............................................................................................................ 5 

1. Strategic Dimension ..................................................................................................... 6 

1.1 Strategic Context ................................................................................................................................. 6 

1.1.1 Existing Arrangements ................................................................................................................ 7 

1.2 The Future Scenario .......................................................................................................................... 15 

1.2.2 Network Capacity and Capability .............................................................................................. 16 

1.2.3 Need for Investment .................................................................................................................. 16 

1.2.4 Impact of Not Changing ............................................................................................................. 16 

1.2.8 Objectives of the Scheme ......................................................................................................... 19 

2. Economic Dimension ................................................................................................. 25 

2.1 Introduction ........................................................................................................................................ 25 

2.2 Methodology ...................................................................................................................................... 25 

2.2.1 Overview .................................................................................................................................... 25 

2.2.2 Assessment of Monetised Impacts and Costs .......................................................................... 26 

2.2.3 Assessment of Non-Monetised Impacts .................................................................................... 26 

2.2.4 Assessment Tools ..................................................................................................................... 27 

2.3 Assumptions ...................................................................................................................................... 27 

2.3.1 Overview .................................................................................................................................... 27 

2.3.2 Traffic Model .............................................................................................................................. 27 

2.3.3 Time Periods ............................................................................................................................. 27 

2.3.4 User Classes ............................................................................................................................. 28 

2.3.5 Appraisal Period ........................................................................................................................ 28 

2.3.6 Discounting and Units of Accounts ........................................................................................... 28 

2.3.7 Inflation ...................................................................................................................................... 28 

2.4 Scheme Cost for Economic Assessment .......................................................................................... 28 

2.4.1 Maintenance Costs .................................................................................................................... 29 

2.4.2 Present Value of Costs (PVC) ................................................................................................... 30 

2.5 Assessment of Monetised Benefits ................................................................................................... 30 

2.5.1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 30 

2.5.2 TEE Benefits as a Result of the Scheme .................................................................................. 30 

2.5.3 Changes in Indirect Tax ............................................................................................................ 31 

2.5.4 Accident Benefits ....................................................................................................................... 31 

2.5.5 Journey Time Reliability ............................................................................................................ 32 

2.5.6 Environmental – Greenhouse Gases (Assessment in progress at time of writing for this Draft of 
the FBC) 33 

2.5.7 Environmental – Noise (Assessment in progress at time of writing for this Draft of the FBC) .. 33 

2.5.8 Environmental – Air Quality (Assessment in progress at time of writing Assessed for this Draft 
of the FBC) ................................................................................................................................................ 33 

2.6 Assessment of Non-Monetised Benefits ........................................................................................... 33 

Page 62



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 3 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

2.6.1 Overview .................................................................................................................................... 33 

2.6.2 Economy - Regeneration ........................................................................................................... 33 

2.6.3 Environmental – Landscape ...................................................................................................... 34 

2.6.4 Environmental – Townscape ..................................................................................................... 34 

2.6.5 Environmental – Historic Environment ...................................................................................... 34 

2.6.6 Environmental – Biodiversity ..................................................................................................... 34 

2.6.7 Environmental – Water Environment ........................................................................................ 34 

2.6.8 Social – Physical Activity ........................................................................................................... 34 

2.6.9 Social – Journey Quality ............................................................................................................ 35 

2.6.10 Social – Security ........................................................................................................................ 35 

2.6.11 Social – Access to Services ...................................................................................................... 35 

2.6.12 Social – Affordability .................................................................................................................. 35 

2.6.13 Social – Severance ................................................................................................................... 35 

2.7 Distributional Impact Assessment ..................................................................................................... 35 

2.8 Assessment of Wider Economic Benefits ......................................................................................... 37 

2.8.1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 37 

2.8.2 Gross Value Added (GVA) Benefits .......................................................................................... 37 

2.9 Value for Money Assessment ........................................................................................................... 38 

2.9.1 Appraisal Summary Table (AST) .............................................................................................. 38 

2.9.2 Value for Money Statement ....................................................................................................... 38 

2.10 Conclusions ....................................................................................................................................... 40 

3. Financial Dimension .................................................................................................. 41 

3.1.1 The scheme cost estimate has been derived for the Scheme. ................................................. 42 

3.1.2 Assumptions .............................................................................................................................. 42 

3.1.3 Base Costs ................................................................................................................................ 42 

3.1.4 Adjusting for Risk ...................................................................................................................... 42 

3.1.5 Maintenance Costs .................................................................................................................... 43 

3.2 Overall Affordability and Funding ...................................................................................................... 43 

3.2.1 Fundraising Arrangements ........................................................................................................ 43 

3.2.2 Funding Approval ...................................................................................................................... 43 

3.2.3 Alternative Funding Arrangements ............................................................................................ 44 

3.2.4 Conclusion ................................................................................................................................. 44 

4. Commercial and Management Dimension ............................................................... 45 

4.1 Procurement Strategy and Route ...................................................................................................... 45 

4.1.1 Procurement Workshops ........................................................................................................... 45 

4.1.2 Procurement Options ................................................................................................................ 46 

4.2 Risk Allocation ................................................................................................................................... 47 

4.3 Charging Mechanism ........................................................................................................................ 47 

4.4 Key Contractual Arrangements ......................................................................................................... 47 

4.5 Personnel Implications ...................................................................................................................... 48 

Page 63



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 4 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

5. Programme/Project Management Dimension .......................................................... 49 

5.1 Project Management Governance Arrangements ............................................................................. 49 

5.1.1 Governance ............................................................................................................................... 49 

5.1.2 Programme Board ..................................................................................................................... 49 

5.1.3 Project delivery team ................................................................................................................. 50 

5.2 Project Assurance Arrangements ..................................................................................................... 51 

5.2.1 Gateway Reviewers .................................................................................................................. 51 

5.3 Project Plan (Schedule)..................................................................................................................... 52 

5.4 Stakeholder Engagement and Communications ............................................................................... 53 

5.5 Risk and Issues Management ........................................................................................................... 54 

5.5.1 Risk Register ............................................................................................................................. 54 

5.5.2 Contingency Plan ...................................................................................................................... 54 

Appendix A – Uncertainty Log ......................................................................................... 55 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 5 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

Executive Summary 

The Middlewich Eastern Bypass (MEB) scheme involves the construction of a new 2.6km single carriageway 
road to the east of Middlewich, Cheshire, connecting the A54 Holmes Chapel Road to the A533 Booth Lane. 
The scheme will provide a strategic bypass for Middlewich, relieving congestion and unlocking major 
employment growth at the Midpoint 18 site. 

Middlewich suffers from severe traffic congestion due to its limited road network capacity and high volumes 
of through traffic. Journey time surveys show that congestion causes major delays, poor journey time 
reliability, and transport constraints on growth. Traffic forecasts predict further worsening of congestion 
without intervention. 

The scheme objectives are to reduce congestion, improve journey times, enhance journey reliability, improve 
road safety, support wider economic growth and facilitate major development sites. 

The MEB demonstrates strong strategic fit with pertinent local, regional and national policies. It directly aligns 
with the vision for employment-led growth in Middlewich within the Cheshire East Local Plan. The scheme is 
strongly supported by the Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise Partnership as pivotal to realising its 
strategic growth ambitions. 

There was overwhelming support for the scheme from public consultation in 2016, with 79% of respondents 
stating that Middlewich suffers severe congestion issues. 61% prioritised construction of a bypass above all 
other interventions. 

The economic dimension presents a Value for Money assessment of monetised and non-monetised impacts. 
With a Benefit Cost Ratio of 1.18, the scheme demonstrates that despite extraordinary construction cost 
inflation the scheme still delivers positive Value for Money. The Present Value of Benefits is £46.11m against 
a Present Value of Costs of £39.13. A Gross Value Added assessment forecasts the scheme could facilitate 
an additional £412m net GVA uplift over 60 years through enabling employment growth. 

The financial dimension presents the funding package combining DfT grant, local contribution and private 
sector funding. The total outturn scheme cost is £95.7m. Funding has been approved by Cheshire East 
Council Committee subject to the approval of this report and the Section 151 Officer has previously provided 
a letter confirming the Council's commitment.  Recent budget increases have been endorsed and approved 
in the Councils Medium Term Financial Strategy and by the Highways and Transportation Committee. 

A two-stage Early Contractor Involvement (ECI) procurement via the Scape framework has been followed to 
appoint Balfour Beatty. The contract will utilise a NEC3 Option C target cost approach.  The Council has 
recent and ongoing successful experience of delivering Major Projects using this procurement option and the 
delivery of the project has benefitted from the ECI pre-construction input. 

The management dimension defines the governance structure, assurance processes, project plan, risk 
management strategy, and stakeholder engagement plan to successfully deliver the scheme. It provides 
confidence that the project can be delivered effectively to realise the expected benefits. 

In summary, the business case demonstrates that the MEB scheme addresses major problems in 
Middlewich, offers positive Value for Money and strong strategic fit, enjoys overwhelming public and 
stakeholder support, and will be delivered successfully.  

  

Page 65



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 6 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

1. Strategic Dimension 

1.1 Strategic Context 

Middlewich is a historic market town in the heart of Cheshire, with Roman origins and a current population 
of approximately 14,400 residents. It lies equidistant between the major urban areas of Merseyside to the 
north west, Greater Manchester to the north east and Crewe to the south. 

The vibrant and diverse Cheshire and Warrington economy is one of the strongest performing in England, 
generating a gross value added (GVA) of £20 billion per year. The Local Enterprise Partnership has an 
ambitious vision to increase GVA to £35 billion per year by 2030, lifting GVA per head to 115% of the national 
UK average. This would cement Cheshire and Warrington's status as the powerhouse economy of the 
Northern Powerhouse. Underpinning this aim is attracting an additional 100,000 residents, creating 75,000 
new jobs, and building 70,000 new homes by 2030. 

The Middlewich Eastern Bypass (MEB) has been energetically promoted by Cheshire East Council (CEC) 
and local stakeholders as the key to unlocking the town's economic potential. It will achieve this by tackling 
the severe traffic congestion which blights the town, improving journey times and journey time reliability on 
key routes and facilitating further development of the Midpoint 18 site and other strategically important 
employment locations allocated in the Local Plan.  

Car ownership in Middlewich and across Cheshire East is significantly higher than the national average, 
reflecting limited alternatives to the private car. Subsequently, the car accounts for over 75% of commuting 
trips, while opportunities to travel sustainably by public transport remain constrained. 

Comprehensive journey time surveys have demonstrated acute and chronic congestion within Middlewich 
during both morning and evening peak travel periods. Without firm intervention, forecast traffic growth driven 
by housing and employment expansion will further exacerbate congestion and environmental impacts. 

Middlewich accommodates several strategically important development sites earmarked for expansion in the 
Local Plan, including the major Midpoint 18 employment hub. However, development has slowed markedly 
since 2008 as existing traffic constraints sap the commercial attractiveness of sites. Traffic congestion in 
Middlewich is unanimously considered to be having a profoundly negative impact upon the economic 
performance of the town. 

Drawing on the identified problems, a defined set of objectives has been rigorously developed for the 
scheme. The Middlewich Eastern Bypass will make a significant positive contribution to achieving all 
objectives by providing a long overdue bypass for the town centre, enabling the Midpoint 18 development 
and thus supporting sub-regional economic growth and local housing as well as employment growth. 

The scheme demonstrates a strong strategic fit with pertinent local, sub-regional and national policies. It is 
pivotal to delivering employment-led growth in Middlewich, which represents the central vision for the town's 
future contained in Cheshire East's Local Plan. 

A far-reaching public consultation exercise was undertaken in 2016, generating overwhelming support from 
both residents and businesses. 79% of respondents stated that Middlewich suffers severe congestion issues, 
with 61% prioritising construction of a bypass above all other interventions.  

Investing in the Middlewich Eastern Bypass scheme will address the raft of existing and future problems 
blighting Middlewich, underpinning waves of future public and private investment and growth. The scheme 
is thus considered an urgent priority by all key public and private stakeholders alike, as emphatically 
evidenced by their letters of wholehearted support for the outline business case. 

In summary, the rationale for unlocking investment in the Middlewich Eastern Bypass scheme is patently 
strong and aligns closely with policy objectives at local, regional, and national tiers. The scheme will provide 
the key to unlocking the constraints that shackle future growth and prosperity in this historic Cheshire market 
town. 

Scheme History  

The need for an eastern bypass of Middlewich has been acknowledged for many years and was first 
proposed around 40 years ago by Cheshire County Council, a predecessor local government body to the 
Acquiring Authority and Cheshire West & Chester Council.     

The Acquiring Authority (including its predecessor local government bodies) previously worked in 
collaboration with a private sector developer, Pochin Group, to deliver an eastern bypass in conjunction with 

Page 66



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 7 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

the construction of major logistics distribution facilities within the Midpoint 18 Business Park, with that scheme 
being effectively developer led and financed.   

This previous bypass was partially completed in the late 1990’s and currently extends from A54 Holmes 
Chapel Road into the Midpoint 18 Business Park.  The partially completed route, called Pochin Way, currently 
serves several commercial units but does not connect with any other highways and terminates in a dead 
end.    

In 2008, planning permission was granted under reference 07/0323/OUT for the final section of the developer 
led bypass, to connect Pochin Way to the A533 Booth Lane at Tetton Bridge.  This consent included several 
commercial units in the southern section of the LPS 44 (Midpoint 18) but was conditioned such that further 
development could not take place until the completion of the bypass. In July 2011 a five-year extension to 
the planning permission was granted under reference 11/0899C.   

The route of the final section of the bypass was an approved Cheshire County Council scheme identified in 
the County Council’s Local Transport Plan.  It was safeguarded in the Congleton Local Plan under Policy 
DP10 and carried forward as a saved policy in Appendix B: Saved Policies of the Cheshire East Local Plan 
Strategy.   

Despite the Acquiring Authority securing grant funding of £4.1 million from Central Government and the 
Acquiring Authority agreeing to forward fund £2.5 million of potential Section 106 contributions, the private 
sector failed to deliver this developer led bypass. In consequence of this, the Acquiring Authority assumed 
responsibility for delivery of the bypass from Pochin Group in 2016. The Acquiring Authority subsequently 
undertook a strategic review of the bypass, which involved an assessment of a series of route options for 
delivery of an eastern bypass.   

In June 2016, planning permission was granted under reference 16/2006C for an application made under 
Section 73 of the Town & Country Planning Act to vary planning conditions that were attached to the 2011 
planning consent. This enabled reserved matters application 16/3242C to be submitted which effectively 
extended the consent for a further three years enabling it to be retained as an implementable option whilst 
the strategic review was being undertaken and completed.   

 The Case for Change 

 

1.1.1 Existing Arrangements 

1.1.1.1 Population, Economy, and Skills 

Analysis of 2011 Census data reveals high levels of car ownership and commuting by car amongst 
Middlewich residents compared to national averages. By contrast, opportunities to travel by alternative 
sustainable public transport modes remain severely limited. Middlewich residents typically travel substantially 
further to work, underlining that many commute longer distances to employment centres in nearby towns. 
The proportion of residents holding higher level skills qualifications trails slightly below the national average. 
The Cheshire and Warrington economy is rightly regarded as one of the strongest performing in England, 
generating £20 billion in gross value added annually. However, major infrastructure investments are urgently 
required to enable Middlewich and the wider Cheshire East area to achieve its full economic potential. 
Locally, key employers operating in Middlewich have expressed mounting needs to improve strategic 
transport links serving the town so they may continue to flourish and expand. 

Page 67



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 8 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

1.1.1.2 Transport Network 

A legacy of Middlewich's heritage as a historic crossing point of the River Croco is that two major highways 
- the A530 and A54 - converge in the heavily congested town centre. The town's roads thus carry an 
unhealthy mix of local Middlewich traffic intermingled with strategic traffic simply passing through, on-route 
to destinations further afield. Proximity to larger urban centres, including Northwich, Crewe, Winsford and 
Greater Manchester, means Middlewich has also evolved into a commuter town for those working in these 
major centres of employment. This 'perfect storm' of factors leads to localised congestion hotspots during 
peak travel periods. Figure 1.1 shows an Ordinance Survey map of the local road network around Middlewich. 

Public Transport 
Bus services within Middlewich itself are extremely limited, with just two regular routes passing through six 
days a week and no bus services operated on Sundays. Rail stations require travel to nearby towns Winsford 
and Sandbach, located 4 and 8 miles away respectively. Faster connections to London are only available by 
first driving 20-30 minutes to access Crewe station. Therefore, Middlewich suffers from extremely poor levels 
of direct connectivity to the rail network. 

1.1.1.3 Non-Motorised Users  

A number of signed cycle routes have been constructed in Middlewich, including a short section of the 
National Cycle Network Route 5. However, the walking and cycling provision available does little to facilitate 
short local trips or support the main north-south/east-west travel demands. 

1.1.1.4 Travel Patterns 

Census findings highlight very high volumes (approx. 53,000 trips per day) of car commuting trips into and 
out of Cheshire East each day, of which 85% are made by car. Locally, car ownership is high while public 
transport alternatives remain starkly limited. This paucity of choice results in heightened congestion on 
Middlewich's key routes, which carry both local and strategic traffic movements. The town's proximity to major 
employment centres also sees it functioning increasingly as a commuter town, adding further stress at peak 
times.  
 
 
 
 

Figure 1.1 Local Road Network around Middlewich 

Page 68



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 9 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

1.1.1.5 Traffic Speeds and Journey Times  

Trafficmaster 2016 datasets, consisting of extensive and accurate GPS sourced traffic data, have been used 
to gain an understanding of the average traffic conditions on key roads around Middlewich, with more detailed 
modelling of the network and key junctions on the networks undertaken as part of the scheme development. 
Trafficmaster data sets are used extensively by the Department for Transport, local authorities, and public 
and private transport providers throughout the UK.   

Traffic data for the AM and PM peak periods have been analysed and during the AM peak the A54 Chester 
Road and the A54 Kinderton Street / Holmes Chapel Road are the most congested with traffic moving slowly 
on the approaches to Middlewich.   

In the PM peak all approaches to Middlewich are medium to slow speed with congestion and frequent delays.  

Delays on five key routes through Middlewich have been calculated comparing Trafficmaster 2016 for AM, 
PM and inter-peak data to journey times calculated for free flow conditions as shown in Figure 1.2. 

 
 

 
Figure 1.2 Key Routes through Middlewich 

 
Observed delays for each route are given in Table 1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 10 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Route   Route 1   Route 2   Route 3   Route 4   Route 5   

Length 
(miles)   

5 4.5 4.8 3.7 4.2 

Direction   EB   WB   EB   WB   NB   SB   NB   SB   NB   SB   

AM PEAK   

Observed 
Delay (secs)   

60 196 86 178 -5 -33 27 176 113 172 

Average 
speed 

without 
traffic (mph) 

33 33 34 30 32 32 28 32 32 32 

TM 2016 
average 

speed (mph)  
30 24 29 23 32 34 26 22 25 23 

INTER PEAK   

Observed 
Delay (secs)   

34 116 56 101 -9 -27 14 122 201 276 

Average 
speed 

without 
traffic (mph) 

33 33 34 30 32 32 28 32 32 32 

TM 2016 
average 

speed (mph)  
31 27 30 25 33 34 27 25 22 20 

PM PEAK   

Observed 
Delay (secs)   

34 116 56 101 -9 -27 14 122 212 198 

Average 
speed 

without 
traffic (mph) 

33 33 34 30 32 32 28 32 32 32 

TM 2016 
average 

speed (mph)  
31 27 30 25 33 34 27 25 22 22 

Table 1.1 Observed delays on key routes through Middlewich. 

Significant delays are noted on westbound journeys on the A54 between the M6 and Winsford and journeys 
in both directions between the M6 and the A533 south of Middlewich.     

Delays are attributable to congestion in Middlewich town centre, with the principal cause of congestion  being 
the  signal-controlled  junction  at  A54  Kinderton Street / A533 Leadsmithy Street / A54 St Michael’s Way. 

Queue lengths recorded in surveys in 2016 showed extensive queuing at the junction as shown in Table 1.2 
with queues and slow-moving traffic affecting key side roads in the vicinity of the junction:   

Maximum recorded queue length (m) 

 AM Peak PM Peak 

A54 Kinderton Street 102 114 

A533 Leadsmithy Street 90 96 

A54 St Michael’s Way 60 78 

Table 1.2 Surveyed queue lengths. 

Table 1.3 shows modelled queue lengths and delays for the junction (from the Cheshire East Council 
Middlewich A54 St Michael’s Way / A533 Leadsmithy Street (Town Bridge) Traffic Signal Junction Study 
December 2015):   

Page 70



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 11 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

 
Mean 

maximum 
queue (M) 

Delays per 
PCU (seconds) 

A54 Kinderton Street 133 428 

A533 Leadsmithy Street 116 436 

A54 St Michael’s Way 10 15 

St Michael’s Way (Offside) 52 392 

Table 1.3 Modelled queue lengths and delays. 

Additional traffic generated by developments or through general growth will cause delays to increase in future 

years. Traffic modelling undertaken in 2018 during scheme development indicates heavy congestion at this 

and other junctions.   

1.1.1.6 Heavy Goods Vehicles 

Surveys presented in Table 1.14 demonstrate that the proportion of HGVs using Middlewich's roads (4%-
16%) is above typical national averages for the corresponding road types (3%-5%). This reflects proximity to 
the M6 motorway and the role of Middlewich's roads in providing key access between the motorway network 
and strategic destinations. HGV numbers are likely to expand further as goods vehicle traffic rises owing to 
the planned employment sites in Middlewich. 

 

Location 
Observed 
Proportion 
of HGV's 

Class of Road 

Annual average 
proportion of HGVs 

by class of road 
(from COBA 

manual) 

MCC 5- B5081 7% Non-Built up Principal 5.3 

MCC 6 - A54 Holmes Chapel Road 16% Non-Built up Principal 5.3 

MCC 7 - A583 Booth Road 7% Non-Built up Principal 5.3 

MCC 8 - A530 Nantwich Road 4% Built Up Principal Road 3.2 

MCC 11 - A54 Chester Road 9% Built Up Principal Road 3.2 

MCC 12 - A544 Lewin Street 7% Built Up Principal Road 3.2 

MCC 16 - Warmingham Lane 2% Non-Built up Principal 5.3 

Table 1.14 Comparison of Observed HGV Proportions to the Annual Average Category Proportions By Class 
Of Road. 

1.1.1.7 Traffic Volumes 

Recent surveys underline the severity of existing congestion issues in Middlewich, with very high volumes of 
two-way traffic recorded passing through the town during peak morning and evening periods. This reaches 
around 1,300 vehicles per hour on the busiest sections. These heavy volumes overwhelmingly comprise of 
car commuter trips, with HGVs representing between 2% and 15% depending on the surveyed location. 

 Table 1.25 shows two-way AM and PM traffic flows on the main routes through the town, using traffic data 
collected at the 6 RSI sites in Middlewich. 

 

Site Location 
Traffic Volume 

AM (8am-9am) PM (5pm-6pm) 

RSI 5 - B5081 424 301 

RSI 6 - A54 Holmes Chapel Road 1365 1317 

RSI 7 - A533 Booth Road 909 926 

RSI 8 - A530 Nantwich Road 977 1017 

RSI 11 - A54 Chester Road 1279 1151 

RSI 12 - A533 Lewin Street 1012 1048 

 Table 1.25 Two-way traffic at the 6 RSI sites and permanent ATC site in Middlewich. 

Page 71



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 12 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

 

1.1.1.8 Safety  

Observed STATS19 accident information was obtained for a complete five-year period (2015 - 2019). This 
period was used as this was the most up to date information available at the time of accident analysis. The 
severity of accidents which occurred in Middlewich between 2015 and 2019 is shown in  Table 1.36. 

 

Severity 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Fatal 3 2 2 4 3 

Serious 22 28 22 27 10 

Slight 148 129 116 105 85 

Total Accidents 173 159 140 136 98 

 Table 1.36 Accident Numbers and Severity in Middlewich 2015-2019 

The above data reveals a high incidence of accidents in Middlewich, including several fatalities annually. A 
large number of accidents were situated along the M6 and there was also a hotspot for accidents around the 
A54/B5309 junction. 

1.1.1.9 Environmental Conditions 

There is currently one Air Quality Management Area (AQMAs) that exist within Middlewich on Chester road. 
In Middlewich and was Implemented in 2017 to monitor levels of Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) within the area. 
Chester road is in the middle of the detailed model area. 

In accordance with Part IV of the Environment Act (1995) local authorities in the UK must carry out reviews 
and assessments of air quality in their area. The Air Quality Strategy (Department for Environment, Food and 
Rural Affairs) outlines a framework for improvements and where an authority identifies an area which is likely 
to exceed these targets it must be declared an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA).  

The predominant source of pollution across the Cheshire East Council (CEC) borough is road traffic, with 
emissions of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) accounting for all of the 13 Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) 
(CEC 2015). The closest AQMAs to Middlewich are approximately 3.7 km north-eastwards and 5 km south-
eastwards respectively. 

The 2014 Progress Report (CEC 2014) highlighted A533 Lewin Street and A54 Chester Road areas of 
Middlewich as having the potential to exceed the annual mean NO2 AQO. The annual mean NO2 AQO value 
of 40 µg/m3 is exceeded at two locations within Middlewich. These are site CE136 on the A54 Chester Road 
and site CE134 along the A533 Lewin Street where concentrations are close to the objective (albeit gradually 
decreasing from 2013 to 2015).  

Several Middlewich town centre roads are also already highlighted as Noise Important Areas. These are 

• A533, between the junctions for Canal Terrace and Sutton Lane;  

• A54, east of the railway line to the roundabout connecting the B5309;  

• A54, at the junction of Mill and Kinderton Street;  

• Parts of the A54 between the roundabout connecting to the B5309 and the M6;  

• A530 near its junction with Wheelock Street; and,  

• A54 between its junction with the A530 and where the A54 crosses the River Wheelock. 

1.1.1.10 Heritage and Biodiversity  

There are over 35 heritage assets located within 5km of Middlewich, including archaeology, buildings, 
structures, and landscape types. Ecological designations include 2 Sites of Special Scientific Interest and 
priority habitats covered under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. Rivers and 
watercourses across the study area support protected species including otters, fish, great crested newts and 
invertebrates. 

Page 72



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 13 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

1.1.1.11 Landscape 

Within the study area the landform slopes gently from south-east to north-west, sloping towards the River 
Dane floodplain in the north. Topography ranges from approximately 25 m Above Ordnance Datum (AOD) 
near Kinderton Hall, to approximately 50 m AOD near Tetton Hall Cottages.  

There are no long-distance views of the Sandstone Ridge to the west or the Pennine Hills to the east because 
of the layering effect of intervening field boundary vegetation, which is caused by the relatively flat topography 
of the Cheshire Plain.  

The study area is traversed by three tributaries of the River Dane; the River Croco, Sanderson’s Brook and 
Small Brook. In addition to these tributaries, there is also the Trent and Mersey Canal, running parallel to the 
A533, and a number of smaller watercourses and ditches. The River Dane itself is located approximately 0.6 
km to the north of the study area. Several ponds are found scattered within the farmland, which is 
characteristic feature of this Cheshire landscape. The area’s relatively flat topography, meandering 
watercourses and field ponds are representative of the Cheshire Plain.  

There is limited woodland cover across the study area. As a result, there are often open views available 
across the nearby Cheshire Plain, and towards the settlement edge of Middlewich. A narrow belt of riparian 
woodland is located alongside the River Croco, whereas Sanderson’s Brook is relatively open.  

Land at the eastern periphery of Middlewich represents a transitional landscape between urban settlement 
to the west and the more open countryside to the east. There is a wide range of land uses, which gives the 
landscape an urban fringe character, including industrial and commercial development (e.g., Midpoint 18), 
residential settlement (Middlewich), agricultural fields and isolated farmsteads. The study area is traversed 
by linear infrastructure including overhead power lines, the A54, B5309, A533, the Trent and Mersey Canal 
and the Northwich to Sandbach Railway Line. 

1.1.1.12 Geology and Soils  

British Geological Survey online mapping indicates that the majority of the study area is underlain by a solid 
geology comprising the Wilkesley Halite Member (halite-stone and mudstone) overlain by superficial deposits 
comprising Devensian Till (diamicton).  
 
In the absence of site-specific post-1988 Agricultural Land Classification (ALC) data for the study area, 
provisional ALC data have been used to determine the agricultural quality of land within the study area. 
Agricultural land within the study area has been classified as Grade 3 (good to moderate quality). This data 
provide no delineation between Subgrades 3a and 3b and therefore where Grade 3 has been mapped; it is 
assumed that Subgrade 3a is present as a worst-case scenario. Under the Agricultural Land Classification 
system, the Best Most Versatile (BMV) land is statutorily defined as Grades 1, 2 and Subgrade 3a.  

1.1.1.13 Road Drainage and Water Environment  

There are five designated main rivers that flow within the study area of the proposed Route Options. These 
are Small Brook; Sanderson’s Brook; an un-named tributary of the River Croco; the River Croco; and the 
River Dane. In addition, a number of ordinary watercourses flow through the study area: Trent and Mersey 
Canal; un-named tributary of Sanderson’s Brook (1); and un-named tributary of Sanderson’s Brook (2).  
The risk of fluvial flooding in the study area has been interpreted from the Environment Agency’s online 
‘Flood Map for Planning’. The Flood Map indicates that some areas within the study area are located within 
Flood Zone 3 and at high risk of fluvial flooding. These areas are associated with the floodplains of Small 
Brook, Sanderson’s Brook, the River Croco, and the River Dane.  
 
The risk of surface water flooding has been assessed from the Environment Agency’s ‘Risk of Flooding from 
Surface Water’ online map. The map shows that areas of land adjacent to the watercourse channels and 
small, isolated pockets of land are at high risk of surface water flooding. The flood risk to areas adjacent to 
watercourses roughly correlates with the fluvial flood risk. The isolated pockets of land are associated with 
small topographic depressions in agricultural fields.  
Under the Water Framework Directive (WFD), the Environment Agency classifies water bodies according to 
their ecological status. Water bodies are required to achieve good ecological status by 2015, or, in some 
cases, they are required to achieve good ecological potential by 2027 (e.g. heavily modified or artificial water 
bodies). 
 
Within the study area, the Environment Agency classifies a section of Sanderson’s Brook, the River Croco, 
the River Dane and the Trent and Mersey Canal. The WFD classifications are as follows:  

Page 73



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 14 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

• The current ecological quality of the River Croco (Waterbody ID: GB112068055460) is ‘bad status’ 
and the current chemical quality is ‘good’.  

• Sanderson’s Brook falls under the same waterbody as the River Croco (Waterbody ID: 
GB112068055460), hence its current ecological quality is ‘bad status’ and its current chemical quality 
is ‘good’.  

• The current ecological quality of the River Dane (Cow Brook to Wheelock, Waterbody ID: 
GB112068060190) is ‘poor status’ and the current chemical quality is ‘good’.  

• The hydromorphological designation for the Trent and Mersey Canal is ‘artificial’. The current 
ecological quality of the Trent and Mersey Canal, summit to Preston Brook Tunnel (Waterbody ID: 
GB71210247) is ‘moderate potential’ and the current chemical quality is ‘fail’. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 15 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

1.2 The Future Scenario 

1.2.1.1 Future Developments 

Proposed residential and employment developments contained in the Cheshire East Local Plan will generate 
substantial traffic growth in and around Middlewich over the coming years. Without intervention, this will 
drastically exacerbate congestion on the already strained road network. Traffic modelling starkly indicates 
widespread re-routing of traffic and localised increases in congestion hotspots as drivers seek to avoid delay.  

The full list of proposed development sites (Uncertainty Log) can be found in Appendix A, this shows the 
developments the developments that were classified as either “Near Certain” or “More than Likely”. These 
developments were subsequently included in the ‘Core’ Growth Scenario for the traffic modelling and scheme 
appraisal. 

1.2.1.2 Future Traffic Volumes 

Sophisticated traffic modelling using industry-standard SATURN software has forecast traffic flow increases 
during all modelled peak and off-peak periods in 2026, 2041, and 2061. This conclusion remains consistent 
across all key routes within the model and adjoining local road network.  

The base and future year matrix comparison tables for each of the three future years, are presented in 
tablesTable 1.47 toTable 2.69 

User Class 
2016 Base 2026 Forecast % Growth 

AM IP PM AM IP PM AM IP PM 

Car 
Commuter 

24,141 5,742 19,328 25,758 6,135 20,893 7 7 8 

Car 
Business 

5,462 4,118 5,058 5,956 4,457 5,429 9 8 7 

Car Other 11,370 16,019 15,960 12,383 17,520 17,368 9 9 9 

LGV 5,976 5,087 3,748 7,235 6,159 4,537 21 21 21 

HGV 4,888 6,802 3,002 5,300 7,305 3,403 8 7 13 

Total Car 40,973 25,879 40,345 44,096 28,113 43,690 8 9 8 

Total GVs 10,864 11,889 6,750 12,535 13,464 7,940 15 13 18 

Table 1.47 2026 Core and Base Year (2016) Matrix Comparison 

Table 1.47 compares the 2016 base matrix to the 2026 forecast matrix. The highest level of change is evident 
for the LGVs, having 21% growth between 2016 and 2026.  

User Class 
2016 Base 2041 Forecast % Growth 

AM IP PM AM IP PM AM IP PM 

Car 
Commuter 

24,141 5,742 19,328 26,690 6,395 22,011 11 11 14 

Car 
Business 

5,462 4,118 5,058 6,322 4,695 5,668 16 14 12 

Car Other 11,370 16,019 15,960 13,306 18,906 18,577 17 18 16 

LGV 5,976 5,087 3,748 8,308 7,073 5,210 39 39 39 

HGV 4,888 6,802 3,002 5,822 8,031 3,718 19 18 24 

Total Car 40,973 25,879 40,345 46,319 29,996 46,256 13 16 15 

Total GVs 10,864 11,889 6,750 14,130 15,104 8,929 30 27 32 

Table 1.58 2041 Core and base year (2016) Matrix comparison 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 16 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

Table 1.58 compares the 2016 base matrix to the 2041 forecast matrix. LGV growth is also proven to be the 
highest growth change between these two matrices. 

User Class 
2016 Base 2061 Forecast % Growth 

AM IP PM AM IP PM AM IP PM 

Car 
Commuter 

24,141 5,742 19,328 26,990 6,436 22,285 12 12 15 

Car 
Business 

5,462 4,118 5,058 6,466 4,780 5,759 18 16 14 

Car Other 11,370 16,019 15,960 14,071 20,079 19,489 24 25 22 

LGV 5,976 5,087 3,748 9,783 8,328 6,135 64 64 64 

HGV 4,888 6,802 3,002 5,954 8,214 3,803 22 21 27 

Total Car 40,973 25,879 40,345 47,527 31,295 47,532 16 21 18 

Total GVs 10,864 11,889 6,750 15,737 16,542 9,938 45 39 47 

Table 2.69 2061 Core and base year (2016) Matrix comparison 

Table 2.69 presents similar trends as Table 1.47 and Table 1.58, as when comparing the 2016 base matrix 
to the 2061 matrix, LGVs have the largest growth, at just under 64%. 

When comparing all future year scenarios to the base, it is evident that there is an increase in traffic across 
all user classes and all years. As a result of the increased traffic levels forecast for the peak periods, 
congestion will increase at the junctions that currently experience congestion. The length of delay and 
duration of delays will increase.  

In the Do Minimum situation (the existing transport network incorporating any future planned improvements 
but not the scheme), traffic accessing development sites in and around Middlewich such as Midpoint 18, and 
traffic on the A54 would do so via the town centre. The most notable impact of this development traffic is 
likely to be an increase in the amount of through traffic that inappropriately reroutes through local roads 
across the network in and around Middlewich, as this traffic may divert to avoid the most congested section 
of the town centre. Alongside this, traffic levels will also increase on roads close to the town centre. 

1.2.2 Network Capacity and Capability  

Complementary modelling also signals a dramatic escalation in delays at numerous junctions across 
Middlewich as traffic volumes ratchet up over the coming years. In turn, this suggests that overall, as time 
progresses, network speeds generally will decrease and in turn, journey times will increase. This will also 
ensure grave consequences for businesses and residents through reduced productivity, higher costs, and 
poorer air quality. 

1.2.3 Need for Investment 

The need for intervention has been identified after consideration of the traffic modelling results, which 
establish a significant increase in traffic flows and traffic-related issues with likely negative impacts on 
Middlewich and the wider area. This congestion has created a need for a bypass to allow north-south traffic 
to access the local development sites and destinations further afield whilst avoiding the town centre.  

During the development of the Cheshire East Local Plan, issues that are impacting on local business growth 
were identified. The Local Plan aims to create the conditions for greater prosperity. In transport terms, this 
centres on the removal of barriers to doing business, especially congestion and poor journey-time reliability.  

It is important that all issues impacting local areas are well understood and an appropriate intervention is 
identified. In the following chapters, further evidence is presented on the problems arising in Middlewich and 
the surrounding areas.  

1.2.4 Impact of Not Changing 

If the status quo continues without meaningful upgrades to Middlewich's road network, the following 
repercussions are certain to unfold: 

• Traffic levels will further intensify as development proceeds, crippled by heightened congestion and 
delay; 

• Motorists will reroute through inappropriate residential roads and rat runs to avoid congestion 
hotspots; 

Page 76



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 17 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

• Community severance and road safety hazards will worsen for pedestrians and other non-motorised 
users; 

• Businesses will suffer falling productivity and logistics efficiency as journey times increase; 

• Air quality and noise pollution will degrade as queues lengthen, with AQMAs likely to be declared; 

• Attracting new inward investment and development will become increasingly difficult; and 

• The Cheshire economy overall will thus fail to reach its growth potential. 

 

The Investment Proposal 

1.2.5 The Scheme 

The Scheme involves the construction of a new single carriageway road, known as the Middlewich Eastern 
Bypass. The proposed route of the Scheme follows a north-south alignment to the east of Middlewich, 
providing a new route between the A54 Holmes Chapel Road and the A533 Booth Lane to the south of 
Middlewich. It is located within Cheshire East, with the exception of a small area of the northern section of 
the road, which extends into the borough of Cheshire West & Chester.  

The Scheme sits on the eastern edge of the Middlewich Settlement Zone and will provide traffic routes to 
avoid Middlewich town centre, relieving congestion and contributing strongly to the delivery of objectives 
within the Local Plan Strategy of supporting the economic growth agenda for Middlewich and the sub-region, 
with aims for up to 1,950 new dwellings and c.6,500 additional jobs in the town. Policy PG7 of the Local Plan 
states that Middlewich is expected to accommodate development of 70 ha of employment land and the 
bypass is required to release a substantial proportion of this land. 

Delivery of the Scheme is noted in the Local Plan Strategy which states: ‘The timely delivery of the Middlewich 
Eastern Bypass is key to ensuring that Middlewich realises its full sustainable growth potential as a Key 
Service Centre and also contributes to the prosperity of the borough as a whole’.  

The Local Plan Strategy then states that the bypass is: ‘a key piece of infrastructure vital to the future 
prosperity of Middlewich, Cheshire East and the wider region’.  

Within the Local Plan Strategy, the Scheme is linked specifically to the Midpoint 18 Business Park (LPS 44, 
also branded as Magnitude), providing a suitable means of access to significant inaccessible areas of the 
allocated site. An approved route for Middlewich Eastern Bypass is shown in the Local Plan Strategy., though 
it should be noted that this route is based upon a previously consented scheme formed the proposed bypass 
at the time that the Local Plan Strategy was adopted. A new preferred scheme following a different route has 
subsequently been developed and granted planning permission under references 18/5883C and 
18/04483/FUL (by the Local Planning Authorities of Cheshire East Council and Cheshire West & Chester 
Council respectively) in 2019.  

The Scheme is also proposed to be safeguarded under Policy INF 6 in the Revised Publication Draft Site 
Allocations and Development Policies Document (SADPD) produced by the Council to support the policies 
and proposals of the Local Plan Strategy. The revised draft plan was subject to public consultation during 
November and December 2020 and subsequently updated.  

Cheshire East Council is the main Local Planning Authority (LPA) responsible for granting planning consent 
for the Scheme, but Cheshire West and Chester Council is also responsible for planning consent for the 
works associated with the Scheme within their administrative area.  

Cheshire East Council is the Local Highway Authority (LHA) responsible for maintaining the public highway 
in the Borough and they will also maintain the scheme where it lies within the Borough of Cheshire West & 
Chester via a Section 8 Agreement under the Highways Act 1980. 

1.2.6 Options 

Comprehensive assessment criteria were established covering all critical factors - strategic, economic, 
commercial, financial, management and deliverability aspects. Both quantitative and qualitative appraisal 
was undertaken based on these criteria.  

Two leading options - Alternative 1A and Preferred 2A - were shortlisted and analysed in depth as part of the 
public consultation exercise. Further refinements responding to consultation feedback have led to Option 2A 
being conclusively confirmed as the Preferred Route, with Alternative 1A retained as a sub-optimal fallback 
option. 

 

Page 77



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 18 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

 
1.2.7 Need for the Scheme 

1.2.7.1 Local and Regional Need  

The Scheme is promoted by the Acquiring Authority as a means of relieving congestion in Middlewich, 
improving journey time reliability on the existing wider highway network, directly facilitating the development 
of the LPS 44 (Midpoint 18) strategic employment site, and indirectly facilitating other traffic generating 
developments such as LPS 43 (Brooks Lane) in the Local Plan Strategy, as discussed in section 4, through 
improvements to the wider highway network.  

Additional connectivity benefits from the Scheme are realised by mitigating traffic congestion in the town and 
relieving delays on strategic roads linking the mid-Cheshire towns, especially Middlewich, Winsford and 
Northwich via the A54 to the national motorway network at M6 Junction 18.  

As mentioned above, the Local Plan Strategy states that the Scheme is: ‘a key piece of infrastructure vital to 
the future prosperity of Middlewich, Cheshire East and the wider region.’  

The Local Plan Strategy states that Middlewich has been identified as one of the Key Service Centres for the 
Borough, and, as such, the vitality and growth of the town contributes to the prosperity of the Borough as a 
whole.  

The timely delivery of the Scheme is identified in the Local Plan Strategy as key to ensuring that Middlewich 
realises its full sustainable growth potential as a Key Service Centre and also contributes to the prosperity of 
the Borough.  

1.2.7.2 HS2 

The Middlewich Eastern Bypass will better link Middlewich to the proposed HS2 Hub Station at Crewe, 
improving access to both the Strategic Rail network and the economic growth opportunities linked to HS2.  

The Hybrid Bill for Phase 2a of the HS2 Scheme has received Royal Assent and, on current plans, passenger 
services for Phase 2a are expected to commence at Crewe between 2029-2031.  

The HS2 Phase 2b Hybrid Bill is currently before Parliament for consideration. Subject to the Bill receiving 
Royal Assent, construction of Phase 2b of the HS2 line (From Crewe to Manchester) will start in 
approximately early 2027 and complete between 2035 and 2040.    

HS2’s published plans for the proposed North Crewe Rolling Stock Depot at Wimboldsley show a network-
significant facility located less than 3km west of Middlewich. The depot is connected to the national motorway 
network at M6 Junction18 via A530/A54 through Middlewich town centre. HS2’s published plans also show 
extensive construction areas for the HS2 mainline and associated features, including extensive diversions to 
existing highway infrastructure to the north, west and south of Middlewich.  

HS2 predicts that there will be a significant number of HGV movements using the A54 through Middlewich, 
with the HS2 construction areas located north and west of Middlewich connected to the national motorway 
network at M6 Junction18 via the A54 through Middlewich town centre.   

HS2 Ltd has assumed in the Transport Assessment for the Hybrid Bill, and subsequent Additional Provision 
1 (which includes further changes to HS2 proposed scheme and construction methodology), that the Scheme 
is delivered and available for use by the time HS2 Phase 2b construction activities are underway. HS2’s 
transport modelling is, therefore, predicated on the Scheme being open prior to any works commencing.  

Construction traffic associated within the HS2 construction areas is highly likely to experience delays and 
congestion within the town centre if the Scheme is not delivered. The Council has undertaken its own 
assessment of the impacts of HS2 construction traffic and initial assessment has indicated that, in the 
absence of the Scheme and without additional mitigation measures (including additional improvement works 
to existing highway infrastructure), HS2 related construction traffic would generate even greater levels of 
congestion and severance on the A54 through Middlewich, as well as intensification of traffic on lower 
standard roads.   

Without the Scheme, operational traffic associated with the depot is highly likely to experience greater levels 
of delay and congestion within the town centre, leading to sub-optimal performance at the facility.  

Therefore, the opportunities to alleviate congestion in Middlewich and mitigate the associated traffic impacts 
of HS2 Phase 2b, would be an important influence on the successful construction and future operations of 

Page 78



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 19 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

HS2 in Cheshire East, a critical element in delivering the Government’s vision of a Northern Powerhouse to 
revitalise the north and rebalance the UK economy. 

1.2.7.3 Traffic Problems and Issues  

Traffic modelling undertaken for the development of the Scheme has shown that with background growth in 
traffic and the inclusion of traffic from planned development for Middlewich, the traffic levels in future will be 
significantly higher than existing, leading to increased congestion.  

Increased congestion would exacerbate all current traffic related problems within the town described in 
section 5, with the key junction at A54 Kinderton Road / A533 Leadsmithy Street operating over operational 
threshold capacity in the AM peak and significantly beyond maximum capacity in the PM peak.  

Impacts on through routes have been analysed and further increases in journey times (delays) are predicted. 
The most heavily affected route is northbound from A533 Booth Lane to M6 J18 which increases by 5 minutes 
and 43 seconds in the short term and by 16 minutes and 15 seconds in the long term.  

1.2.7.4 Bus Services  

Increased congestion and delay will directly impact bus services as there are no segregation or prioritisation 
opportunities on the existing road network.  

1.2.7.5 Traffic Related Environmental Issues  

Increases in traffic are forecast on all routes which are currently designated Air Quality Management Areas 
or Noise Important Areas. Traffic increases will cause a worsening of air quality and an increase in noise.  

1.2.7.6 Safety  

If no improvements are made, the increase in traffic levels on the A54, A530 and A533 within Middlewich will 
cause key junctions to operate over capacity creating long delays. There is a risk that to avoid the congestion, 
drivers will increasingly use residential streets between A533 Booth Lane and A530 Nantwich Road and 
unclassified roads between A533 Booth Lane and A54 Holmes Chapel Road as alternative routes to mitigate 
delays. Re-assignment of traffic to roads that are not suitable would be expected to lead to a reduction in 
road safety for all categories or users. The specific safety hazards for pedestrians and other non-motorised 
users associated with the narrow section of Lewin Street would be made worse with increases in traffic.  

1.2.7.7 Employment  

Local Plan Strategic Sites at Midpoint 18 and Brooks Lane will provide employment opportunities through 
the development of a range of uses including logistics, manufacturing, leisure and retail facilities, together 
with providing up to 200 houses. However, these sites cannot be fully developed without measures to 
enhance the road network.  

LPS 44 (Midpoint 18) is approaching the current limits of development capacity. Recent and current planning 
applications and consents leave no opportunities for significant further development on the accessible part 
of the site to the north of Cledford Lane. Without the Scheme the area of site south of Cledford Lane is 
inaccessible to anything other than light vehicles from existing roads and will remain undeveloped.  

LPS 43 (Brooks Lane) is land-locked by the Trent and Mersey Canal, the Sandbach to Northwich Rail Line 
and the Cledford Lime Beds, a Site of Biological Importance. Access to and from the site is constrained to 
be from the A54 Kinderton Street which suffers from significant congestion and is a cause of traffic queuing 
to leave the site. A worsening of existing traffic conditions will reduce the appeal of the site to developers. 

1.2.8 Objectives of the Scheme 

1.2.8.1 Strategic Review  

In 2015, the Acquiring Authority undertook a strategic review of the bypass which involved an assessment 
of a series of route options for delivery of an eastern bypass. This process involved a review of the strategic 
aims and objectives for the bypass and was undertaken in conjunction with key stakeholders. It was also 
informed by new and updated local, regional and national initiatives and took account of all Draft Local Plan 
Strategy objectives for Middlewich.  

Page 79



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 20 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

This process cumulated in the preparation of a Strategic Dimension for the Scheme which was adopted by 
the Acquiring Authority in May 2016, and which was used for route selection studies and in the selection of 
the preferred option for the Scheme.  

The Acquiring Authority’s primary aim in developing the Scheme was stated simply in the Strategic 
Dimension approved by Cabinet in May 2016 as ‘To deliver a scheme which functions as a bypass and 
delivers a long-term sustainable traffic solution for Middlewich’.  

Implicit within the primary aim were considerations relating to the quality of the provision and route standards, 
alleviation of traffic congestion on the local highway network, alleviation of road safety concerns on the local 
highway network and impacts on non-peak journeys in terms of distance travelled and time taken.  

In addition to functioning as a bypass, the Scheme was required to deliver positive outcomes with respect to 
10 key requirements that were identified through internal consultations within the Acquiring Authority.  

The requirements are listed below with additional narrative to give context:  

Fulfilling delivery of the Local Plan  

The bypass needed to be capable of enabling the delivery of the Local Plan with particular emphasis on the 
creation of employment through development of Midpoint 18 and other strategic sites, and housing 
commitments to support growth of the area.  

Delivery of further development opportunities  

The bypass needed to be capable of delivering or enabling development opportunities beyond those 
contained in the Local Plan thereby providing longer term growth benefits to Middlewich.  

Facilitation of High Growth City objectives associated with HS2 (Northern Gateway)  

High Growth City objectives associated with HS2 include the Northern Gateway which requires improved 
highway access to Crewe from M6 J18 to the north. The bypass needed to be a key component of the 
Northern Gateway.  

Facilitation of an east to west bypass (future strategic highway development)  

Whilst an east – west route is not current Council Policy, a more direct route from M6 J18 to Winsford 
Middlewich Road in the future may be desirable or even essential. The bypass route needed to facilitate, and 
no event hinder the future development of a strategic east-west link providing improved linkage between M6 
J18 and Winsford  

Connectivity with Cledford Lane  

Cledford Lane provides access to a number of properties to the east and west of the bypass, and whilst minor 
and non-strategic in nature, connectivity in each direction between the bypass and Cledford Lane was 
required.  

Delivery of a new railway station site for Middlewich  

A new railway station for Middlewich anticipated either within Midpoint 18 or in the Brooks Lane regeneration 
area will require highway access and the bypass needed be capable of delivering a suitable standard of 
access taking into consideration demands for park and ride and linkage for other modes of transport.  

Facilitating further rail opportunities  

Further rail opportunities associated with the chord line running from Sandbach to Northwich on the boundary 
of the Midpoint 18 site, associated with HS2 facilities (freight services relocation from Crewe), rail based 
manufacturing, and multi-modal facilities development were considered by virtue of the ability of the bypass 
to support any or all opportunities. The potential for effective highway linkage to the bypass is an essential 
enabler for rail-based development opportunities.  

Speed of delivery  

Speed of delivery of the scheme is of fundamental importance in relieving traffic congestion, alleviating road 
safety concerns and generating the benefits for Middlewich and Cheshire East associated with the Local 
Plan. Options were considered based upon the scale and complexity of works required as an indicator of 
anticipated time for implementation.  

 

 

Page 80



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 21 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

Environmental impacts  

Cumulative impacts from the scheme on habitats & species (including a nationally-significant population of 
lesser silver diving beetles) were considered based upon initial surveys and identified constraints.  

Cost and effectiveness of environmental mitigation  

Closely linked to environmental impacts are the mitigation works required and their cost effectiveness. Key 
determinants considered included impacts on watercourses, number of ponds impacted and degree of  

severance of species communities by the options, and hedgerow impacts based upon measurement of 
hedgerows lost and potential significance.  

All options fulfilled the strategic case requirements and an assessment process which enabled a Preferred 
Option to be selected.  

1.2.8.2 The Scheme Objectives  

The Scheme Objectives, formed from a refinement of the strategic case requirements, and as listed below, 
address the needs for the Scheme, for compliance with the broad objectives of the previous and current 
Cheshire East Local Transport Plans (current LTP adopted October 2019), and for specific access 
opportunities to maximise the benefits of The Scheme to Middlewich.  

• Relieve traffic congestion and reduce road safety concerns in the town centre;  

• Help deliver the Local Plan, to create opportunities for new business and employment in Middlewich;  

• Help deliver the Local Plan sites for new housing in Middlewich;  

• Help unlock more development opportunities in the future;  

• Provide suitable access to Cledford Lane and Booth Lane from the bypass;  

• Provide facilities for pedestrians and cyclists;  

• Reduce any negative environmental impacts of the scheme.  

1.2.8.3 How the Scheme Objectives are met  

Relieve traffic congestion and reduce road safety concerns in the town centre  

By providing a new route between the A54 Holmes Chapel Road east of Middlewich and A533 Booth Lane 
south of Middlewich, congestion through the town centre will be reduced by removing the proportion of traffic 
that currently uses the A533 to travel south towards Sandbach and Crewe or north from Crewe and 
Sandbach. This is estimated from modelling outputs to be circa 30% reduction of the total traffic through the 
Middlewich town centre.  

The traffic will divert onto the Scheme which will form a quicker and more direct route with fewer junctions 
and higher speed limits.  

Removal of this traffic from the total passing through the town centre will enable existing junctions to operate 
within capacity removing the causes of congestion.  

The Scheme will provide a suitable route for HGV traffic enabling it to avoid the narrow sections of road on 
Lewin Street improving safety for all road users,  but particularly for pedestrians.  

 

Help deliver the Local Plan, to create opportunities for new business and employment in Middlewich  

The Scheme will:  

• Provide access to the remaining areas of LPS 44 (Midpoint 18) located to the south of Cledford Lane 
and, therefore, enable development of the full site allocation.  

• Reduce congestion on A54 Kinderton Street within the vicinity of the junction with Brooks Lane 
releasing capacity in the highway network to support the redevelopment of LPS 43 (Brooks Lane).  

• Provide improved access to the former RHM Foods ‘Bisto’ Site for redevelopment and, therefore, 
increase its attractiveness to occupiers and developers.  

 

Page 81



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 22 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

Help deliver the Local Plan sites for new housing in Middlewich  

LPS 42 (Glebe Farm) and LPS 45 (Warmingham Lane) are located to the south of Middlewich. Delivery of 
the bypass will reduce traffic congestion on the adjacent section of A533 Booth Lane and provide the sites 
with access to a high standard route to the M6. Traffic wishing to head west towards Winsford and Chester 
will benefit from improved journey times through Middlewich town centre resulting from reduced congestion.  

Both sites submitted outline planning applications which were recommended for approval subject to S106 
agreements ahead of DfT approval of the Outline Business Case for the bypass. Following approval, each 
application has been consented with developers having agreed terms for the S106 agreements, and Glebe 
Farm currently has reserved matters and discharge of planning conditions applications pending.  

The creation of employment at Midpoint 18 and Brooks Lane would increase the demand for new housing in 
Middlewich.  

Help unlock more development opportunities in the future  

Key features of the bypass have been designed to maximise the potential for future connectivity with the 
A530 via the proposed southern link and the creation of an alternative route to Winsford (avoiding Middlewich 
town centre).  

A southern link would provide high standard highway access to land which is currently inaccessible and 
would promote the possibility of further development to the south of Middlewich beyond the current Local 
Plan. Development of a southern link is currently at Strategic Outline Business Case stage and is being 
studied collaboratively by the Council and Cheshire West & Chester Council, with support from the Cheshire 
and Warrington Local Enterprise Partnership.  

Provide suitable access to Cledford Lane and Booth Lane from the bypass  

The Scheme will connect with Cledford Lane via a roundabout junction enabling east-west access. Access 
from the west will enable traffic from the Council’s Environmental Hub site and from the adjacent British Salt 
site on Cledford Lane to access the Scheme directly further reducing traffic on the A533 and through the 
town centre.  

Booth Lane will connect with the Scheme via a roundabout junction, providing a high standard of connectivity. 
A new bridge will be constructed over the Trent and Mersey Canal future proofing the route against long term 
structural deterioration of the existing bridge over the canal.  

Provide facilities for pedestrians and cyclists  

A 3m wide dual use cycleway footway will be created on the western side of the bypass over its full length 
and carefully connected to existing facilities at each end of the Scheme to provide a high standard of facility 
for pedestrians and cyclists.  

Improvements will also be undertaken on Cledford Lane to segregate pedestrians and cyclists from vehicular 
traffic and strengthening its function as part of Regional Cycle Network Route 71.  

Mitigate any negative environmental impacts of the Scheme  

Whilst it is more of a key requirement than an objective in the truest sense, the environmental impacts have 
been carefully assessed and following initial screening and scoping a full Environmental Impact Assessment 
was undertaken for the scheme with the production of an Environmental Statement as part of the planning 
application.  

Where significant impacts to ecological features have been identified, additional mitigation measures to 
avoid, reduce or compensate for such impacts have been identified and will be implemented to address the 
impacts. The effects of habitat loss and direct mortality on species will be mitigated by:  

• Creation of alternative habitat areas, including new ponds for Lesser Silver Water Beetle and toads;  

• Financial contribution to the work of the Cheshire Barn Owl Group to support conservation of the 
species remote from the scheme;  

• Creation of bat hop overs, and the provision of bat boxes;  

• Creation of a reptile connectivity corridor;  

• Mammal tunnels installed under the road;  

• Inclusion of mammal ledges within culverts;  

Page 82



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 23 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

• The installation of nest boxes for Kingfisher; and  

• The installation of temporary and permanent badger fencing in key locations.  

The areas of habitat creation and enhancement will be subject to continued monitoring and management to 
ensure they are successful. After 15 years it is anticipated that residual impacts to all the important ecological 
features identified above would be neutral once habitat creation works have had time to establish and mature.  

The Scheme provides a net biodiversity gain through onsite mitigation and habitat creation on land contained 
within the CPO and forming part of the planning consent. In the event that the Scheme landtake can be 
reduced by way of the section 73 consent being granted, the Scheme will provide a minimum of 10% net 
biodiversity gain through offsite mitigation, agreed with the Cheshire Wildlife Trust.  

Other environmental mitigation that will be included in the scheme includes extensive landscaping to reduce 
visual impacts and discrete lengths of acoustic fencing to mitigate noise impacts.  

 
1.2.9 Strategic Benefits 

The implementation of a bypass at this point in the Strategic Road Network (SRN) will produce large strategic 
benefits as there will be an overall improvement to journey times and delay in and around Middlewich.  

The Middlewich Eastern Bypass will also better link Middlewich to the proposed HS2 Hub station at Crewe 
which will improve access to the strategic rail network as well as facilitating growth in the Northern Gateway 
Development Zone around Crewe and improving access to the motorway network. 

1.2.10 Strategic Benefits & Policy Considerations 

The Middlewich Eastern Bypass also strongly aligns with and furthers the objectives and priorities contained 
in local, sub-regional and national policies and plans: 

1.2.10.1 Local Policy: 

• This scheme is integral to facilitating employment-led growth in Middlewich as envisaged in Cheshire 
East's Local Plan. 

• It is explicitly identified in the Local Plan and Infrastructure Delivery Plan as a project to relieve 
congestion. 

• It strongly supports the Local Transport Plan objectives to reduce congestion, improve reliability and 
support growth. 

1.2.10.2 Sub-Regional Policy: 

•  Aligned with the Cheshire and Warrington Strategic Economic Plan by acting as a key enabler for 
delivering growth. 

• Improves connections between Mid Cheshire and the areas of Crewe and Greater Manchester. 

1.2.10.3 National Policy: 

• This scheme encourages economic growth and addresses congestion - aligning with priorities in the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

• Supports aims in DfT's Transport Investment Strategy to improve journey times, alleviate congestion, 
and facilitate housing and employment growth. 

• Contributes to development of the Northern Powerhouse and objectives for strategic transport 
networks identified by Transport for the North. 

 
1.2.11 Key Stakeholders Views and Requirements 

1.2.11.1 Local Petition 

There is overwhelming, strong support, of long standing, from the residents and local businesses for the 
bypass. The support has grown significantly over the years as the congestion in Middlewich has worsened. 
The last attempt to construct the Scheme was in 2008 and was developer-led and there were earlier attempts 
by Cheshire County Council to construct a bypass. Evidence of residents’ support was demonstrated by a 
local petition to “build the bypass first” which collected 2201 signatures in 2015. 

Page 83



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 24 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

1.2.11.2 MP Support 

The local Member of Parliament has been particularly active in supporting the Scheme. Fiona Bruce MP 
raised the need for the bypass twice in the House of Commons during the development of the project. On 
the second occasion speaking for a full ten minutes.  

At OBC stage a letter of support for the scheme was provided by the then Chancellor of the Exchequer 
George Osborne. 

Local MP support for and interest in the scheme remains high.   

1.2.11.3 Stakeholders 

 
The project team have had close liaison with relevant councils and groups in the area in order to  
consider their views.  
 
The main stakeholder groups for the Middlewich Eastern Bypass are:  

• Cheshire East Council – CEC are overseeing and are responsible for this scheme.  

• Cheshire West & Chester Council – neighbouring local authority whose boundary with Cheshire East 
is a short distance from the edge of Middlewich town.  

• Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise Partnership – Aim to promote growth in the region and 
determine local economic priorities.  

• Local community groups – Public consultation events were held in August and September 2016 and 
March and April 2018, in order to inform the preferred route. A leaflet which outlined the scheme 
objectives, Bypass options and comparisons and details of how to provide feedback were posted to 
stakeholders as well as each household within Middlewich. The stakeholders included any 
organisation or body that was identified who may be affected by the scheme or who was thought to 
have an active interest.  

• Local employers – The bypass will benefit employers, through enhanced opportunity from relived 
congestion. Employers may also be involved in consultation.  

• Local developers – The scheme is of interest to developers of other projects, as access to the 
scheme in future may affect other projects.  

• Town and Parish Councillors – As locally elected representatives, they are a point of contact for local 
residents who live near the proposed routes of the bypass. The consultation process began in 
August/September 2016 and continues with regular briefings and updates.  
 
 
 

 
1.2.12 Options 

Comprehensive assessment criteria were established covering all critical factors - strategic, economic, 
commercial, financial, management and deliverability aspects. Both quantitative and qualitative appraisal 
was undertaken based on these criteria.  

Two leading options - Alternative 1A and Preferred 2A - were shortlisted and analysed in depth as part of the 
public consultation exercise. Further refinements responding to consultation feedback have led to Option 2A 
being conclusively confirmed as the Preferred Route, with Alternative 1A retained as a sub-optimal fallback 
option. 

 
The Preferred Option involves a new single carriageway road constructed to current standards, bypassing 
Middlewich from east to south. It connects the A54 and A533 strategic roads via a new junction at Pochin 
Way, avoiding the heavily congested town centre. The route maximises local benefits while minimising 
environmental impacts through avoiding key constraints. 

 

 

  

Page 84



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 25 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

2. Economic Dimension 

 

2.1 Introduction  

The Economic Dimension presents the extent to which the Middlewich Eastern Bypass (MEB) would be 
beneficial to the UK economy and whether it represents Value for Money (VfM). The economic case has 
been prepared in accordance with the DfT’s Transport Analysis Guidance (TAG) documents. TAG is the 
guidance that is used to assess transport schemes in accordance with the requirements of HM Treasury’s 
Green Book, which is used across government for investment decisions through identification, selection and 
appraisal of options.  

In line with HM Treasury’s appraisal requirements, the impacts considered are not limited to those directly 
impacting on the measured economy, nor to those which can be monetised. The economic, environmental, 
social and distributional impacts of a proposal are all examined, using qualitative, quantitative and monetised 
information. In assessing Value for Money, all of these are consolidated to determine the extent to which a 
proposal’s benefits outweigh its costs. 

The economic appraisal is discussed under the following headings:  

• Methodology  

• Assumptions  

• Scheme Cost for Economic Assessment  

• Assessment of Monetised Benefits  

• Assessment of Non-Monetised Benefits  

• Assessment of Distributional Impacts  

• Assessment of Wider Economic Benefits  

• Value for Money Assessment  

• Conclusions  

2.2 Methodology  

2.2.1 Overview  

Industry standard approaches have been used to calculate and define the relative benefits of the MEB 
scheme using DfT approved software packages, namely TUBA and COBA-LT, using the output from the 
SATURN traffic model and DIADEM Variable Demand Model (VDM).  

The Value for Money assessment is a staged process which includes appraisal of the scheme’s economic, 
environmental, social, distributional and fiscal impacts using qualitative, quantitative and monetised 
information.  

It starts with the assessment of monetised costs and benefits and calculation of the Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) 
of the Scheme. The next stage is to capture and analyse those impacts which cannot be monetised but can 
be presented as qualitative information. Finally, it looks at how the impacts of the scheme are distributed 
across different social groups - the Distributional Impacts assessment. The processes used for the Economic 
Assessment for the MEB scheme are outlined in Figure 2.1 below.  

 

 

Page 85



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 26 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

 
Figure 2.1 Economic Assessment Process 

 

2.2.2 Assessment of Monetised Impacts and Costs  

In line with DfT guidance, Value for Money assessment starts with the calculation of those impacts that can 
be expressed in monetary terms. These monetised impacts are derived and summed to generate a Present 
Value of Benefits (PVB).  

The total costs are also summed to construct the Present Value of Costs (PVC).  

The monetised scheme benefits and costs are used to calculate a Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) – that is the 
amount of benefit being delivered for every £1 of cost. The BCR is calculated by dividing the Present Value 
of Benefits (PVB) by the Present Value of Cost (PVC).  

The summary of the monetised information along with the BCR is presented in the standard Assessment of 
Monetised Costs and Benefits (AMCB).  

The following monetised impacts have been included in the economic assessment and are presented in the 
AMCB Table:  

• TEE - Travel time benefits as a result of the scheme;  

• Vehicle Operating Cost;  

• Accidents;  

• Greenhouse Gases emissions;  

• Air Quality and Noise;  

• Changes in Indirect Taxes;  

• TEE - Delays during Maintenance; and  

• TEE - Delays during Construction (N.B. This is always a dis-benefit and is therefore recorded as a 
negative benefit). 

2.2.3 Assessment of Non-Monetised Impacts  

The second stage of the Value for Money assessment builds on the initial monetised costs and benefits and 
considers qualitative and quantitative information on those impacts which cannot be monetised and how 
these contribute to the Value for Money of the scheme.  

The impacts which cannot be monetised, but which have been appraised for the scheme and given an overall 
qualitative assessment score are listed below:  

Page 86



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 27 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

• Regeneration Benefits;  

• Impacts on Landscape;  

• Impacts on Townscape;  

• Impacts on Historic Environment;  

• Impacts on Biodiversity;  

• Impacts on Water Environment;  

• Impacts on Physical Activity;  

• Impacts on Journey Quality;  

• Impacts on Security;  

• Impacts on Access to services;  

• Impacts on Affordability; and  

• Impacts on Severance.  

The assessment of non-monetised impacts has been undertaken in accordance with the methodology 
recommended within the relevant TAG units.  

The results of the assessment of non-monetised impacts have been summarised within the Appraisal 
Summary Table (AST).  

2.2.4 Assessment Tools  

In accordance with guidelines outlined in TAG, the following industry standard software packages have been 
used to conduct the economic appraisal:  

• Transport User Benefit Appraisal (TUBA) - Version 1.9.17 – primarily used to derive travel time and 
Vehicle Operating Cost (VOC) benefits and to assess the economic effects of construction.  

• Cost and Benefit to Accidents – Light Touch (COBA-LT) - Version 2013.2 - used to derive the 
accident benefits.  

Table 2-1 below, indicates the methods used to assess each of the elements.  

Element of Assessment Assessment Method 

Travel Time Benefits TUBA 

VOC Benefits TUBA 

Indirect Tax TUBA 

Accident Benefits COBA-LT 

Maintenance Delay Benefits QUADRO 

Construction Delay Dis-benefits TUBA 

Environmental Impacts 
(Air Quality, Noise, Greenhouse Gases) 

TAG Worksheets 

Table 2-1 Approach to Elements of Economic Assessment 

2.3 Assumptions  

2.3.1 Overview  

This section summarises the key assumptions supporting the Value for Money assessment. This includes 
the assumptions set out in TAG as well as further assumptions specific to the MEB scheme.  

2.3.2 Traffic Model  

The impact of the proposed scheme is based on the differences between forecasts of the Do Minimum 
(without scheme) and Do Something (with scheme) scenarios. These forecasts have been developed within 
the MEB Traffic Model which consists of a SATURN Highway Model and DIADEM Variable Demand Model 
(VDM).  

Full details of the MEB Traffic Model and the DIADEM VDM can be found in the Local Model Validation 
Report and the Traffic Forecasting Report.  

2.3.3 Time Periods  

The following time periods were modelled in the traffic model:  

• Morning (AM) weekday peak hour between 07:45 and 08:45;  

Page 87



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 28 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

• An average inter-peak weekday hour between 10:00-16:00; and 

• Evening (PM) weekday peak hour between 17:00 and 18:00.  

Appropriate assumptions have been made regarding the annualisation of these benefits (i.e. converting from 
one-hour traffic models to produce benefits for a full year). Further details of the use of the traffic model to 
inform the economic assessment can be found in the scheme’s Economic Assessment Report (EAR).  

The weekday off-peak (19:00-07:00), weekends and Bank Holidays have not been modelled as those periods 
would not add significant benefits to the appraisal due to lower levels of traffic. Excluding the off-peak and 
weekend benefits ensures a conservative approach and is consistent with latest TAG guidance, which 
recommends not including benefits from non-modelled periods.  

2.3.4 User Classes  

As per TAG guidance, the traffic model splits the traffic flows into different vehicle categories and different 
journey purposes for each modelled year. The future year matrices consist of the following user classes:  

• User Class 1: Cars Commuting.  

• User Class 2: Cars Business.  

• User Class 3: Cars Other.  

• User Class 4: Light Goods Vehicles (LGVs).  

• User Class 5: Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs). 

Where possible this has allowed benefits to be calculated individually for separate journey purposes as 
shown in TEE and AMCB tables.  

2.3.5 Appraisal Period  

In line with TAG guidance, the impacts of the scheme have been assessed over the 60-year period after the 
scheme opens. After the final forecast year, the results of the model have been extrapolated to cover the 
whole appraisal period of 60 years, but with no further traffic growth assumed beyond the final forecast year.  

2.3.6 Discounting and Units of Accounts  

Costs and benefits occur in different years throughout the assessment period, e.g. the scheme development 
and construction costs occur before the scheme opens, whilst the benefits occur over the DfT standard 
appraisal period of 60 years.  

In addition, it is considered that benefits that accrue now are considered to be more valuable than those that 
accrue further into the future. Consequently, in order to compare benefits and costs it is essential that they 
are all converted to a common base and a common value (known as the Present Value Year).  

The process used is called discounting and the Present Value Year, as per DfT guidance, is currently 2010. 
Discounting is undertaken internally within the software programmes that have been used, using the standard 
DfT discount rates of 3.5% per year for the first 30 years of appraisal and 3.0% per year thereafter.  

The unit of account must also be consistent between costs and benefits in order to allow comparison between 
the two. There are two different units of accounts:  

• Market price unit of account – this refers to the prices paid by consumers for goods and services and 
therefore includes indirect taxation (e.g., VAT); and  

• Factor cost unit of account – this excludes indirect taxation. Prices paid by Government bodies are 
usually quoted in the factor cost unit of account as any tax paid is recovered by the Government and 
is therefore ignored.  

While scheme benefits are calculated in market prices, scheme costs are usually quoted as factor costs. The 
scheme costs must therefore be adjusted to market prices for economic assessment purposes – this is done 
within the economic assessment software.  

2.3.7 Inflation  

Costs can also be in different price bases. To enable comparisons to be made between such costs and to 
take account of the effect of inflation all monetary values in the calculation of costs and benefits are adjusted 
so that they are all in a common price base of 2010.  

2.4 Scheme Cost for Economic Assessment  

Page 88



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 29 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

Along with the estimation of benefits, the costs are also required for the economic assessment of the scheme.  

Costs can be defined as the total amount of money spent on constructing and maintaining the scheme. The 
costs are therefore referred to as Scheme costs and Maintenance costs:  

• Scheme costs are construction costs, land costs, preparation costs (planning and designing the 
scheme) and supervision costs during the scheme construction.  

• Maintenance costs are the cost of people, machinery and materials required to maintain the highway 
network. These costs are also known as the Capital Costs of Maintenance.  

Base costs for construction, land / property, preparation / administration and supervision, including 
adjustment for risk are based on the scheme design.  

When the scheme is in place, the bypass will require additional maintenance that would not occur if the 
scheme was not built. Typical road maintenance profiles with the scheme in place were assumed. The cost 
of these maintenance activities was then derived based on Part 2, Chapter 4 of the QUADRO manual.  

Prior to using the base scheme costs in the Economic Assessment, as per DfT guidance TAG (Unit A1-2), 
the base costs have to be adjusted to account for measured risks and optimism bias.  

A risk assessment was completed collectively by Cheshire East Council and Jacobs and Balfour Beatty as 
the Councils Contractor. The risks include all types of risk which could affect the cost of the scheme such as 
political decisions, land acquisition issues and legislative delays. For each risk, an estimate was made of the 
likelihood of the risk occurring and the associated financial impact. Based on the risk assessment, a risk 
allowance has been included within the scheme costs.  

In accordance with DfT guidance an optimism bias uplift factor of 3% has been applied to the scheme costs 
for the purposes of the economic assessments that follow. This is in line with a highways scheme at the Full 
Business Case stage.  

In line with TAG requirements, any ‘sunk’ costs that have already been spent have been excluded from the 
costs used in economic assessment.  

The undiscounted outturn scheme costs with risk and 3% optimism bias are presented in Table 2-2 below.  

Cost Element Cost £m Risk Inflation 
Sub-Total 
Incl Risk & 

Inflation 

Optimism 
Bias (3%) 

Total 

Construction £47.1m £5.3m £2.1m £54.5m £1.6 £56.1m 

Land £19.2m £19.2m £0.6m £19.8m 

Preparation £15.1m £15.1m £0.5m £15.6m 

Supervision £3.5m £3.5m £0.1m £3.6m 

Developer Contributions -£22.8m -£22.8m -£0.7m -£23.5m 

Maintenance £3.5m £3.5m £0.1m £3.6m 

Total £65.6m £5.3m £2.1m £73.0m £2.2m £75.2m 

Table 2-2 Undiscounted Outturn Scheme Costs by Cost Element 

2.4.1 Maintenance Costs  

Details of the likely maintenance costs with and without the scheme in place are provided within the Financial 
Dimension.  

The capital cost of maintenance is the cost of people, machinery and materials to maintain the new highway 
network.  

With the scheme in place, the Bypass will require additional maintenance that would not occur if the scheme 
was not built.  

Typical road maintenance profiles with the scheme in place were used. The cost of these maintenance 
activities was then derived based on Part 2, Chapter 4 of the QUADRO manual.  

Page 89



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 30 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

2.4.2 Present Value of Costs (PVC)  

The costs used in scheme appraisal differ from the outturn costs used for funding decisions, as reported in 
the Financial Dimension. Costs for scheme appraisal are adjusted to the DfT standard present value year 
(2010) to allow direct comparison with the monetised benefits and are in calendar years.  

The outturn scheme costs were entered into TUBA to be estimated over the 60-year appraisal period, 
converted to 2010 prices, discounted to 2010, and converted to the market price unit of account. A summary 
of the Present Value of Costs (PVC) output by TUBA is provided in Table 2-3. 

Category Discounted Costs (£m) 

Operating and Maintenance Costs 0.62 

Investment Costs (including capital costs of 
Maintenance) 

49.85 

Developer Contributions -11.34 

Total PVC 39.13 

Table 2-3 Present Value Costs 

2.5 Assessment of Monetised Benefits  

2.5.1 Introduction  

As shown in Figure 2.1 several elements of a scheme’s overall benefits can be monetised. This section of 
the report describes and summarises each element of the monetised benefits which inform the Benefit to 
Cost Ratio. Further details of the monetised economic assessment are provided in the scheme’s Economic 
Assessment Report.  

2.5.2 TEE Benefits as a Result of the Scheme  

The Transport Economic Efficiency (TEE) benefits consist of four key components, set out below and as 
summarised in Figure 3.1:  

• Travel time savings and Vehicle Operating Costs (VOC) benefits as a result of the scheme;  

• Impacts on private sector providers and other business impacts;  

• Travel time and Vehicle Operating Costs (VOC) dis-benefits as a result of construction activities and  

• Travel time and Vehicle Operating Costs (VOC) benefits as a result of maintenance activities.  

TEE Travel time savings and VOC benefits as a result of the scheme are calculated with the use of TUBA 
software and normally constitute the largest proportion of the scheme benefits.  

TUBA takes trip, time and distance matrices from the traffic forecast model for each future year, vehicle type 
and journey purpose (i.e., each User Class) and each time period and calculates travel time saving benefits. 
It does this by comparing the travel times in the Do-Minimum (without the MEB scheme) scenario with those 
in the Do- Something (with MEB scheme) scenario. It then applies monetary values (known as Values of 
Time) to derive the monetary benefits of those time savings over the standard 60-year appraisal period.  

TUBA also calculates Vehicle Operating Cost (VOC) changes which occur over the standard 60-year 
appraisal period due to changes in costs associated with such items as fuel, maintenance, and wear and 
tear. These occur due to changes in speed and distance when the scheme is implemented and can include 
both positive and negative values depending upon the scheme’s impact upon traffic flows and routing.  

The diagram in Figure 2.2 below shows the process for the derivation of the TUBA benefits.  

Full details of TUBA assessment undertaken for the MEB scheme can be found in the Economic 
Assessment Report. 

Page 90



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 31 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 
Figure 2.2 TUBA Assessment 

The results of the TUBA assessment show that the MEB will deliver significant benefits from journey time 
savings, amounting to £46.66m over the 60-year appraisal period.  

Assessment of the TUBA benefits show that, 59% of the benefits are associated with Business trips,18% 
from Commuting and 23% from other.  

2.5.3 Changes in Indirect Tax  

Indirect taxes relate to the taxation levied on goods and services and therefore include excises, duties and 
VAT. TUBA calculates the changes in Indirect Taxes as a result of changes in speed and distance. These 
changes affect the amount of fuel being used and therefore affect the amount of taxes the Government 
receives.  

According to TAG guidance, changes in indirect tax revenues are included as part of the Present Value of 
Benefits (PVB). The change in Indirect Taxes (as a monetary value in 2010 prices discounted to 2010) is 
therefore included within the AMCB and PA tables and forms part of the BCR.  

The results output from TUBA for the entire study area predict a decrease in indirect tax revenues of £0.8m. 
This is added to the benefits, as shown in the AMCB Table.  

2.5.4 Accident Benefits  

The MEB scheme is expected to transfer traffic from local roads through Middlewich to a modern high quality 
single carriageway road, thus providing significant accident savings.  

In accordance with TAG, the DfT’s COBA-LT software was used to derive accident benefits of the scheme. 
COBA-LT compares the predicted numbers of accidents with and without the scheme and converts them 
into monetary values by multiplying the numbers of accidents in each scenario by their monetised costs.  

The diagram in Figure 2.3 shows schematically the methodology for COBA-LT assessment.  

Page 91



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 32 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

 
Figure 2.3 COBA-LT Assessment Methodology 

 

With the scheme in place, less traffic travels through Middlewich as the proposed Bypass (new road designed 
to modern standards) is being used as an alternative and this should result in a reduction in accidents and 
therefore an accident benefit. However, the introduction of the scheme results in an increase in traffic on 
other roads, which can increase and decrease flows on existing roads away from the scheme, which could 
in turn result in an increased or decreased number of accidents away from the scheme. In summary, there 
is therefore a mixture of increases and decreases in accidents.  

The accident results for the wider study area show that there would be an overall decrease in accidents. 
Table 2-4 below shows the decrease in the predicted number of accidents and casualties over the 60-year 
appraisal period for the wider study area. The monetary value of this overall benefit would be £x.xm (PVB, 
2010 prices, discounted to 2010).  

Total Casualties Saved by Scheme 

Fatal 2 

Serious 17 

Slight 149 
Table 2-4 Summary of Accident Benefits 

Overall, the safety case for the scheme is positive and many links on the existing network are assessed to 
experience a decrease in accidents as a result of the scheme.  

To some degree there will always be a need to trade off enhanced connectivity to the Major Routes Network 
with the safety risks of making these connections. It is the interactions between these new links and roads 
of different characteristics, compared to the base case, that is expressed by the COBA-LT software in its 
assessment of safety benefits. Based on probabilities and accident rates, where high speed / high volume 
roads interact there will be an enhanced risk of more serious / even fatal accidents.  

However, COBA-LT takes only limited account of the detailed design and safety characteristics of the 
proposed MEB. It is reasonable to expect that an awareness of this enhanced safety concern will be 
considered further during detailed design and safety audits.  

2.5.5 Journey Time Reliability 

The term reliability is referred as a variation in journey times that individuals are unable to predict. Such 
variation could come from congestion or from non-recurring events, such as accidents. It excludes 
predictable variation relating to varying levels of demand by time of day, day of week, and seasonal effects 
which travellers are assumed to be aware of. 

Page 92



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 33 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

TAG provides guidance for modelling and monetisation of changes in journey time reliability which has been 
followed for the assessment of the scheme. 

2.5.6 Environmental – Greenhouse Gases (Assessment in progress at time of writing for this Draft 
of the FBC) 

Changes in traffic flows caused by the introduction of the scheme will result in changes in greenhouse gas 
emissions from vehicles due to changes in flows, speeds and distance travelled.  

The standard Greenhouse Gases Spreadsheet from TAG Unit A3 has been used to calculate the changes 
in carbon dioxide emissions (tonnes) caused by the scheme, over the duration of the appraisal period.  

The results show that the monetary value of the change in carbon dioxide emissions over the 60-year 
appraisal period is a dis-benefit of £-x.xm (PVB, 2010 prices, discounted to 2010).  

2.5.7 Environmental – Noise (Assessment in progress at time of writing for this Draft of the FBC) 

Changes in traffic flows can also result in changes in noise, depending on whether properties are located 
adjacent to affected roads or not. The standard Noise Worksheet from TAG Unit A3 has been used to 
calculate the change in noise levels during the life of the scheme, the change in number of people ‘annoyed’ 
and the monetary value of those changes (PVB).  

The results output from the Noise assessment show that there is predicted to be a dis-benefit from increased 
noise levels, equating to £-x.xm over the 60-year appraisal period.  

2.5.8 Environmental – Air Quality (Assessment in progress at time of writing Assessed for this 
Draft of the FBC) 

The likely effects on air quality once the scheme is in place relate predominantly to the changes in traffic 
emissions for vehicles travelling along affected roads in the study area. The standard Air Quality Worksheet 
from TAG Unit A3 has been used to calculate the impact of the scheme on local air quality, regional air quality 
and the economic valuation of air pollution over the 60-year appraisal period.  

In terms of local air quality there will be an increase in PM10 and NO2 concentrations as a result of the scheme 
resulting in a monetary dis-benefit of £-x.xm. 

2.6 Assessment of Non-Monetised Benefits  

2.6.1 Overview  

This section summarises the non-monetised impacts of the scheme on the environment, as well as the social 
impacts. The non-monetised environmental impacts include Landscape, Townscape, Historic Environment, 
Biodiversity and Water Environment.  

The social impacts include Physical Activity, Journey Quality, Security, Access to Services, Affordability and 
Severance. The impacts described in this section are not typically monetised and have therefore been 
assessed using quantitative and qualitative information and they form part of the scheme’s AST.  

2.6.2 Economy - Regeneration  

An initial assessment identified under-performing geographic areas with a priority for regeneration, termed 
Regeneration Areas (RAs). It concluded that the transport problems and issues experienced in Middlewich 
are not a major barrier to unemployed RA residents gaining employment.  

The principal reason for this is the large distance between the identified RAs and the scheme. The scheme 
is therefore unlikely to result in increased employment for RA residents or increased levels of business within 
RAs. In this narrow context, regeneration can therefore be regarded as a neutral impact. However, this 
assessment of regeneration has a specific and narrow focus.  

The conclusion of a neutral impact does not consider the significant economic benefits of the scheme 
identified elsewhere in the assessment, or the scheme's effect on other regeneration objectives such as the 
quality of the built environment.  

Page 93



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 34 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

2.6.3 Environmental – Landscape  

The impact assessment on landscape was undertaken using the standard Landscape Worksheet from TAG 
Unit A3. The outcome of the assessment was that the scheme would adversely affect the landscape and 
result in a loss of vegetation, including Ancient Woodland and Important Hedgerows, topographical changes, 
a reduction in tranquillity and visual amenity, and the interruption of field pattern and hedgerow boundaries.  

2.6.4 Environmental – Townscape  

Townscape covers the physical and social characteristics of the built and non-built urban environment and 
the way in which people perceive those characteristics. The methodology used for appraising the impact of 
the scheme on townscape is based on a qualitative approach and uses the standard Townscape Worksheet 
from TAG Unit A3.  

The results of the Townscape impact appraisal show that the proposed scheme would not directly impact on 
the existing townscape elements and features, but there would be a slight adverse effect from a reduction in 
tranquillity and visual interaction with the proposed scheme in the adjacent open landscape to the west.  

2.6.5 Environmental – Historic Environment  

The Historic Environment comprises buildings and sites of architectural and historic significance. The impact 
of the scheme on historic environment has been appraised qualitatively using the standard TAG Worksheet.  

The requirement for the preservation in situ of a Scheduled Monument would result in a Slight Adverse impact 
on its setting.  

There would be physical impacts on four undesignated archaeological sites, one undesignated historic 
building, and five undesignated Historic Landscape Types. The remaining impacts are on setting, including 
four Grade II Listed Buildings, and nine undesignated historic buildings.  

Predicted impacts are of major to negligible magnitude. The potential for the presence of unknown 
archaeological remains is considered to be medium. Measures to mitigate the impact on the Scheduled 
Monument by preservation in situ have been agreed in principle with Historic England.  

2.6.6 Environmental – Biodiversity  

The assessment results show that following the implementation of the mitigation measures that are outlined 
in the ES to be included in the CEMP, it has been determined that there will be no adverse effects arising 
from the scheme, with slight beneficial effects expected due to the provision of new habitats and 
enhancement of existing notable and protected habitats. This is true for species-rich broadleaved woodland, 
species-rich hedgerows, species-rich hedgerows with trees, semi-improved neutral grassland, ponds and 
marshy grassland. Despite the length of time required for broadleaved woodland and scattered trees to 
become ecological established within the landscape, the replacement ratio was deemed substantial to nullify 
the adverse effects in the short- term.  

The species-specific mitigation measures (e.g. mammal tunnels, bat hop-overs and exclusion fencing) 
incorporated into the construction design, are deemed adequate to safeguard the favourable conservation 
status of notable and protected species within 500 m of the Scheme.  

2.6.7 Environmental – Water Environment  

The Water Environment Appraisal Worksheet has been completed to assess the potential impact of the 
scheme for different water environment features. The results show that impacts of the Middlewich Bypass 
and Junction Improvements are predicted to have a neutral impact on the water environment in the longer 
term assuming the adoption of appropriate mitigation measures and adherence to regulations and guidance.  

2.6.8 Social – Physical Activity  

TAG states that research shows a correlation between physical inactivity and the risk of all-cause mortality. 
A qualitative and quantitative assessment has been undertaken for the MEB scheme in line with the TAG 
guidance (Unit A4.1), which is summarised in the Physical Activity assessment worksheet (Appendix ABC).  

The assessment concluded that overall NMUs would experience a slight beneficial impact with regard to 
Physical Activity as a result of the scheme due to the new facilities provided and slightly increased journey 
times for users of some of the Public Rights of Way (PRoW).  

Page 94



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 35 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

2.6.9 Social – Journey Quality  

Journey Quality depends on a number of factors all of which have been qualitatively assessed in line with 
TAG, with and without the scheme, to make a judgement on the impact of the scheme on journey quality. 
These factors include traveller care, traveller views, traveller stress as well as additional sub-factors.  

It is concluded that overall, there will be an improvement in journey quality for vehicle users and NMUs due 
to improved connectivity, improvement in NMU facilities as well as traveller care. There will also be a 
reduction in traveller frustration due to a decrease in traveller stress, route uncertainty and fear of accidents. 
The scheme would have a neutral effect on travellers’ views.   

2.6.10 Social – Security  

The scheme is not expected to have a significant impact on security. Overall, the assessment concluded that 
the scheme is considered to have a Neutral impact on Security.  

2.6.11 Social – Access to Services  

The scheme will not impact the provision of public transport services. The scheme may improve punctuality 
on bus routes within the Middlewich area, however this impact is unlikely to have a significant impact on 
accessibility. The scheme does not necessitate the relocation of any essential health or education services. 
Overall, the assessment concluded that the scheme is considered to have Neutral impact on Access to 
Services.  

2.6.12 Social – Affordability  

The scheme does not propose any changes to any form of Public Transport and its associated fare structures. 
However, the proposed scheme is expected to result in an increase in Vehicle Operating Costs. Overall, the 
impact is not considered significant. Overall, the assessment concluded that the scheme is considered to 
have Neutral impact on Affordability.  

2.6.13 Social – Severance  

Severance is defined within TAG as the separation of residents from community facilities and services 
caused by substantial changes in transport infrastructure or by changes in traffic flows. To understand the 
impact of the scheme on severance, the difference in the levels of severance in the with-scheme and without- 
scheme cases have been examined quantitatively and qualitatively. 

Overall, the scheme is considered to have a beneficial effect on community severance between Middlewich 
and the surrounding communities. The alternative provisions along the proposed scheme would provide 
increased access for NMUs and thus all people wishing to make pedestrian or cyclist’s movements will be 
able to do so.  

2.7 Distributional Impact Assessment  

The Distributional Impact (DI) assessment is designed to help understand the impacts of transport 
interventions on different groups of people, including those potentially more vulnerable to the effects of 
transport. Consideration of the Distributional Impacts of a transport scheme is a mandatory requirement of 
TAG. As per TAG Unit A4.2, the DI assessment requires the consideration of the following eight DI Indicators:  

• Noise  

• Air Quality  

• Accessibility  

• Security  

• Severance  

• User Benefits  

• Affordability  

• Accidents  

The full appraisal process is based on a three-step approach:  

• Step 1 – Screening Process  

• Step 2 – Assessment  

• Step 3 – Appraisal of Impacts  

Page 95



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 36 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

Step 1 identifies which of the eight DI indicators should proceed to Step 2, by assessing whether their impacts 
are either significant or concentrated. Step 1 indicated that for the MEB scheme, six of the DI indicators were 
found to fulfil the criteria to be taken to Step 2 of the assessment. Only Security and Accessibility were 
discounted during the initial screening process. The Distributional Impacts of Security and Accessibility were 
excluded for the following reasons:  

Security - the scheme does not propose any changes to public transport and thus the scheme's impact on 
Security is Neutral.  

Accessibility - the scheme will not impact the provision of public transport services. The scheme may improve 
punctuality on bus routes within the area; however, this impact is unlikely to have a significant impact on 
accessibility. The scheme does not necessitate the relocation of any essential health or education services 

For each of the remaining DI indicators, the Step 2 assessment was undertaken. This involved identifying 
vulnerable social groups within the area affected by the MEB scheme, including the identification of groups 
of people with different levels of income, based on national Indices of Deprivation at the Lower Super Output 
Area (LSOA) level.  

Using the national deprivation ranking (as a proxy for income), the LSOAs were divided into five quintiles. 
Income Group 1 represents the 20% most deprived LSOAs, whereas Income Group 5 represents the 20% 
least deprived LSOAs. The identified social groups and income segregation informed Step 3 (the full 
appraisal of impact) which assessed the impact of the scheme against the previously identified vulnerable 
groups.  

A summary of the Distributional Impacts for each indicator is provided in Table 2-5 and Table 2-6. 

 

Distributional impact of income 
deprivation Are the 

impacts 
distributed 

evenly? 

Key impacts – Qualitative statements 
1 (Most 

Deprived) 
(0 – 20%) 

2  
(20-
40%) 

3  
(40-
60%) 

4  
(60-
80%) 

5 (Least 
Deprived) 
(80-100%) 

User 
Benefits 

✓✓✓ ✓✓✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓ No 
The scheme provides user benefits across all 

income groups 

Noise - -    No 

The scheme provides noise disbenefits to all 
except the most deprived quintiles. The 

majority of people receiving a worsening in 
noise are in the least deprived income quintile. 

Air Quality 
NO2 

✓✓ ✓✓ ✓ ✓  No The scheme provides air quality (NO2 and 
PM10) benefits across all except the least 

deprived income quintile. The least deprived 
quintile receives a worsening in air quality. 

Air Quality 
PM10 

✓✓ ✓ ✓✓ ✓  No 

Affordability ✓✓✓  ✓ ✓  No 

The affordability benefits created by the 
scheme are split between positively affecting 
income quintiles 1, 3 and 4, and negatively 
affecting the remaining quintiles. Negative 
impacts arise due to small increases in fuel 

consumption and other vehicle operating costs, 
as people chose to transfer to the longer but 
quicker Middlewich Eastern Bypass for their 

journeys. 

Table 2-5 DI Appraisal – Income Groups 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 96



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 37 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 AST Entry 

 Social Groups User Groups  

 
 

Impact 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 
Y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 

C
a
re

rs
 

W
o
m

e
n
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 

B
M

E
 

P
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
s
 

C
y
c
lis

ts
 

M
o

to
r-

 

c
y
c
lis

ts
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 m

a
le

 

d
ri
v
e
rs

 

 
 

Qualitative statement 

Noise ✓ -        

 

Three schools would receive a 
decrease in noise, while one 
school would receive a minor 

increase. No impact expected to 
nursing homes. 

Air Quality 
NO2 

✓✓         

 

Children receive benefits in NO2 
levels at home in line with the 

overall population. Eleven 
schools would receive in 

improvement in NO2 levels, while 
two would experience a very 

slight deterioration. 

Air Quality 
PM10 

         

 

Children receive disbenefits in 
PM10 levels at home with the 

overall population. 

Accidents ✓ -     ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Small clusters of children, 
casualties have been identified 
on links which are expected to 
receive some accident benefit. 

Severance ✓✓ ✓✓   ✓✓  ✓✓ ✓✓   
All vulnerable groups are 

expected to receive similar 
reductions in severance. 

Table 2-6 DI Appraisal – Social Groups 

2.8 Assessment of Wider Economic Benefits  

2.8.1 Introduction  

In line with TAG, the monetised impacts included in the calculation of the scheme BCR do not include the 
effect of the wider economic impacts of the scheme, as measured by an assessment of the gross value 
added (GVA) growth unlocked by the scheme.  

However, given the nature and objectives of the MEB it was considered important that the economic 
assessment would to some extent capture the GVA impacts to demonstrate that the strategic objectives will 
be met.  

2.8.2 Gross Value Added (GVA) Benefits  

GVA measures the total value of goods and services; i.e., economic activity. In its simplest terms, it is 
therefore Gross Domestic Product (GDP) at a local/regional level.  

Transport acts as an enabler of growth by allowing additional jobs to be accommodated in a certain location 
thanks to enhanced transport links and transport capacity. This applies especially to areas suffering from 
congestion and insufficient transport links. These jobs are therefore not created by the transport scheme 
itself but are supported by the increase in accessibility facilitated by the scheme. The jobs are therefore (to 
varying proportions) dependent on the transport scheme. This GVA assessment aims to quantify the increase 
in GVA for the local economy as a result of these additional jobs.  

The GVA analysis seeks to complement the standard economic appraisal and provide an indication of the 
total GVA that could be realised if a transport scheme is implemented.  

Page 97



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 38 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

Unlike standard transport appraisals, there is not a single methodology that has been incrementally improved 
over the years for estimating the impacts of a scheme on GVA, employment, or similar measures of the 
performance of the real economy. In contrast, methodologies vary considerably across studies.  

For the Middlewich Eastern Bypass scheme, a methodology has been used that is based on empirical 
evidence, research and a consistent theoretical framework. This methodology has been utilised previously 
to assess similar transport schemes across the country and is considered suitable for the assessment being 
undertaken.  

Based on the above, there is a forecast increase in GVA to the local economy of £412m over the 60-year 
period, and which can be directly related to the impacts of the transport scheme. This is a ‘net’ GVA figure 
and incorporates the impacts of the potential redistribution of jobs from other areas. This equates to a benefit 
of around £7m per year in a DfT price base of 2010 (based on the total number of jobs in the future). 

2.9 Value for Money Assessment  

2.9.1 Appraisal Summary Table (AST)  

The AST presents evidence from the assessment that is undertaken to inform the Economic Case of an 
intervention. Applying the principles of HM Treasury Green Book, the AST has been designed to record all 
impacts - Economic, Environmental, Social, Public Accounts and Distributional - at the national level.  

The AST for the MEB scheme, which summarises the information contained within the Economic Dimension, 
is included in Appendix ABC.  

2.9.2 Value for Money Statement  

The Value for Money assessment of the proposed Middlewich Eastern Bypass scheme has been undertaken 
in line with TAG, in order to support the Business Case of the scheme.  

As part of this assessment the economic, environmental, social, distributional and fiscal impacts of the 
proposed scheme have been appraised using qualitative, quantitative and monetised information.  

A summary of the overall monetised costs and benefits as prepared for the economic case is provided in 
Table 2-7. Full details of the economic assessment results are contained within the Economic Assessment 
Report.  

The Net Present Value (NPV) has been calculated, which shows the extent to which the benefits of the 
scheme outweigh the costs. In addition, a Benefit to Cost Ratio (BCR) has been calculated. The BCR 
represents the level of benefits generated by the scheme for every £1 of cost and is simply calculated by 
dividing the PVB by the PVC.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 39 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

Type Cost or Benefits (£m) 

Benefits 

Business 
User 

Benefits 

Travel Time 27.64 

Vehicle Operating Costs 0.37 

Net Business User Benefits 28.01 

Consumer – 
Commuting 

User 
Benefits 

Travel Time 8.46 

Vehicle Operating Costs -0.28 

Net Consumer – Commuting User Benefits 8.19 

Consumer – 
Other User 

Benefits 

Travel Time 10.55 

Vehicle Operating Costs -1.16 

Net Consumer – Other User Benefits 9.39 

Delays During Maintenance 3.51 

Delays During Construction -0.78 

Accident Benefits 2.60  

Indirect Tax Benefits 0.80 

Greenhouse Gas Benefits -1.70 (2021 Figures) 

Air Quality -2.00 (2021 Figures) 

Noise -1.70 (2021 Figures) 

Total PVB 34.97 

Costs 

Operating and Maintenance Costs 0.618 

Investment Costs (including capital costs of Maintenance) 49.85 

Developer Contributions -11.34 

Total PVC 39.13 

Net Present Value (NPV) -4.16 

Benefit to Cost Ratio 0.89 

Benefits Level 2 

Journey Time Reliability 10.20 

Wider Impacts approximation 0.94 

Total PVB (Reliability + Wider Impacts) 11.14 

Total PVB (Level 1 + Level 2) 46.11 

Net Present Value of Benefit (NPVB) 6.98 

Benefits to Cost Ratio (BCR) 1.18 

Table 2-7 Monetised Assessment Summary (2010 prices, discounted to 2010) 

Table 2-7 indicates that the PVB of the scheme exceeds the PVC to provide a Net Present Value (NPV) of 
£6.98. The BCR of the scheme is 1.18.  

Based on the DfT guidance on Value for Money categorisation (provided in Table 2-8), based on the BCR 
alone, the proposed MEB scheme represents Low Value for Money.  

 

Page 99



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 40 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

Value for Money Category BCR Range 

Poor VfM Less than 1 

Low VfM Between 1 and 1.5 

Medium VfM Between 1.5 and 2 

High VfM Between 2 and 4 

Very High VfM Greater than 4 

Table 2-8 DfT’s Value for Money Benefit Cost Ratio Categorisation 

The majority of the benefits generated by the scheme are associated with travel time savings for business 
and non-business road users.  

The summary of the monetised costs and benefits information along with the BCR is presented in the 
standard DfT tables (TEE, PA and AMCB) which are included in Appendix ABC.  

2.10 Conclusions  

The Economic Case has presented a comprehensive assessment as to the economic impacts of the 
proposed MEB scheme.  

The results of the economic assessment show that the MEB scheme is forecast to generate a BCR of 1.18. 
The MEB scheme therefore represents Low Value for Money based on DfT guidance.  

A Gross Value Added (GVA) assessment has also been undertaken based on the number of jobs likely to 
be created by the MEB scheme. These developments would provide a net GVA benefit to the local economy 
of £7m per year. Through supporting the creation of these additional jobs, it is estimated that over the course 
of the 60-year appraisal period, the MEB scheme could add an additional net £412m to the local economy.  

As GVA analysis is not a mandatory requirement within TAG transport scheme appraisal, the GVA benefits 
have not been included in the calculation of the BCR and Value for Money of the scheme. However, they do 
support the strategic and economic case for the scheme.  

 

  

Page 100



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 41 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

3. Financial Dimension 

The Financial Dimension concentrates on the affordability of the proposal, its funding arrangements and 
technical accounting issues (value for money is scrutinised in the Economic Dimension). The Financial 
Dimension is discussed under the following headings:  

• Methodology  

• Assumptions  

• Base Costs  

• Maintenance Costs  

• Risk  

• Optimism Bias  

• Scheme Costs Adjusted for Risk and Optimism Bias  

• Preferred Funding Arrangements  

• Alternative Funding Arrangements  

• Conclusion  
 

Page 101



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 42 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

3.1.1 The scheme cost estimate has been derived for the Scheme.  

The cost estimate is based on the following:  

• A market tested price build up from the appointed contractor based upon the completed design 

• Statutory Undertaker costs from the latest C3 or C4 estimates;  

• Land costs  

• Supervision and Preparation costs  

• Risk.  

• Inflation 

3.1.2 Assumptions  

CEC will be responsible for paying any Part 1 Claim compensation costs made as a result of the scheme. 
The compensation costs (Part 1 Claims) can only be claimed from one year after the opening of the road 
to traffic and claims have to be made within the 6 years following the first claim day.  

3.1.3 Base Costs 

The base costs, which do not include risk, inflation or optimism bias are shown in Table 3-1. The base costs 
are split into the following categories:  

• Construction  

• Land  

• Supervision Costs  

• Preparation Costs 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 3-1 Base Costs – Outturn 

3.1.4 Adjusting for Risk  

A post tender Quantitative Risk Assessment was carried and a project risk allowance of £5.3m was 

subsequently allocated. This would be used to cover items such as (but not limited to) commercial claims, 

legal issues, and elements which the shortlisted contractors were asked to exclude at tender stage.  

The project risk allowance is approximately 6% of the tendered construction cost which is comparable to 

recently constructed highway schemes.  

Table 3-2 shows the £5.3m risk contribution and how it should be added to the base cost to produce a risk-

adjusted cost estimate of £92.3m.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Investment Cost Component Base Cost £m 

Construction and Preliminaries £49.3m 

Land and Property (Inc. Part 1 Claims) £19.2m 

Preparation Costs £15.1m 

Supervision Costs £3.5m 

Base Cost Sub Total £87.0m 

Page 102



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 43 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

Investment Cost Component 
Cost excluding real cost 

increases £m 

Construction and Preliminaries £49.3m 

Land and property (Inc. Part 1 claims) £19.2m 

Preparation costs £15.1m 

Supervision costs £3.5m 

Sub Total £87.0 

Risk Contribution £5.3m 

Risk Adjusted cost using QRA £92.3m 

Table 3-2 Risk Adjusted Base Cost Outturn 

3.1.5 Maintenance Costs  

Table 3-3 shows costs of maintaining Middlewich Eastern Bypass once constructed. These costs have been 
calculated based on guidance in the QUADRO manual (DMRB Volume14 Sec 1 Part 2 Chapter 4). 

Category Estimate (60 Years) 

Maintenance (Capital Costs) £3.5m  
Table 3-3 Scheme capital maintenance costs 

 
 
 

3.2 Overall Affordability and Funding 

 

 

3.2.1 Fundraising Arrangements 

The funding breakdown for this scheme is shown in Table 3-4. 

Funding Source 
% of 
Total 

Amount 

DfT 50.2% £48.0m * 

Local - CEC 26% £24.9m 

Local - Developer 23.8% £22.8m 

Total 100% £95.7m 

Table 3-4 Funding breakdown by source 

 

                                   * includes £1.2m initial award for development of OBC. 

3.2.2 Funding Approval 

Approval was sought from Cheshire East Council’s Committee for the funding arrangement outlined above. 
Committee subsequently approved the recommendations.  

A copy of the minutes from the Committee meeting will be made available upon request.  

CEC’s Section 151 Officer has provided a signed declaration outlining CEC’s financial commitment to the 
scheme, in line with the funding arrangements described above. A copy of the Section 151 Officer letter is 
provided in Appendix ABC. 

Page 103



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 44 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

3.2.3 Alternative Funding Arrangements  

There are no other identified funding strategy options at this stage. 

3.2.4 Conclusion  

The outturn scheme cost is estimated to be £92.3m plus £3.5m maintenance costs, including risk 
adjustments and Part 1 Claims, but excluding optimism bias.  

The scheme will be funded through a combination of DfT and contribution from Cheshire East Council. 
Cheshire East Council has approved the underwriting of any necessary gap funding required to deliver the 
relief road.  

 

  

Page 104



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 45 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

4. Commercial and Management Dimension 

The Commercial Dimension provides evidence on the commercial viability of a proposal and the 

procurement strategy that will be used to engage the market. It presents evidence on risk 

allocation and transfer, contract timescales and implementation timescales as well as details of 

who will be responsible for managing the contract.  

The Commercial Dimension is discussed under the following headings:  

• Procurement Workshops  

• Procurement Options  

• Securing the Services of a Contractor  

• Committee Approval of chosen Procurement Strategy  

• Payment Mechanisms  

• Contract Length  

• Contract Management  

• Risk Allocation and Transfer  

• Procurement Programme  

• Conclusion  
 

4.1 Procurement Strategy and Route 

 

4.1.1 Procurement Workshops  

4.1.1.1 April 2018 Workshop  

To assist with determining an optimum ‘Procurement Method’ a Procurement Workshop was held in April 
2018 between key Officers of the Council, the Jacobs designers and Jacobs contracts and commercial 
specialists. The workshop was attended by the following individuals:  
 

• Chris Hindle (Cheshire East – SRO) 

• Richard Hibbert (Cheshire East – MEB Project Sponsor) 

• Robert Grew (Cheshire East – MEB Assistant Project Sponsor) 

• Paul Griffiths (Cheshire East – Infrastructure Delivery Manager) 

• Kate Beirne (Cheshire East – A500 Project Sponsor)  

• Steve Mellor (Cheshire East - Procurement)  

• Niamh Whalley (Cheshire East - Legal)  

• Paul Holder (Jacobs – MEB Project Manager)  

• Dan Teasdale (Jacobs – A500 Project Manager) 

• Colin McHugh (Jacobs – Procurement)  

• Martin Davis (Jacobs – Middlewich Eastern Bypass Technical Assurance) 

• Nigel Downes (Network Rail – Asset Protection) 
 
The workshop was convened to examine the potential procurement options for the scheme.  
The aims and the objectives of the workshop were as follows:  
 

• Assess the pros and cons, opportunities and risks associated with each of the potential 
procurement options.  

• Analyse the programmes associated with each of the procurement options and whether they can 
be achieved given the milestone dates on each of the projects.  

• Assess the ways in which the services of a contractor could be secured – i.e., via a framework or 
the open market.  

The outcome of this Procurement Workshop can be found in the Procurement Options Report. This report is 
included in Appendix ABC.  

 

Page 105



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 46 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

 

4.1.2 Procurement Options 

The workshop focussed on the following three procurement options, as reported in the workshop report.  

• Design and Build (D&B), both during statutory process or after Secretary of State decision.  

• Early Contractor Involvement (ECI)  

• Construction Only Contract – i.e., NEC3 Engineering and Construction Contract  

An ECI procurement method was selected for the delivery of the scheme, with a full consultant design and 
the contractor providing constructability input, and budget and programme management. It also 
recommended that Cheshire East Council seek Committee and Legal approval to commence procurement 
during the statutory process.  

The form of contract will be NEC3 Option C - target cost with bill of quantities.  

The workshop also focussed on the following three options for securing the services of a Contractor, as 
reported in the workshop report.  

• OJEU Notice – Restricted Procedure  

• OJEU Notice – Open Procedure  

• Framework (Highway England’s Collaborative Delivery Framework (CDF) or the Midlands Alliance 
Framework)  

A presentation was given to Cheshire East Council on 16th May 2016 by Scape Procure and Balfour Beatty 
on the use of the Scape Framework. Scape Group is a public sector owned built environment specialist. The 
Scape Civil Engineering & Infrastructure Framework is a national framework delivered by Balfour Beatty. It 
has a four-year duration and an overall value of £1.5 Billion and is available to all public bodies in the UK. 
The nominal project value for contracts is between £1m and £40m; however, Scape is not capped at that 
value and has been used on contracts up to £79m. The framework uses NEC options and is OJEU compliant.  

The framework allows a project to be developed from inception to post completion with Balfour Beatty being 
involved in the early stages of projects. It offers a quick way to market with individual packages of work being 
market tested and managed using an open book approach. The framework also includes cost planning and 
risk management. Scape is a collaborative arrangement, and the core management team is selected from 
all parties in the contract. The success of the contract would depend on CEC putting in place the right controls 
at the outset of the contract, including influencing the quality of the management team, and then exercising 
these controls.  

There is a management fee for using the framework.  

The Scape framework was selected for use with MEB on the basis of successful use on a previously 
completed CEC project at Crewe Green Roundabout and Balfour Beatty were engaged on a 2-stage contract 
with stage 1 covering pre-construction services, and with no contractual commitment for stage 2 (the 
construction stage). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 47 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

Procurement Programme  

Table 4-1 provides a summary of the key dates in the current procurement programme for the scheme, as 
reported to Cheshire East Committee. This programme assumes the use of a NEC3 Option C Priced 
Contract.  

Procurement milestone Date 

Scape Feasibility Stage October – November 2018 

Evaluation of Scape Proposal December 2018 

CEC Committee approval of contract award January 2019 

Contract award Stage 1 works (pre-
construction) 

January 2019 

Contract award Stage 2 works (main 
construction) 

February 2024 

  

Table 4-1 Procurement Programme 

 
 
 

4.2 Risk Allocation 

Use of a two stage ECI NEC3 Option C Target Cost Contract  with Client Design (traditional 

contract), will provide Cheshire East Council with early budget and programme certainty and 

optimum risk transfer to the contractor, whilst providing incentivisation for cost improvements 

throughout the project delivery.  

Throughout the project development stage risks have been reviewed and managed continuously 

through the use of a Quantified Risk Assessment managed by the contractor in collaboration with 

the design team and the Council. 

Allocation of construction (Contractor) risks and Client risks has been undertaken. 

 

4.3 Charging Mechanism 

The payment mechanisms between Cheshire East Council and the appointed contractor is set out in 

the construction contract, which will identify the work to be undertaken in a priced activity schedule. 

On-site inspections and regular reviews will be carried out; payment will only be made against 

completed activities (i.e. only work undertaken will be paid for).  

 

4.4 Key Contractual Arrangements 

Payment Mechanisms  

Payments will be on a monthly basis against an agreed measure of works undertaken plus any goods or 

materials vested in the Employer. 

 

Contract Management  

Timescales for implementation will be as per the programme contained within the management case.  

The contract management arrangements during the implementation stage will be administered by a CEC 
Project Manager and Supervisor. The CEC Project Manager and Supervisor will also provide a site presence 

Page 107



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 48 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

to deal with all contract variations/issues and early warnings/compensation events. The roles for the project 
will otherwise be as set out in the detail within the Project Governance section of the Management Case.  

This approach will also ensure that the construction contract is programmed and coordinated. In this way, 
Cheshire East Council will seek to ensure certainty of programme and high value for this project whilst 
minimising wider impacts on local highway users, residents, and business.  

If there is a prediction that any one tolerance is to be exceeded; this will be raised as an issue to the Project 
Board for agreement.  

Contract Length 

The construction contract will cover the duration of the main construction works as well as a design period 
and advanced environmental works (prior to the main construction works). A detailed construction 
programme has been produced and will be finalised on approval of the FBC when certainty of funding enables 
the Council to issue a Notice to Proceed to Stage 2 (main construction). 

The main construction works will have a 3 year duration with the bypass open to traffic 6 months ahead of 
full completion. 

Contract Management  

Timescales for implementation will be as per the programme contained within the management case.  

The contract management arrangements during the implementation stage will be administered by an CEC 
Project Manager and Supervisor. The CEC Project Manager and Supervisor will also provide a site presence 
to deal with all contract variations/issues and early warnings/compensation events. The roles for the project 
will otherwise be as set out in the detail within the Project Governance section of the Management Case.  

This approach will also ensure that the construction contract is programmed and coordinated. In this way, 
Cheshire East Council will seek to ensure certainty of programme and high value for this project whilst 
minimising wider impacts on local highway users, residents, and business.  

The contract will establish an approval process that will be put in place via the Project Board. Project 
tolerances will be approved by the Project Executive. If these tolerances are exceeded, an exception report 
will be raised by the Project Manager.  

If there is a prediction that any one tolerance is to be exceeded; this will be raised as an issue to the Project 
Board for agreement.  

 
 

4.5 Personnel Implications 

As outlined above, procurement options for the project were investigated in 2018 and the 

recommended option of a contract based on NEC3 Option C - target cost with activity schedule, was 

subsequently approved by the Council.  

Contract documentation was prepared by Jacobs along with members of CEC’s procurement team 

and CEC Legal Services.  

 
  

Page 108



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 49 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

5. Programme/Project Management Dimension 

5.1 Project Management Governance Arrangements  

The Programme/Project Management Dimension describes how the scheme will be managed and delivered. 
In accordance with the Department for Transport (DfT) requirements it presents details of the project 
planning, governance structure, risk management, communications and stakeholder management, benefits 
realisation, and assurance.  

The Programme/Project Management Dimension sets out a plan to ensure that the benefits set out in the 
Economic Case are realised and will include measures to assess and evaluate this. The Management Case 
for the Middlewich Eastern Bypass scheme is discussed under the following headings:  

• Governance  

• Assurance  

• Delivery Programme  

• Risk Management  

• Communications and Stakeholder Management  

• Conclusion  

5.1.1 Governance  

The outline of the governance structure for the project management and delivery of the scheme is presented 
below and an organogram can be seen in Figure 6.1 below. 

Figure 6.1– Outline of Governance Structure (TBC) 

5.1.2 Programme Board 

The Project Board meets monthly. The Project Board is chaired by the SRO (Chris Hindle), who takes 
executive responsibility for decisions relating to the project. Other members of the Project Board are shown 
in Table 6.1 below:  

Name Role 

Chris Hindle SRO 

Neil Grundy Project Sponsor 

John Farrell Jacobs Senior Supplier 

Nick Fox Balfour Betty Senior Supplier 

Table 6.5-1 Project Board Members 

Key responsibilities of the Project Board include:  

• Overseeing the development and implementation of the project Implementation Programme.  

• Reviewing tender documentation as developed for the project and to monitor key policy or other 
issues requiring the attention of the Executive Officers of Cheshire East Council.  

• Ensuring the required resources are identified and deployed on a timely basis across the Project.  

• Ensuring the relevant Funding & Risk, Procurement and Consultation strategies are developed in a 
timely basis and implemented across the Project.  

• Ensuring the project Implementation schedule is developed and regularly reviewed and updated to 
monitor actual progress against planned activity.  

• Ensuring risks are identified and captured in the project Risk Register and mitigated against.  

• Ensuring that key issues are identified, captured in the project Issue Log, managed and escalated 
when required.  

• Ensuring that costs are identified and managed within agreed budgets.  

• Ensuring that the required environmental, health and safety procedures are implemented and 
subsequently complied with across the project.  

• Advising the Cabinet of project progress including key issues and options for decision making.  

• As the Project Board members do not work full time on the project, they place a great deal of 
reliance on the Project Manager (the role of the Project Manager is outlined later within this 

Page 109



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 50 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

section). Although they receive regular reports from the Project Manager, there are key issues for 
consideration:  

• Are things really going as well as we are being told?  

• Are any problems being hidden from us?  

• Is the solution going to be what we want?  

• Are we suddenly going to find that the project is over budget or late?  

All of these points agree that there is a need in the project organisation for independent monitoring of all 
aspects of the project's performance and products.  

5.1.3 Project delivery team 

The Project Delivery Team consists of several specialist skilled staff from the consultancy acting on behalf 
of Cheshire East Council to develop the scheme. The role of the Project Delivery Team is to deliver the 
scheme in line with instructions provided by the Project Manager.  

The Project Delivery Team is shown in Table 5-2.Table 5-2 Delivery team 

Name Role Organisation 

Paul Holder Project Manager 

Jacobs 

Emma Agar Project Controller 

Martin Davies 
Project Principal & Technical 

Review 

Simon Bird Environmental Co-ordinator 

Kostas Kranas Highways Team Leader 

Richard McGarr 
Traffic and Transportation Team 

Leader 

Ashley Stratford Planning 

Stewart Knowles Operational Safety 

Mark Hinton Structures Team Leader 

Jonathan Cahm Geotechnical Team Leader 

Charlie Bowen Consultation Lead 

Table 5-2 Delivery team 

The Project Delivery Team are supported by specialist external sub-suppliers where appropriate.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 110



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 51 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

 

5.2 Project Assurance Arrangements  

 

 

5.2.1 Gateway Reviewers 

A Gateway Review is an assessment of a project or programme carried out at crucial junctures in its 
development, to provide assurance to the Senior Responsible Owner that it can progress successfully to the 
next stage. Its focus is on whether the appropriate framework, processes and resources are in place. It does 
not duplicate the appraisal of the Value for Money case for a scheme.  

The Gateway process was developed by the Office for Government Commerce (OGC) who has accredited 
‘Local Partnerships’ to conduct Gateway Reviews for Local Authorities.  

There are five Gateway Reviews during the lifecycle of a project, three before contract award, one post 
contract award looking at service implementation and a final review seeking confirmation of the operational 
benefits. The five Gateway Reviews are listed below.  

• Gateway Review 1 – Business Justification  

• Gateway Review 2 – Procurement Strategy 

• Gateway Review 3 – Investment Decision  

• Gateway Review 4 – Readiness for Service 

• Gateway Review 5 – Benefits Evaluation  

The Gateway stages are broadly linked to the DfT’s approval stages, but the precise timing may vary from 
scheme to scheme. Normally Gateway 1 and 2 reviews would be carried out between Programme Entry and 
Conditional Approval, with Gateway 3 being carried out prior to Full Approval.  

As the scheme costs are in excess of £20m, MEB intends to accord with best practice and progress the 
scheme through all stages of the Gateway Review process. This will ensure that the delivery of the scheme 
is challenged by independent review. As part of its ongoing commitment to the progression of the scheme 
MEB has already commenced the Gateway Review process.  

Cheshire East Council’s Finance and Contract Procedure Rules set out the arrangements for managing the 
Council`s financial and contractual arrangements. The Finance, Contract and Procedure Rules also deal 
specifically with risk management, control of resources and establish key principles for decision making 
practice.  

The Council is effectively operating “Project Gateway” which is a robust discipline to manage Major Projects 
and Programmes across the authority. The key aspect of effectively operating the Project Gateway is a high-
level, Member led Governance Group called the Executive Monitoring Board (EMB). One of the key aims of 
the EMB is to provide consistent and robust direction for all Major Projects and Programmes that rest within 
the Capital Programme.  

The EMB rejects scheme business case proposals if they are unconvinced of the viability of the Business 
Case and any other aspect of the of the delivery plan or of fit with corporate priorities and also identifies 
improvements in the process as part of the annual lessons learnt exercise.  

The monitoring is mainly focused on performance, progress against plan, risks and issues, quality, benefits 
and Value for Money.  

The EMB also ensures that major projects and programmes are on track to deliver what they set out to do in 
their Business Case and Planning proposals and confirm there is a continued Business Case viability.  

Gateway 2 / 3 Hybrid Assurance (Undertaken in June 2021) 

In June 2021 the scheme was subject to a hybrid Gateway Review 2 (Procurement Strategy) and Gateway 
3 (Investment Decision) review in anticipation of an earlier submission of the FBC than has transpired. 

Gateway 3 Assurance (Undertaken in July 2023) 

Page 111



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 52 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

In July 2023 the scheme was subject to a Gateway Review 3 (Investment Decision). The final report is 
awaited at the time of FBC production, but the draft report is included as Appendix XX.  The key findings of 
the review were as follows 

The Review Team finds that there is strong support and a robust case has been made for the new 

Bypass that has the ability to unlock new homes.  

The Review team finds that there is strong support for project from Council Members and senior 

stakeholders. The project aligns well with regional strategic priorities as well as the Council’s regional 

strategic priorities. Excellent progress has been made.  However, several important issues and tasks 

need to be completed. 

We found there has been good communications with the local community and senior stakeholders 

evidenced by the approach to public consultation and the fact that there is strong political and senior 

stakeholder support for the project. 

We have given this project an Amber DCA as successful delivery appears feasible but significant 

issues already exist requiring management attention. Management is well aware of the issues and 

they should be resolvable. 

 

5.3 Project Plan (Schedule) 

 

The delivery programme for the scheme is owned by the Project Manager and updated by the Project 
Planner. The programme is reviewed and updated as necessary prior to formal monthly progress meetings. 
Changes to the project programme that could impact upon key milestones within the development and 
delivery of the Middlewich Eastern Bypass scheme are communicated to the Project Board.  

The key project milestones for the Middlewich Eastern Bypass scheme are shown in Table 6.3. 

 

Key Milestone Date 

Confirmation of approval December 2023 

Stage 2 contract awarded February 2024 

Completion of CPO implementation April 2024 

Start of major construction works April 2024 

Bypass Open September 2026 

Full scheme completion March 2027 

Table 6.3 Project milestones programme 

A scheme delivery programme is included in Appendix ABC. The programme highlights project 
interdependencies and the key dates associated with the following tasks:  

• Statutory Process;  

• Business Case;  

• Procurement;  

• Construction; and  

• Completion. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 112



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 53 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

5.4 Stakeholder Engagement and Communications 

 

 

To ensure that all stakeholders affected by the scheme are kept informed throughout the development and 
construction of the scheme, an extensive stakeholder mapping exercise has been completed.  

A Stakeholder Engagement Plan has subsequently been developed which details all of the stakeholders 
(both statutory and non-statutory) that either have already been or will be engaged with during the 
development of the scheme. It also provides a summary of the purpose of the consultation as well as 
providing a summary of the engagement to date and the proposed future engagement.  

The main stakeholder groups with an interest in the Middlewich Eastern Bypass are identified as:  

• Cheshire East Council – CEC are overseeing and are responsible for promoting this scheme.  

• Cheshire West & Chester Council – owing to the locality of Middlewich the project board includes a 
representative of neighbouring Cheshire West Council. The 2 unitary councils routinely cooperate 
on transport planning for the mid Cheshire towns to ensure an integrated approach.  

• Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise Partnership – responsible for the Strategic Economic Plan 
ambitions for growth in the sub-region and determine local economic priorities. The LEP is also 
responsible for programme management of the Local Growth Fund projects in Cheshire and 
Warrington.  

• Middlewich Town Council – is an active forum seeking to improve the vitality of the town for residents 
and visitors. The town council has supported development of the bypass proposals and engaged 
throughout with public engagement events.  

• Local community groups – The first key phase of public consultation took place in August-September 
2016, where residents were informed about the scheme, in the context of wider transport challenges 
facing Middlewich. The Middlewich Transport Consultation enabled residents and the local 
community to provide feedback on priorities and potential solutions.  

• Local employers – The bypass will benefit employers, through enhanced opportunity from relived 
congestion. Employers will be invited to get involved in consultation.  

• Local developers – The scheme will be of interest to developers of other projects, as access to the 
scheme in future may affect other projects. The Council has actively engaged with a number of key 
development stakeholders who have interests in land affected by the proposed alignment. These 
developers participate in a regular project Reference Group to ensure they are informed and 
engaged in development of the project. A number of letters of support have been provided by 
representatives of Pochin Developments, DB Symmetry, Middlewich Investment Properties and 
Willsgrove which accompany this business case.  

• Councillors – As locally elected representatives, they will be a point of contact for local residents who 
live near the proposed routes of the bypass. The consultation process commenced in 
August/September 2016. Borough, town and parish councillors are all actively engaged in the public 
engagement process.  

• Network Rail – have statutory responsibility for the Sandbach to Northwich railway, which is crossed 
by the proposed scheme. A Basic Asset Protection Agreement (BAPA) is in place with Network Rail, 
whose designated project manager Andy Hughes is assisting in moving the project through to 
Approval in Principle stage.  

• Canals and Rivers Trust (CRT) – the scheme crosses the Trent & Mersey Canal therefore CRT are 
engaged in consenting for the new overbridge.  

• Environment Agency – statutory responsibility for main river flood management and discharge 
consents. The project team have engaged EA in consideration of the approach to flood modelling at 
the earliest stage of preparing the Water Management Strategy to support planning. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

Draft Full Business Case for CEC Committee   Page 54 of 61 

Issued: 12th September 2023  

 

OFFICIAL 

5.5 Risk and Issues Management 

 

 

5.5.1 Risk Register  

A detailed Quantified Risk Assessment (QRA) has been undertaken. The QRA is based on industry 
knowledge and experience from the team’s involvement in other schemes of a similar nature.  

Each of the risks identified has been allocated a ‘risk owner’, depending on the risk type and its proximity 
(i.e., when it is likely to be realised / removed).  

Informal risk reviews are undertaken on a monthly basis. Formal risk workshops are held if and when the 
Project Manager deems them necessary. Risk is an agenda item at both Progress Meetings and Project 
Board Meetings, both of which are held monthly. At each of these meetings the ‘Top 5’ risks are discussed 
and if necessary, the QRA is updated.  

The risk register attempts to separate risks out dependent on their nature. Examples of the type of risk include 
(but are not limited to):  

• Infrastructure;  

• Political;  

• Environmental;  

• Process; and  

• Stakeholder.  

The QRA is based on industry knowledge and experience from other schemes which have been constructed.  

5.5.2 Contingency Plan  

The following contingency measures are in place on the scheme:  

• Funding – as stated in the Financial Case, in the event of overspend the liability will fall upon 
Cheshire East Council to source and secure funding for any overspend.  

• People – all resources have been identified both pre and post construction. All positions have been 
filled and in the event that people leave the project team with little or no notice, the contingency plan 
is to recruit from the Council’s own resource availability;  

• Information – all information is currently held on either the Council’s IT servers (backed-up daily) or 
suppliers’ own IT servers (backed-up daily);  

• Skill sharing and knowledge transfer – the project team has monthly (Project Delivery group) 
meetings, which are structured to ensure each aspect of the project under development is discussed; 
and that each work stream report is also discussed.  

• Suppliers (including consultants, delivery partners and contractors) – the Council has in place 
robust procurement procedures, which incorporate business continuity requirements, and are 
designed to maximise the capacity of appointed suppliers to deliver the desired outcomes.  

• The project team has established governance and reporting frameworks that are in part designed to 
provide early warnings of a supplier’s inability to continue to undertake its duties. Early warnings will 
enable the project team to implement contingency plans, which in the event that duties cannot be 
redistributed within the existing project team and wider supply chain, could ultimately include 
replacing affected suppliers. If suppliers need to be replaced during the performance of individual 
contracts, the project team and the Council’s legal and procurement teams will work closely together 
to ensure the time taken to appoint replacement suppliers is minimised.  

 
 

Page 114



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Appendix A – Uncertainty Log 

 

Uncertainty Location Land Use Number of units/size/jobs Units (Area/Counts) 

Near Certain East of Abbey Road, Sandbach Housing 165 Dwellings 

Near Certain CW114JH, Sandbach Housing 138 Dwellings 

Near Certain 1Sandbach Housing 126 Dwellings 

Near Certain 2Sandbach Housing 154 Dwellings 

Near Certain 3Sandbach Housing 200 Dwellings 

Near Certain 1M6 -J17, Sandbach Housing 237 Dwellings 

Near Certain 2M6 -J17, Sandbach Housing 136 Dwellings 

Near Certain 1Middlewich, CW10 0HN Housing 149 Dwellings 

Near Certain 2Middlewich, CW10 0HN Housing 194 Dwellings 

Near Certain 3Middlewich, CW10 0HN Housing 235 Dwellings 

Near Certain 4Middlewich, CW10 0HN Housing 84 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land rear of 165 to 219 Townsfields Road Housing 210 Dwellings 

Near Certain Booth Lane, Middlewich, CW10 0RP Housing 450 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land adjacent Ash Cottage/Yew Mount, Harthill Road, Burwardsley ("Location 1A") Housing 7 Dwellings 

Near Certain Portico House, High Street,Tattenhall Housing 6 Dwellings 

Near Certain Low Ridge, Burwardsley Road, Tattenhall Housing 4 Dwellings 

Near Certain Linacre Bank, Common Lane,Tarporley Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Oathills Lea, Oathills Close, Tarporley Housing 20 Dwellings 

Near Certain Lower Lane Service Station, Lower Lane, Rushton, Tarporley Housing 2 Dwellings 

Near Certain The Hollies, Darnhall School Lane, Winsford Housing 30 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

The Green, Back Lane, Duddon Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain 12 New Road, Duddon, Chester Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Woodford Grange - Former Woodford Lodge High School, Woodford Lane West, Winsford Housing 54 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land adjacent 16 Northgate, Utkinton, Tarporley Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Parkway House, Mill Lane, Little Budworth, Tarporley Housing 2 Dwellings 

Near Certain Platt's Meadow, Way's Green, Winsford (NP site STC2) Housing 3 Dwellings 

P
age 115



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Near Certain Land adjacent Rowley Farm Quarry Bank Utkinton Tarporley Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land to rear of Woodford Lane, Winsford Housing 4 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land at Springbank Crescent, Winsford Housing 16 Dwellings 

Near Certain Former Drill Hall, Dingle Lane, Winsford Housing 31 Dwellings 

Near Certain 376A High Street, Winsford Housing 4 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Land off Middlewich Road (rear of 107-155), Winsford Housing 21 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Harlede, Whitby's Lane, Winsford Housing 2 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Land adjacent 52 High Street, Winsford Housing 14 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land at Grange Yard, Winsford Housing 39 Dwellings 

Near Certain 2-4 Ribble Place, Winsford Housing 3 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Liquid Lounge, New Road, Winsford Housing 12 Dwellings 

Near Certain The Gallop Stables, Racecourse Lane, Cotebrook, Tarporley Housing 1 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Land adjacent 123 Wharton Road, Winsford Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Forest Farm, Heath Lane, Cotebrook, Tarporley Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Verdin - Playing fields and land adjacent to Verdin Exchange, Winsford Housing 268 Dwellings 

Near Certain Wharton Industrial Estate, Wharton Road (Repossessions UK Ltd), Winsford Housing 205 Dwellings 

Near Certain 99 Chester Road, Winsford Housing 3 Dwellings 

Near Certain Spruce Cottage, 2 Hockenhull Lane, Tarvin Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land at Wharton Green, Deakins Road / Bostock Road, Winsford Housing 96 Dwellings 

Near Certain Montrose, Chester Road, Kelsall Housing 3 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land adjacent Watling Heys, Chester Road, Kelsall Housing 6 Dwellings 

Near Certain The Nursery, Chester Road, Kelsall Housing 5 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land adjacent to Ardern Place, Chester Road, Kelsall Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land to rear of The Farmers Arms, Chester Road / Waste Lane, Kelsall Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain The Gables, Chester Road, Oakmere, Northwich Housing 3 Dwellings 

Near Certain Brownhayes Farm (workshop), Yateshouse Lane, Byley, Northwich Housing 1 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Land adjacent 11 Station Road, Delamere Northwich Housing 1 Dwellings 

P
age 116



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Near Certain Easy Life GM Ltd, Chester Road, Oakmere Housing 2 Dwellings 

Near Certain Oakmere Lodge Country Park, Chester Road, Oakmere Housing 1 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Land at Newton House, Weaverham Road, Cuddington, Northwich Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land at 437 Chester Road, Hartford, Northwich Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land at Greenbank Wood (Phase 5 and 6), School Lane, Hartford, Northwich Housing 258 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land at Dunham Road, Northwich Housing 6 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land at The Hollies, 79 School Lane, Hartford Housing 7 Dwellings 

Near Certain Abbey Lodge Abbey Lane Hartford, Northwich Housing 2 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land adjacent 11B The Crescent, Hartford Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land at Grange Farm, Chester Road, Hartford Housing 8 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land adjacent Leftwich Farm, 2 Dobells Road, Northwich Housing 4 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Land at Weaver Shipyard, Saxons Lane, Northwich Housing 83 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land at Hartford High School, Greenbank Lane, Northwich Housing 26 Dwellings 

Near Certain Hartford Campus, Chester Road, Hartford, Northwich Housing 82 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land at Flower Street, Northwich Housing 2 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Land at Keepers Lane/Northwich Road, Weaverham Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Yew Tree Farm, Middlewich Road, Nether Peover, Northwich Housing 3 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Land adjacent 2 Russet Road, Weaverham, Northwich Housing 1 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Land at Oldhams Hill, Winnington Street, Northwich Housing 1 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Land and buildings off Oldhams Hill/Verdin Avenue, Northwich Housing 6 Dwellings 

Near Certain Domestic Discount, 35 Station Road, Northwich Housing 15 Dwellings 

Near Certain Car park opposite Plaza Bingo Club, Albion Road, Northwich Housing 9 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land adjacent Labour Hall, Tabley Street, Northwich Housing 34 Dwellings 

Near Certain 1Weaverham Bank Farm, High Street, Weaverham, Northwich Housing 8 Dwellings 

Near Certain Weaverham Bank Farm, High Street, Weaverham, Northwich Housing 8 Dwellings 

Near Certain West Road Garage, 2 West Road, Weaverham Northwich Housing 9 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land adjacent 162 Manchester Road, Northwich Housing 49 Dwellings 

P
age 117



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Near Certain Land adjacent 16 Brook Street, Northwich Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land at Warrington New Road, Wincham Housing 103 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land to rear of 14 Station Road, Lostock Gralam, Northwich Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land off Chapel Street, Wincham, Northwich Housing 6 Dwellings 

Near Certain 80 Townfield Lane, Barnton, Northwich Housing 4 Dwellings 

Near Certain Arosa, Linnards Lane, Wincham, Northwich Housing 1 Dwellings 

Near Certain Land adjacent Comberbach Sorting Office, 12 Senna Lane, Comberbach Housing 1 Dwellings 

More Than 
Likely 

Land at Chapel Street(1), Wincham, Northwich Housing 960 Dwellings 

Near Certain M6 -J17(1), Sandbach Retail 862.6 m2 

Near Certain M6 -J17(2), Sandbach Retail 862.6 m2 

Near Certain M6 -J17(3), Sandbach Office 862.6 m2 

Near Certain M6 -J17(4), Sandbach Retail 862.6 m2 

Near Certain M6 -J17(5), Sandbach Retail 862.6 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

M6 -J17(6), Sandbach Office 14000 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

M6 -J17(7), Sandbach Office 14000 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

M6 -J17(8), Sandbach Office 7200 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

M6 -J17(9), Sandbach Retail 4500 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Holmes Chapel Road(1), Middlewich. Ma6nitude 160, Midpoint 18 DB symetry Office 7450.5 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Holmes Chapel Road, Middlewich. Ma6nitude 160, Midpoint 18 DB symetry Office 7450.5 m2 

Near Certain 1ERF way Middlewich Office 21000 m2 

Near Certain ERF way Middlewich Office 21000 m2 

Near Certain Pochin Way(1) Middlewich, Midpoint 18 Office 5280 m2 

Near Certain Pochin Way(2) Middlewich, Midpoint 18 Office 12320 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Pochin Way(3) Middlewich, Midpoint 18 Office 7869.4 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Pochin Way(4) Middlewich, Midpoint 18 Industrial 3372.6 m2 

P
age 118



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Near Certain Pochin Way(5) Middlewich, Midpoint 18 Industrial 16100 m2 

Near Certain Pochin Way(6) Middlewich, Midpoint 18 Industrial 6900 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

2Land to the south of A556, Rudheath, Northwich (south west Gadbrook Park) Office 0 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Land at Chapel Street (2), Wincham, Northwich Office 2500 m2 

Near Certain 1Land rear Swan House, Wincham Lane, Wincham Office 4225 m2 

Near Certain 2Land rear Swan House, Wincham Lane, Wincham Industrial 2124 m2 

Near Certain 3Land rear Swan House, Wincham Lane, Wincham Office 2124 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Land on Denton Drive Industrial Estate Office 6000 m2 

Near Certain Natrium House, Winnington Lane, Northwich Industrial 13262 m2 

Near Certain 1Winnington Bus' Park, Winnington Ave, Northwich Industrial 5880 m2 

Near Certain Winnington Bus' Park, Winnington Ave, Northwich Office 1740 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

1Land on Gadbrook Employment Park, Rudheath Office 30000 m2 

Near Certain Land at Gadbrook Park, Rudheath, Northwich Office 518 m2 

Near Certain 1Rear of 201 to 225 Middlewich Road, Northwich Office 394 m2 

Near Certain 2Rear of 201 to 225 Middlewich Road, Northwich Industrial 286 m2 

Near Certain 3Rear of 201 to 225 Middlewich Road, Northwich Office 286 m2 

Near Certain Land off Holmes Chapel Road Middlewich (Cheshire Fresh) - Area 2 Office 265 m2 

Near Certain Land off Holmes Chapel Road Middlewich (Cheshire Fresh) - Area 3 Office 7154 m2 

Near Certain 1Land off Holmes Chapel Road Middlewich (Cheshire Fresh) - Access hub, pond and road Industrial 884 m2 

Near Certain 2Land off Holmes Chapel Road Middlewich (Cheshire Fresh) - Access hub, pond and road Retail 264 m2 

Near Certain 3Land off Holmes Chapel Road Middlewich (Cheshire Fresh) - Access hub, pond and road Retail 4143 m2 

Near Certain 1(Phase 2, Plot 1) Land east of Road One, Winsford Office 1540 m2 

Near Certain 2(Phase 2, Plot 1) Land east of Road One, Winsford Industrial 13775 m2 

Near Certain Land east of Road One (1), Winsford Retail 316 m2 

Near Certain Land east of Road One (2), Winsford Retail 566 m2 

Near Certain Land east of Road One (3), Winsford Retail 467 m2 

Near Certain Land east of Road One (4), Winsford Industrial 8410 m2 

Near Certain Land east of Road One (5), Winsford Office 23225 m2 

P
age 119



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Near Certain Land east of Road One (6), Winsford Retail  m2 

Near Certain Land adjacent to 15 Road Five Winsford Office  m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Land At Grid Ref 363001 365454 Browning Way Winsford Industrial 1858 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Land at Littler Lane / Oakemere Road, Winsford Office 59000 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Dingle Lane(1), Winsford, CW7 1AB Retail 403.8 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Dingle Lane(2), Winsford, CW7 1AB Office 403.8 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Dingle Lane(3), Winsford, CW7 1AB Retail 403.8 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Dingle Lane(4), Winsford, CW7 1AB Retail 403.8 m2 

More Than 
Likely 

Dingle Lane(5), Winsford, CW7 1AB Retail 403.8 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 13_NotDependent Industrial 4366 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 14_NotDependent Industrial 1394 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 31_Dependent Office 59260 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 32_Dependent Office 11641 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 33_Dependent Office 13935 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 34_Dependent Industrial 4924 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 35_Dependent Industrial 5388 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 41_NotDependent Office 28800 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 42_NotDependent Industrial 42550 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 43_NotDependent Industrial 4181 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 44_NotDependent Industrial m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 130_Dependent Industrial 6596 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 140_Dependent Industrial 4645 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 141_Dependent Industrial 4645 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 150_Dependent Industrial 7432 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 151_Dependent Industrial 3716 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 152_Dependent Industrial 2880 m2 

P
age 120



Middlewich Eastern Bypass Full Business Case 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Plot 63_NotDependent Industrial 34160 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Plot 63 Phase 2_NotDependent Industrial 11427 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Other development_Dependent Industrial 22258.5 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Other development2_Dependent Industrial 22258.5 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Plot 51_NotDependent Office 24857.4 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 11_NotDependent Office 12320 m2 

Near Certain Midpoint 18Unit 12_NotDependent Industrial 5280 m2 

 

 

P
age 121



T
his page is intentionally left blank



2

.1

1

m

D

2
.0

0
m

D

1
.9

3
m

D

BRIDGE OVER

CANAL

CONNECTING TO

EXISTING ROAD

CONNECTING TO

EXISTING ROAD

CONNECTING TO

EXISTING ROAD

MIDDLEWICH

A533

A533

A533

A54

BRIDGE OVER

NETWORK RAIL

R

I

V

E

R

 

C

R

O

C

O

P

O

C

H

I

N

 

W

A

Y

C

L

E

D

F

O

R

D

 
L

A

N

E

S

A

N

D

E

R

S

O

N

S

 
B

R

O

O

K

H

O

L

M

E

S

 

C

H

A

P

E

L

 

R

O

A

D

TRIBUTARY OF

SANDERSONS

BROOK

CULVERT

EXISTING BRIDGE TO

BE RETAINED

SANDERSONS BROOK

CULVERT No 1

TRIBUTARY OF RIVER

CROCO CULVERT

RIVER CROCO CULVERT

FARMER'S

UNDERPASS

S

A

N

D

B

A

C

H

 

T

O

 

N

O

R

T

H

W

I

C

H

 

R

A

I

L

W

A

Y

S

A

N

D

B

A

C

H

 

T

O

 

N

O

R

T

H

W

I

C

H

 

R

A

I

L

W

A

Y

C

A

N

A

L

S

A

N

D

B

A

C

H

 

T

O

 

N

O

R

T

H

W

I

C

H

 

R

A

I

L

W

A

Y

C

A

N

A

L

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U
G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U
G

U

G

U
G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U
G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U

G

U
G

1

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

0

0

.
0

0

0

N

2

0

0

.
0

0

0

N300.000

N

4

0

0

.
0

0

0

N

5

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

6

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

7

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

8

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

9

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

0

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

1

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

2

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

3

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

4

0

0

.

0

0

0

S

1

0

0

.

0

0

0

S

2

0

0

.

0

0

0

S

3
0
0
.
0
0
0

S400.000

S500.000

S600.000

S700.000

S800.000

S900.000

S
1
0
0
0
.0

0
0

1

0

0

.
0

0

0

2

0

0

.
0

0

0

3
0
0
.
0
0
0

4
0
0
.
0
0
0

5

0

0

.

0

0

0

6

0

0

.
0

0

0

7

0

0

.

0

0

0

0

.

0

0

0

1

0

0

.

0

0

0

3
0
0
.
0
0
0

0

.

0

0

0

1

0

0

.

0

0

0

2

0

0

.

0

0

0

3

0

0

.

0

0

0

4

0

0

.

0

0

0

2
0
0
.
0
0
0

A533

(

G

)

(

G

)

(G
)

(
G

)

(
G

)

(
G

)

(
G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(
G

)

(
G

)

(
G

)

(
G

)
(
G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

(

G

)

2.11mD

2.00mD

1.93mD

BRIDGE OVER

CANAL

CONNECTING TO

EXISTING ROAD

CONNECTING TO

EXISTING ROAD

CONNECTING TO

EXISTING ROAD

MIDDLEWICH

A533

A533

A533

A54

A54

BRIDGE OVER

NETWORK RAIL

R

I

V

E

R

 

C

R

O

C

O

P

O

C

H

I

N

 

W

A

Y

C

L

E

D

F

O

R

D

 L

A

N

E

S

A

N

D

E

R

S

O

N

S

 B

R

O

O

K

H

O

L

M

E

S

 

C

H

A

P

E

L

 

R

O

A

D

TRIBUTARY OF

SANDERSONS

BROOK

CULVERT

EXISTING BRIDGE TO

BE RETAINED

SANDERSONS BROOK

CULVERT No 1

TRIBUTARY OF RIVER

CROCO CULVERT

RIVER CROCO CULVERT

FARMER'S

UNDERPASS

S

A

N

D

B

A

C

H

 

T

O

 

N

O

R

T

H

W

I

C

H

 

R

A

I

L

W

A

Y

S

A

N

D

B

A

C

H

 

T

O

 

N

O

R

T

H

W

I

C

H

 

R

A

I

L

W

A

Y

C

A

N

A

L

S

A

N

D

B

A

C

H

 

T

O

 

N

O

R

T

H

W

I

C

H

 

R

A

I

L

W

A

Y

C

A

N

A

L

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

U
G

U
G

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

U
G

UG

UG

UG

UG

U
G

U
G

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

U
G

UG

U
G

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

UG

U
G

UG

UG

U
G

UG

UG

U
G

UG

U
G

U
G

UG

UG

UG

U
G

UG

U
G

U
G

UG

UG

U
G

U
G

U
G

U
G

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

UG

U
G

UG

UG

UG

UG

U
G

1

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

0

0

.0

0

0

N

2

0

0

.0

0

0

N300.000

N

400.0

00

N

5

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

6

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

7

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

8

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

9

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

0

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

1

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

2

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

3

0

0

.

0

0

0

N

1

4

0

0

.

0

0

0

S

1

0

0

.

0

0

0

S

2

0

0

.0

0

0

S300.000

S400.000

S500.000

S600.000

S700.000

S800.000

S900.000

S1000.000

1

0

0

.
0

0

0

2

0

0

.
0

0

0

3
0
0
.
0
0
0

4
0
0
.
0
0
0

5

0

0

.

0

0

0

6

0

0

.
0

0

0

7

0

0

.

0

0

0

0

.

0

0

0

1

0

0

.

0

0

0

3
0
0
.
0
0
0

0

.

0

0

0

1

0

0

.

0

0

0

2

0

0

.

0

0

0

3

0

0

.

0

0

0

4

0

0

.

0

0

0

2
0
0
.
0
0
0

A533

M6 J18

SANDBACH

M6 J17

HOLMES

CHAPEL

MIDDLEWICH

A533

MIDDLEWICH

EASTERN

BYPASS

A54

Drawing status

Drawing number

Scale

Client no.

Jacobs No.

Drawing title

DO NOT SCALE

Project

Client

G

N

W

I

A

R

D

T

U

A

O

A

D

C

P:\Highways\Projects\BRJ10612 - Middlewich Eastern Bypass\380 Drawings\380.2 Highways\BRJ10612-H-SK-005 - GENERAL ARRANGEMENT PORTRAIT - Rev P01.dwg - 03/11/2022 16:22:20 - BRJ10403-H-SK-004-GENERAL_ARRANGEMENT_POTRAIT - KranasK

Apprv'd
Purpose of revision

Rev Rev. Date Drawn Checkd Rev'd

© Copyright 2022 Jacobs U.K. Limited. The concepts and information contained in this document are the property of Jacobs.

Use or copying of this document in whole or in part without the written permission of Jacobs constitutes an infringement of

copyright.   Limitation:  This drawing has been prepared on behalf of, and for the exclusive use of Jacobs' Client, and is subject

to, and issued in accordance with, the provisions of the contract between Jacobs and the Client.  Jacobs accepts no liability or

responsibility whatsoever for, or in respect of, any use of, or reliance upon, this drawing by any third party.

Rev

P01 30/09/2022

MIDDLEWICH EASTERN BYPASS

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

PORTRAIT

FOR INFORMATION

1:5000 @ A1

BRJ10612

P01

BRJ10612-H-SK-005

Number One Building, 5 First Street, Manchester, M15 4GU

Tel:+44(0)161 235 6000    Fax:+44(0)161 235 6001

www.jacobs.com

For Information AH KK

N

KEY:

HP GAS MAIN (NATIONAL GRID)

MP GAS MAIN (CADENT)

NOTES:

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN METRES UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

2. ALL LEVELS IN METRES RELATIVE TO ORDNANCE DATUM.

UG UG UG

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the

permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 100049045 2015

KEY PLAN

1:50000

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the

permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 100049045 2015

SCALE  1 : 5000

500 250 500 m100 150 200 300 350 400 450

KEY PLAN

1:50000

KK PH

(G)

Page 123

AutoCAD SHX Text
21a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
15b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
The Cobblers

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Wych

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Day

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
& CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Co Const, UA

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Co Const,

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Co Const,

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Powell

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
25a

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
WINDSOR CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
8e

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Harbutts

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
16 to 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
1 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
2 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
Universal House

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Industrial

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Valley Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
SANDERSON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
Custody Suite

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
Cheshire Constabulary

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
WALLCROFT GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
Briar Pool Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
Verity Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
TUDOR CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
REGENCY WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
King's

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
53 to 64

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
Queen's Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
Prosperity Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
THE LOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
HONITON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
Settling Bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
Millbrook Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
A2

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
Oaklands

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
WATERS EDGE MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
Flats

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
Dickenson

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
FLAVIAN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
SAMIAN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
Janelo

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
Weighbridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
Pioneer House

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
Dalton House

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
6 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
Longcross Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
59 to 61

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Fender Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
Kinderton Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
A 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
River Croco

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
Farmhouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
Briery Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
LODGE LANE (Track)

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
Pool Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
Kinderton

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
Mobile Home Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
Briar Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
36.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
CLEDFORD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
BYLEY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
BRAMBLE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
ASTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
B 5309

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
Industrial Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
34.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
33.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
River

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
TELFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
CENTURION WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
Lodge Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
HOLMES CHAPEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
Kinderton Hall Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
GALLOWAY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
Filling Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
Lodge Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
Penmaen

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
Sewage Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
HEREFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
A 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
34.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
HEREFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
B 5309

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
34.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
MS

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
37.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
Pipeline

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
POCHIN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
Foot Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
Midpoint 18 Motorway

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
Salt Cellar

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
Croco

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
39.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
Bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
32.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
Settling Bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
Settling

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
Settling Bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
Warehouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
Glenholme

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
CLEDFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Cledford Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Sanderson's Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
Brookfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
Cledford House

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
ERF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
Cledford Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
War Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
St Michael and

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
LEADSMITHY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
KINDERTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
SEA BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
DALTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
The Boar's Head (PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
33.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
River Croco

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
St Ann's Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
DEVON

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
CENTURION WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
Midpoint 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
35.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
Motorway Industrial

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
GUERNSEY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
(Middlewich Medical

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
Wharf

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
63a

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
Baile

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
Boat Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
Vaults

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
KING'S CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
JERSEY WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
Brooks Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
Fire

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
WYCH-HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
Middlewich

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
22b

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
DANE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
LONGHORN CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
The Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
Rosemount

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
CHARTLEY GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
DIPLOMA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
73A

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
B 5309

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
Big Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
34.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
Police

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
Victoria

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
PROSPERITY WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
31.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
All Angels Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
DEXTER WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
Trading Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
LAWRENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
PEPPER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
HADRIAN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
WHEELOCK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
Alley (Path)

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
High School

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
AVENUE EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
WHITE PARK CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
Lady

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
Salinae

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
Monique

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
35b

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
Rosemount

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
Centre)

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
34.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
Poolhead Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
NEW KING STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
Annes

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
Pipe Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
Smithy

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
ST MICHAEL'S WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
A 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
GARFIT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
AYRSHIRE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
Superstore

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
CIVIC WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
SHORTHORN CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
Wych

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
LEWIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
HOLMES CHAPEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
DEAN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
THE BULL RING

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
Tel Ex

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
River Croco

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
Building

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
KING EDWARD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
LICHFIELD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
32.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
CHILLINGHAM CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
BROOKS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
Builder's

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
ANGUS GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
Builder's

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
Presby

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
(Clinic and Day Centre)

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
32.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
75a

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
Pumping

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
HEREFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
36a

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
36.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
33a

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
Civic

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
Lex House

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
Marian

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
WEBB'S LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
MAIDENHILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
35a

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
31.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
Cheshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
MP 0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
Ivy

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
Southway

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
White Horse

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
Millside

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
32.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
BEECH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
HIGHTOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
Town Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
KING STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
WPI House

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
Kinderton House

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
Dock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
FOSSA CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
MILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
Sanderson's

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
Industrial Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
Na Cora

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
32.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
DIERDENS TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
Big Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
THE MOORINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
Dry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
Waters Meet

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
Keepers Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
MIDDLEWICH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
Lasufer Plus One

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
Southfork

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
Shangri-la

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
FALLON COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
PIPPIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
171

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
Manor Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
Warmingham

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
Middlewich High School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
White Horse Alley

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
LEWIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
81a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
CORONATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
(course of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
Dry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
ROYLANCE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
SUTTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
KITFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
39.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
Settling

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
Sanderson's

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
51a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
206

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
ALEXANDRA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
St Anne's Wharf

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
Whitegate Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
39.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
61b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
Dock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
39.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
OAK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
(Path)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
Bembridge Ct

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
MAIDENHILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
MANOR FIELDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
MATHER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
Bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
41.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
Leisure Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
WARDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
STALLARD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
(Dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
VENTNOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
MANOR CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
MANOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
Trent and Mersey Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
42.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
Wardle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
ROAD BETA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
GEORGE VI AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
ASHFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
BEMBRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
CRESANNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
37.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
105a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
1 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
WARMINGHAM LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
59a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
War Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
LONGWOOD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
HAYHURST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
ELM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
ELM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
POPLAR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
QUEEN'S DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
LONG LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
Basin

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
DENBIGH CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
184

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
HENBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
ROMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
RUTLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
DALE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
SANDOWN CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
Canal House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
Bowling

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
ASH GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
BARRINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
BROOKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
Pumping Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
Alcocks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
HUBERT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
ORCHARD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
Brooks Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
DUNMORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
LONG LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
BOOTH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
LONG LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
ST ANN'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
Biskey Howe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
King's Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
Rosenborg

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
Cledford Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
King's Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
ST ANNE'S AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
Wardle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
JUBILEE PASTURES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
352

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
Sycamore

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
1 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
Elm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
BRITANNIA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
Ward

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
CCD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
Princess

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
57a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
Fiveacre Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
Smithy Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
11c

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
Chy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
Pear Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
36.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
Sanderson's Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
Sanderson's Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
Small Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
MP .75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
Small Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
Pipeline

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
Bowfields

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
MP 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
New Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
Union Gorse

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
Lower Deleacre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
45.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
Trent & Mersey Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
Bridge House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
Gas Valve Compound

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
Compound

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
Tetton Bridge Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
Pipeline

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
Gas Valve

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
MP .25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
Swanwillow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
Bridge Farm Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
Towing

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
Tetton

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
BOOTH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
TETTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
41.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
Small Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
42.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
Bridge Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
220

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
KINGSWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
NORTHWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
368

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
1c

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
1d

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
Lagoon

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
242

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
264

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
284

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
356

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
Sanderson's Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
ROWAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
40.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
FERNLEIGH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
CLEDFORD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
CHESTERTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
MP .25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
314

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
BOOTH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
CLEDFORD CRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
COPPICE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
Tetton

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
Sports Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
358

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
SYCAMORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
HUTCHINS' CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
354

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
336

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
274

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
SHELLEY CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
254

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
190

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
SHILTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
FAULKNER DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
Rumps Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
The Dairy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
230

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
41.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
294

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
VENABLES WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
FAIRACRE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
Trent and Mersey Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
Kinderton Arms

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
39.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
Pipeline

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
41.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
Cledford

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
304

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
TELFER COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
WOODSTOCK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
324

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
50.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
Tetton Hall Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
46.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
Caravan Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
Tetton

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
BOOTH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
MILTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
BUNBURY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
FALCON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
CHADWICK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2186
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2187
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2188
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2189
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2190
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2191
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2192
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2193
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2194
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2195
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2196
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2197
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_2198
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2199
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2200
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2201
MOSS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2202
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2203
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2204
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2205
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2206
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2207
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2208
ALLGREAVE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2209
ASHMORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2210
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_2211
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2212
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2213
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2214
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2215
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2216
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2217
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2218
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2219
BOSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2220
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2221
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2222
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2223
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2224
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2225
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2226
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2227
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_2228
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2229
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2230
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2231
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2232
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2233
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2234
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2235
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2236
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2237
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2238
WHITEGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2239
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2240
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2241
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2242
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2243
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2244
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2245
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2246
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2247
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2248
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2249
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2250
TYTHERINGTON CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2251
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2252
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_2253
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2254
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2255
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2256
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2257
WARMINGHAM LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2258
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2259
The Turnpike

AutoCAD SHX Text_2260
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2261
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2262
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2263
ALDINGTON DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2264
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2265
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2266
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2267
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2268
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2269
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2270
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2271
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2272
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2273
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2274
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2275
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2276
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2277
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2278
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2279
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2280
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2281
TARVIN CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2282
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2283
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_2284
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2285
Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_2286
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2287
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2288
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2289
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2290
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2291
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2292
STEELE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2293
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2294
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2295
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2296
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2297
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2298
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2299
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2300
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2301
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2302
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2303
BROXTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2304
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2305
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2306
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2307
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2308
GORSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2309
BLACKWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2310
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2311
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2312
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2313
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2314
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2315
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2316
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2317
Sutton Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2318
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2319
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2320
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2321
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2322
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2323
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2324
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2325
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2326
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2327
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2328
DAVENHAM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2329
Sports Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2330
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2331
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2332
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2333
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2334
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2335
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2336
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2337
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2338
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2339
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2340
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2341
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2342
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2343
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2344
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2345
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2346
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2347
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2348
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2349
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_2350
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2351
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2352
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2353
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2354
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2355
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2356
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2357
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2358
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2359
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2360
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2361
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2362
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2363
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2364
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2365
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2366
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2367
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2368
27a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2369
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2370
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2371
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2372
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2373
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2374
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2375
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2376
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2377
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2378
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2379
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2380
ALEXANDRA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2381
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2382
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2383
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2384
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2385
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2386
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2387
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2388
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2389
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2390
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2391
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2392
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2393
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2394
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2395
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2396
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2397
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2398
Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_2399
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2400
182a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2401
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2402
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2403
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2404
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2405
HANKELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2406
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2407
29a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2408
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2409
OSPREY CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2410
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2411
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2412
31a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2413
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2414
79a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2415
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2416
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2417
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2418
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2419
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2420
WHITEMORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2421
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2422
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2423
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2424
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2425
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2426
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2427
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2428
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2429
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2430
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2431
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2432
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2433
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2434
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2435
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2436
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2437
NIGHTINGALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2438
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2439
LIVINGSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2440
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2441
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2442
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2443
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2444
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2445
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2446
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2447
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2448
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2449
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2450
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2451
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2452
River Wheelock

AutoCAD SHX Text_2453
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2454
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2455
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2456
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2457
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2458
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2459
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2460
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2461
INGLEWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2462
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2463
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2464
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2465
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2466
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_2467
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2468
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2469
77a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2470
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2471
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2472
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2473
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2474
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2475
PRINCESS CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2476
REDSHAW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2477
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2478
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2479
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2480
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2481
BYRON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2482
184

AutoCAD SHX Text_2483
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2484
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2485
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2486
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2487
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2488
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2489
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2490
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2491
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2492
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2493
ASHTON CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2494
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2495
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2496
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2497
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2498
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2499
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2500
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2501
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2502
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2503
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2504
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2505
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2506
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2507
LISTER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2508
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2509
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2510
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2511
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2512
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2513
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2514
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2515
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2516
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2517
KESTREL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2518
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2519
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2520
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2521
WORLESTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2522
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2523
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2524
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2525
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_2526
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2527
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2528
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2529
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_2530
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2531
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2532
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2533
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2534
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2535
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2536
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2537
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2538
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2539
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2540
CROSS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2541
WOODEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_2542
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2543
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2544
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2545
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2546
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2547
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2548
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2549
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2550
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2551
Chadwick

AutoCAD SHX Text_2552
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2553
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2554
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2555
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2556
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2557
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2558
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2559
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2560
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2561
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2562
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2563
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2564
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2565
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2566
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2567
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2568
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2569
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2570
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2571
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2572
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2573
EARDSWICK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2574
Middlewich Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_2575
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2576
GEORGE VI AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2577
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2578
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2579
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2580
CORONATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2581
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2582
BEESTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2583
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2584
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2585
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2586
GEORGE VI

AutoCAD SHX Text_2587
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2588
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2589
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2590
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2591
ALEXANDRA RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2592
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2593
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2594
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2595
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2596
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2597
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2598
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2599
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2600
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2601
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2602
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2603
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2604
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2605
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_2606
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2607
WARMINGHAM LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2608
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2609
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2610
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_2611
River Wheelock

AutoCAD SHX Text_2612
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2613
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2614
Pettywood Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_2615
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2616
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2617
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2618
21a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2619
15b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2620
The Cobblers

AutoCAD SHX Text_2621
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2622
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_2623
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2624
Wych

AutoCAD SHX Text_2625
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2626
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2627
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2628
The Hay Loft

AutoCAD SHX Text_2629
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2630
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2631
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2632
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2633
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_2634
Day

AutoCAD SHX Text_2635
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2636
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2637
UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2638
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2639
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2640
CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2641
Co Const, UA &

AutoCAD SHX Text_2642
& CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2643
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2644
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2645
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2646
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2647
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2648
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2649
& CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2650
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2651
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2652
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2653
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2654
Co Const, UA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2655
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2656
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2657
Co Const,

AutoCAD SHX Text_2658
UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2659
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2660
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2661
Co Const,

AutoCAD SHX Text_2662
CD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2663
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2664
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2665
1.22m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2666
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2667
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2668
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2669
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2670
UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2671
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2672
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2673
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2674
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2675
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2676
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2677
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_2678
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2679
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2680
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2681
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2682
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2683
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2684
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2685
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2686
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2687
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2688
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2689
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2690
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2691
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2692
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2693
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2694
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2695
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2696
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2697
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2698
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2699
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2700
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2701
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2702
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2703
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2704
1.22m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2705
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2706
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2707
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2708
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2709
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2710
TB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2711
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2712
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2713
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2714
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2715
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2716
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2717
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2718
Co Const, UA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2719
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2720
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2721
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2722
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2723
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2724
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2725
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2726
UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2727
Co Const,

AutoCAD SHX Text_2728
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2729
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2730
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2731
Co Const, UA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2732
& CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2733
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2734
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2735
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2736
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2737
1.22m TB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2738
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2739
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2740
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2741
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2742
1.22m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2743
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2744
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2745
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2746
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2747
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2748
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2749
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2750
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_2751
Co Const,

AutoCAD SHX Text_2752
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2753
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2754
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2755
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2756
Powell

AutoCAD SHX Text_2757
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2758
25a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2759
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_2760
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2761
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2762
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2763
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2764
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2765
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2766
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2767
Cedar Barns

AutoCAD SHX Text_2768
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2769
Dane View

AutoCAD SHX Text_2770
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2771
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2772
The Old Byre

AutoCAD SHX Text_2773
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2774
Anvil

AutoCAD SHX Text_2775
WINDSOR CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2776
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2777
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2778
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2779
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2780
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2781
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2782
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2783
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2784
8e

AutoCAD SHX Text_2785
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_2786
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_2787
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2788
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2789
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2790
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2791
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2792
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2793
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2794
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2795
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2796
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2797
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2798
Harbutts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2799
RAVENSCROFT CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2800
HARBUTTS VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2801
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2802
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2803
16 to 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2804
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2805
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2806
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2807
1 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2808
2 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2809
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2810
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2811
The Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2812
Universal House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2813
Barns

AutoCAD SHX Text_2814
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2815
Kinderton

AutoCAD SHX Text_2816
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2817
Massie

AutoCAD SHX Text_2818
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2819
Ellis

AutoCAD SHX Text_2820
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2821
Fytton

AutoCAD SHX Text_2822
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2823
Aston

AutoCAD SHX Text_2824
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2825
Spotswood

AutoCAD SHX Text_2826
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2827
Gilmore

AutoCAD SHX Text_2828
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2829
Bridgeman

AutoCAD SHX Text_2830
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2831
Byron

AutoCAD SHX Text_2832
The Gables

AutoCAD SHX Text_2833
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2834
Cotton Hall Barns

AutoCAD SHX Text_2835
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2836
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2837
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2838
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2839
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2840
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2841
Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2842
Industrial

AutoCAD SHX Text_2843
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2844
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2845
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2846
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2847
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2848
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2849
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2850
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2851
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2852
Valley Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2853
SANDERSON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2854
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2855
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2856
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2857
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2858
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2859
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2860
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2861
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2862
Custody Suite

AutoCAD SHX Text_2863
Cheshire Constabulary

AutoCAD SHX Text_2864
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2865
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2866
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_2867
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_2868
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2869
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2870
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2871
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2872
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2873
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_2874
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2875
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_2876
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2877
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2878
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2879
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2880
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2881
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_2882
WALLCROFT GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2883
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2884
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2885
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2886
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2887
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2888
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2889
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2890
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2891
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2892
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2893
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2894
Briar Pool Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2895
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2896
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2897
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2898
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2899
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2900
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2901
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2902
Verity Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2903
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2904
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2905
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2906
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2907
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2908
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2909
TUDOR CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2910
REGENCY WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2911
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2912
King's

AutoCAD SHX Text_2913
53 to 64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2914
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2915
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2916
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2917
Queen's Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2918
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2919
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2920
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2921
Prosperity Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2922
THE LOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2923
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2924
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2925
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2926
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2927
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2928
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2929
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2930
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2931
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_2932
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2933
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2934
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2935
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2936
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2937
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2938
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2939
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2940
SPEY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2941
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2942
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2943
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2944
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2945
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2946
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2947
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2948
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2949
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2950
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2951
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2952
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2953
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2954
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2955
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2956
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2957
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2958
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2959
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2960
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2961
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2962
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2963
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2964
HONITON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2965
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2966
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2967
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2968
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2969
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2970
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2971
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2972
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2973
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2974
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2975
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2976
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2977
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2978
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2979
PENNYMOOR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2980
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2981
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_2982
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2983
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2984
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2985
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2986
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2987
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2988
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2989
Settling Bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_2990
Sloping Masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_2991
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2992
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2993
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2994
Fn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2995
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2996
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2997
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2998
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2999
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3000
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3001
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3002
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3003
Millbrook Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3004
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3005
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3006
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3007
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3008
A2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3009
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3010
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3011
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3012
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3013
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3014
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3015
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3016
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3017
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3018
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3019
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3020
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3021
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3022
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_3023
Oaklands

AutoCAD SHX Text_3024
Kinderton Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3025
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3026
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3027
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3028
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3029
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3030
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3031
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3032
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3033
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3034
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_3035
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3036
WATERS EDGE MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3037
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3038
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3039
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3040
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_3041
Cotton Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3042
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3043
Flats

AutoCAD SHX Text_3044
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3045
Dickenson

AutoCAD SHX Text_3046
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3047
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3048
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3049
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3050
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3051
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3052
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3053
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3054
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3055
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3056
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3057
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3058
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3059
FLAVIAN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3060
SAMIAN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3061
Janelo

AutoCAD SHX Text_3062
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3063
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3064
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3065
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3066
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3067
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3068
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3069
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3070
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3071
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_3072
Weighbridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3073
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3074
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3075
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3076
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3077
Pioneer House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3078
Dalton House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3079
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3080
6 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3081
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3082
84 to 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3083
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3084
Longcross Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3085
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3086
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3087
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3088
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3089
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3090
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3091
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3092
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3093
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3094
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3095
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3096
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_3097
59 to 61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3098
MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3099
NEWTON HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3100
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_3101
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_3102
M 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3103
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3104
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3105
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_3106
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3107
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3108
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3109
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3110
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3111
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3112
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3113
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3114
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3115
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3116
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3117
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3118
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3119
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3120
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3121
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3122
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3123
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3124
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3125
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3126
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3127
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3128
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3129
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3130
Glendor

AutoCAD SHX Text_3131
Cranleigh

AutoCAD SHX Text_3132
Beech View

AutoCAD SHX Text_3133
MIDDLEWICH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3134
Cotton Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3135
A 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3136
Offtake Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_3137
Natural Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_3138
M 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3139
MIDDLEWICH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3140
A 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3141
Heywood

AutoCAD SHX Text_3142
Elm Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3143
The Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_3144
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_3145
Cotton View

AutoCAD SHX Text_3146
56.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3147
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3148
53.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3149
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3150
Ppg

AutoCAD SHX Text_3151
BROAD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3152
57.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3153
57.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3154
Cotton Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3155
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3156
Cotton Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3157
Training Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_3158
Equestrian

AutoCAD SHX Text_3159
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3160
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3161
River Dane

AutoCAD SHX Text_3162
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3163
River

AutoCAD SHX Text_3164
Dane

AutoCAD SHX Text_3165
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3166
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3167
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3168
BROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3169
Croco

AutoCAD SHX Text_3170
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3171
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3172
Primrose Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3173
Primrose Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3174
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3175
55.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3176
46.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3177
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3178
55.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3179
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3180
M 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3181
BROAD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3182
Ravensmoor

AutoCAD SHX Text_3183
Footbridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3184
51.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3185
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3186
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3187
(covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3188
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3189
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3190
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3191
Holly Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3192
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3193
56.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3194
Pipeline

AutoCAD SHX Text_3195
Sproston

AutoCAD SHX Text_3196
Cinderhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_3197
Hill Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3198
53.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3199
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_3200
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_3201
POOLFORD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3202
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3203
River

AutoCAD SHX Text_3204
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3205
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_3206
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3207
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_3208
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3209
Moorsbarrow Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3210
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3211
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3212
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3213
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3214
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3215
52.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3216
Sanderson's

AutoCAD SHX Text_3217
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3218
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3219
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3220
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3221
51.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3222
(Disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3223
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3224
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3225
52.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3226
52.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3227
Mooresbarrow

AutoCAD SHX Text_3228
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3229
50.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3230
53.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3231
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3232
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3233
Metalled

AutoCAD SHX Text_3234
Airfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_3235
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3236
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3237
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3238
BRERETON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3239
Metalled

AutoCAD SHX Text_3240
Oakley Manor

AutoCAD SHX Text_3241
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3242
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3243
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3244
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3245
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3246
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3247
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3248
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3249
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3250
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3251
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_3252
Holly

AutoCAD SHX Text_3253
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3254
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3255
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3256
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3257
Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_3258
Hollies

AutoCAD SHX Text_3259
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3260
Sproston Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_3261
52.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3262
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3263
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3264
River Dane

AutoCAD SHX Text_3265
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3266
Old Post Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_3267
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3268
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3269
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3270
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3271
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3272
Fern

AutoCAD SHX Text_3273
Sproston

AutoCAD SHX Text_3274
BRERETON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3275
Dockbank Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3276
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3277
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3278
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_3279
Granary

AutoCAD SHX Text_3280
49.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3281
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3282
Beechfields

AutoCAD SHX Text_3283
Gables

AutoCAD SHX Text_3284
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3285
HOLMES CHAPEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3286
Dunromin

AutoCAD SHX Text_3287
Brookfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_3288
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3289
River Croco

AutoCAD SHX Text_3290
Beech Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_3291
WREN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3292
Cedar

AutoCAD SHX Text_3293
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3294
50.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3295
Sproston

AutoCAD SHX Text_3296
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3297
Dairy House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3298
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3299
Smithy

AutoCAD SHX Text_3300
Fernieigh

AutoCAD SHX Text_3301
A 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3302
Ivy Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3303
The Limes

AutoCAD SHX Text_3304
41.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3305
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3306
Manor

AutoCAD SHX Text_3307
Fox and Hounds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3308
49.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3309
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3310
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3311
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3312
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3313
Bowling

AutoCAD SHX Text_3314
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3315
50.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3316
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_3317
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3318
The Homestead

AutoCAD SHX Text_3319
The Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_3320
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3321
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3322
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3323
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_3324
Brooklyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3325
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3326
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3327
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3328
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3329
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3330
Sewage Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_3331
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3332
Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_3333
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3334
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3335
Brierley Hulme

AutoCAD SHX Text_3336
49.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3337
Dawfields

AutoCAD SHX Text_3338
49.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3339
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3340
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3341
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3342
48.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3343
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3344
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3345
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3346
44.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3347
Parme Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3348
BROAD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3349
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3350
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3351
48.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3352
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_3353
50.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3354
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_3355
Highbrow

AutoCAD SHX Text_3356
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3357
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3358
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3359
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3360
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3361
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3362
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_3363
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3364
Parkside Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3365
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3366
Walker's

AutoCAD SHX Text_3367
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3368
Broadlane Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3369
Sanderson's

AutoCAD SHX Text_3370
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3371
JONES'S LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3372
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3373
46.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3374
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3375
BRERETON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3376
Fn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3377
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3378
44.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3379
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3380
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3381
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_3382
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3383
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3384
40.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3385
Hill View

AutoCAD SHX Text_3386
Oaklands

AutoCAD SHX Text_3387
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_3388
River Dane

AutoCAD SHX Text_3389
BYLEY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3390
41.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3391
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3392
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3393
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3394
Higher Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3395
Daisy Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3396
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3397
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3398
Glenville

AutoCAD SHX Text_3399
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3400
HOLMES CHAPEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3401
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3402
Ash Lea

AutoCAD SHX Text_3403
45.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3404
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3405
Drumble

AutoCAD SHX Text_3406
Ivy Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3407
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3408
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3409
48.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3410
Parkside

AutoCAD SHX Text_3411
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3412
43.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3413
Filling Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_3414
Glenellen

AutoCAD SHX Text_3415
47.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3416
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3417
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3418
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3419
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3420
A 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3421
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_3422
Sproston Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_3423
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3424
Fender Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_3425
Kinderton Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3426
A 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3427
River Croco

AutoCAD SHX Text_3428
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3429
Spring Covert

AutoCAD SHX Text_3430
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3431
Farmhouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_3432
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3433
Briery Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_3434
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3435
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3436
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3437
Rookery Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_3438
LODGE LANE (Track)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3439
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3440
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3441
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3442
Pool Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3443
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3444
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3445
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3446
Kinderton

AutoCAD SHX Text_3447
Mobile Home Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_3448
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3449
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3450
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3451
Briar Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_3452
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3453
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3454
36.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3455
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3456
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3457
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3458
CLEDFORD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3459
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3460
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3461
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3462
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3463
B 5081

AutoCAD SHX Text_3464
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3465
34.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3466
Highfields

AutoCAD SHX Text_3467
35.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3468
Byley

AutoCAD SHX Text_3469
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3470
B 5081

AutoCAD SHX Text_3471
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3472
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3473
Byley

AutoCAD SHX Text_3474
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3475
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3476
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3477
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3478
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3479
BYLEY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3480
Byley Hill Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3481
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3482
30.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3483
28.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3484
River Dane

AutoCAD SHX Text_3485
Dane

AutoCAD SHX Text_3486
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3487
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3488
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3489
Byley Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3490
BYLEY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3491
29.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3492
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3493
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3494
BYLEY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3495
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3496
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3497
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3498
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3499
BRAMBLE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3500
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3501
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3502
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3503
ASTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3504
B 5309

AutoCAD SHX Text_3505
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3506
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3507
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3508
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3509
Industrial Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_3510
34.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3511
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3512
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3513
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3514
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3515
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3516
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3517
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3518
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3519
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3520
33.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3521
River

AutoCAD SHX Text_3522
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3523
TELFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3524
CENTURION WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3525
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3526
Lodge Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_3527
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3528
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3529
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3530
HOLMES CHAPEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3531
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3532
Kinderton Hall Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_3533
GALLOWAY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3534
Filling Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_3535
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3536
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3537
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3538
Lodge Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3539
Penmaen

AutoCAD SHX Text_3540
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3541
Sewage Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_3542
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3543
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3544
HEREFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3545
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3546
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3547
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3548
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3549
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3550
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3551
A 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3552
34.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3553
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3554
HEREFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3555
B 5309

AutoCAD SHX Text_3556
34.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3557
MS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3558
37.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3559
Pipeline

AutoCAD SHX Text_3560
POCHIN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3561
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3562
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_3563
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3564
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3565
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3566
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3567
Foot Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3568
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3569
Midpoint 18 Motorway

AutoCAD SHX Text_3570
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3571
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3572
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3573
Salt Cellar

AutoCAD SHX Text_3574
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_3575
Croco

AutoCAD SHX Text_3576
32.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3577
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3578
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3579
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_3580
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3581
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3582
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3583
39.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3584
Bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_3585
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3586
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_3587
32.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3588
Settling Bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_3589
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_3590
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3591
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_3592
Settling

AutoCAD SHX Text_3593
Settling Bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_3594
Warehouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_3595
Glenholme

AutoCAD SHX Text_3596
CLEDFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3597
Cledford Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_3598
Sanderson's Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_3599
Brookfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_3600
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_3601
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3602
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3603
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_3604
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3605
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3606
Cledford House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3607
ERF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3608
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3609
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3610
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3611
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3612
Cledford Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3613
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3614
King Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_3615
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3616
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3617
B 5309

AutoCAD SHX Text_3618
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3619
Blue Slates

AutoCAD SHX Text_3620
28.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3621
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_3622
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3623
(site of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3624
Ravenscroft Hall Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3625
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3626
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3627
35.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3628
Ravenscroft Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3629
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3630
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_3631
Kinderton Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3632
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_3633
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3634
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_3635
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_3636
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3637
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3638
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3639
35.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3640
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3641
Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_3642
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3643
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_3644
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3645
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3646
30.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3647
King Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_3648
River Dane

AutoCAD SHX Text_3649
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3650
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3651
River Croco

AutoCAD SHX Text_3652
MP 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3653
27.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3654
Ravenscroft Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3655
Trading Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_3656
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3657
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_3658
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3659
Blue Slates Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3660
Group

AutoCAD SHX Text_3661
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3662
Pumping

AutoCAD SHX Text_3663
Ravenscroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_3664
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3665
and Garden Remains

AutoCAD SHX Text_3666
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3667
King Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_3668
37.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3669
Pipeline

AutoCAD SHX Text_3670
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_3671
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3672
War Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_3673
St Michael and

AutoCAD SHX Text_3674
LEADSMITHY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_3675
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_3676
KINDERTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_3677
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_3678
SEA BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_3679
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3680
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3681
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_3682
DALTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3683
The Boar's Head (PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3684
33.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3685
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3686
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3687
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_3688
River Croco

AutoCAD SHX Text_3689
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3690
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3691
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3692
St Ann's Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3693
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3694
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3695
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3696
DEVON

AutoCAD SHX Text_3697
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3698
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3699
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3700
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3701
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3702
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3703
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3704
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3705
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3706
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3707
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3708
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3709
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3710
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3711
CENTURION WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3712
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3713
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3714
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3715
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3716
Midpoint 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3717
35.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3718
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3719
Motorway Industrial

AutoCAD SHX Text_3720
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3721
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3722
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3723
GUERNSEY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3724
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3725
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3726
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3727
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_3728
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3729
(Middlewich Medical

AutoCAD SHX Text_3730
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3731
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3732
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3733
Wharf

AutoCAD SHX Text_3734
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3735
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3736
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3737
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3738
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3739
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3740
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3741
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3742
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3743
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3744
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3745
63a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3746
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3747
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3748
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3749
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3750
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3751
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3752
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3753
Baile

AutoCAD SHX Text_3754
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3755
Boat Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_3756
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3757
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3758
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3759
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_3760
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3761
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3762
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3763
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3764
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3765
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3766
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3767
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3768
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3769
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3770
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3771
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3772
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3773
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3774
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3775
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3776
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_3777
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3778
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3779
Vaults

AutoCAD SHX Text_3780
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3781
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_3782
KING'S CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3783
JERSEY WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3784
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3785
Brooks Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_3786
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3787
Fire

AutoCAD SHX Text_3788
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_3789
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3790
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3791
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3792
WYCH-HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3793
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3794
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3795
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3796
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3797
Middlewich

AutoCAD SHX Text_3798
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3799
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3800
FINNEY'S LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3801
22b

AutoCAD SHX Text_3802
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3803
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3804
DANE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_3805
LONGHORN CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3806
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3807
The Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_3808
The Arches

AutoCAD SHX Text_3809
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3810
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3811
Rosemount

AutoCAD SHX Text_3812
Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_3813
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3814
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3815
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3816
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3817
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3818
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3819
CHARTLEY GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3820
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3821
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3822
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3823
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_3824
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3825
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_3826
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3827
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3828
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3829
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3830
DIPLOMA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3831
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3832
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3833
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_3834
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3835
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3836
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3837
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3838
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3839
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3840
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3841
73A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3842
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3843
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3844
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3845
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3846
B 5309

AutoCAD SHX Text_3847
Big Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3848
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3849
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_3850
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3851
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3852
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3853
PADDOCK VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_3854
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3855
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3856
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3857
Newton

AutoCAD SHX Text_3858
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3859
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3860
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3861
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_3862
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3863
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3864
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3865
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_3866
34.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3867
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3868
Police

AutoCAD SHX Text_3869
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3870
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3871
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3872
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3873
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3874
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3875
Victoria

AutoCAD SHX Text_3876
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3877
PROSPERITY WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3878
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3879
31.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3880
All Angels Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_3881
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3882
DEXTER WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3883
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3884
Football

AutoCAD SHX Text_3885
Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_3886
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3887
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3888
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3889
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3890
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3891
66a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3892
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3893
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_3894
Trading Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_3895
LAWRENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3896
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3897
PEPPER STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_3898
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3899
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3900
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3901
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3902
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3903
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3904
The Poplars

AutoCAD SHX Text_3905
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3906
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3907
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3908
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3909
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3910
HADRIAN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3911
WHEELOCK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_3912
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_3913
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3914
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3915
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3916
DARLINGTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_3917
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3918
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3919
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_3920
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3921
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3922
Alley (Path)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3923
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3924
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3925
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3926
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3927
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3928
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3929
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3930
High School

AutoCAD SHX Text_3931
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3932
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3933
AVENUE EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3934
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3935
A 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3936
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_3937
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3938
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3939
SEDDON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_3940
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3941
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3942
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3943
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3944
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3945
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3946
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3947
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3948
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3949
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3950
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3951
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3952
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3953
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3954
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3955
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3956
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3957
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3958
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3959
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3960
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3961
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3962
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3963
WHITE PARK CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3964
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3965
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3966
Lady

AutoCAD SHX Text_3967
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3968
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3969
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3970
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3971
Salinae

AutoCAD SHX Text_3972
Monique

AutoCAD SHX Text_3973
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3974
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3975
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3976
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3977
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3978
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3979
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3980
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_3981
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3982
35b

AutoCAD SHX Text_3983
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3984
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3985
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3986
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3987
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3988
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_3989
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3990
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3991
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3992
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3993
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_3994
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3995
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3996
Rosemount

AutoCAD SHX Text_3997
Centre)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3998
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3999
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_4000
34.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4001
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4002
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4003
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4004
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_4005
Poolhead Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_4006
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4007
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4008
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4009
NEW KING STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4010
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4011
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4012
Annes

AutoCAD SHX Text_4013
Pipe Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_4014
Smithy

AutoCAD SHX Text_4015
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4016
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4017
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4018
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4019
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4020
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_4021
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4022
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4023
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4024
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4025
Sunnyside

AutoCAD SHX Text_4026
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4027
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4028
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4029
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4030
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4031
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4032
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4033
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4034
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4035
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4036
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4037
WEST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4038
WILLOW COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4039
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4040
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4041
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4042
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4043
ST MICHAEL'S WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4044
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4045
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4046
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4047
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4048
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4049
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4050
A 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4051
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_4052
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4053
GARFIT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4054
Garden Earthworks

AutoCAD SHX Text_4055
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4056
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4057
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4058
AYRSHIRE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4059
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4060
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4061
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4062
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4063
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4064
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4065
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4066
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4067
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4068
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4069
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4070
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4071
Superstore

AutoCAD SHX Text_4072
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4073
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4074
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4075
Red Cow

AutoCAD SHX Text_4076
CIVIC WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4077
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4078
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4079
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4080
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4081
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4082
SHORTHORN CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4083
Wych

AutoCAD SHX Text_4084
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4085
ST ANN'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4086
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4087
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4088
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4089
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_4090
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4091
LEWIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4092
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4093
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4094
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4095
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4096
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4097
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4098
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4099
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4100
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4101
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4102
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4103
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4104
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4105
HOLMES CHAPEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4106
DEAN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4107
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4108
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4109
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4110
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4111
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4112
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4113
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_4114
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4115
THE BULL RING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4116
Tel Ex

AutoCAD SHX Text_4117
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4118
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4119
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4120
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_4121
River Croco

AutoCAD SHX Text_4122
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4123
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_4124
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4125
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4126
Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_4127
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4128
Building

AutoCAD SHX Text_4129
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4130
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4131
King Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_4132
KING EDWARD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4133
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4134
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4135
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4136
LICHFIELD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4137
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4138
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4139
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4140
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4141
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4142
32.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4143
CHILLINGHAM CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4144
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4145
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4146
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4147
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4148
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4149
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4150
CORIANDER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4151
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4152
LAXTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4153
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4154
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4155
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4156
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4157
BROOKS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4158
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4159
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4160
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4161
Builder's

AutoCAD SHX Text_4162
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4163
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4164
ANGUS GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4165
NEWTON HALL MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4166
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4167
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_4168
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4169
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4170
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4171
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4172
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4173
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4174
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4175
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4176
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4177
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4178
Builder's

AutoCAD SHX Text_4179
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4180
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4181
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4182
Presby

AutoCAD SHX Text_4183
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4184
(Clinic and Day Centre)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4185
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4186
32.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4187
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4188
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4189
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4190
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4191
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4192
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4193
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4194
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4195
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4196
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4197
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4198
75a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4199
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4200
75to79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4201
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4202
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4203
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_4204
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4205
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4206
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4207
Pumping

AutoCAD SHX Text_4208
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4209
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4210
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4211
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4212
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4213
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4214
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4215
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4216
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4217
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4218
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4219
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4220
HEREFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4221
36a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4222
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4223
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4224
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4225
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4226
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4227
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4228
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4229
36.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4230
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4231
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4232
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4233
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4234
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4235
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4236
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4237
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4238
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4239
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4240
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4241
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4242
33a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4243
Civic

AutoCAD SHX Text_4244
Lex House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4245
White

AutoCAD SHX Text_4246
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4247
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4248
Marian

AutoCAD SHX Text_4249
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4250
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4251
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4252
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4253
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4254
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4255
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4256
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4257
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4258
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4259
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4260
WEBB'S LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4261
MAIDENHILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4262
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4263
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4264
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4265
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4266
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4267
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4268
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4269
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4270
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4271
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4272
35a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4273
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4274
31.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4275
Cheshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_4276
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4277
Clinic

AutoCAD SHX Text_4278
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_4279
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4280
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4281
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4282
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4283
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4284
LAMBOURNE GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4285
Stonemasons

AutoCAD SHX Text_4286
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4287
MP 0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4288
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4289
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4290
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4291
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4292
Ivy

AutoCAD SHX Text_4293
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4294
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4295
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4296
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4297
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4298
Cheshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_4299
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4300
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4301
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4302
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4303
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_4304
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4305
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4306
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4307
NEWTON HEATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4308
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4309
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4310
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4311
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4312
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4313
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4314
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4315
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4316
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4317
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4318
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4319
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4320
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4321
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4322
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4323
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_4324
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4325
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4326
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4327
Southway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4328
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4329
White Horse

AutoCAD SHX Text_4330
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4331
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4332
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4333
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4334
45A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4335
Millside

AutoCAD SHX Text_4336
32.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4337
BEECH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4338
LAWRENCE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4339
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_4340
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4341
HIGHTOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_4342
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4343
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4344
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4345
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4346
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4347
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4348
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4349
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4350
Town Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4351
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4352
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4353
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4354
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4355
KING STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4356
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4357
WPI House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4358
Kinderton House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4359
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4360
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4361
34.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4362
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_4363
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4364
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4365
WEST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4366
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4367
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4368
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4369
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4370
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4371
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4372
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4373
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4374
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_4375
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4376
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4377
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4378
Dock

AutoCAD SHX Text_4379
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4380
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4381
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4382
Harbutt's Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_4383
FOSSA CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4384
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4385
MILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4386
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4387
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4388
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4389
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4390
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4391
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_4392
Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_4393
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4394
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4395
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4396
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_4397
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_4398
Sanderson's

AutoCAD SHX Text_4399
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4400
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4401
Industrial Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_4402
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4403
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4404
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4405
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4406
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4407
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4408
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4409
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4410
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4411
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4412
Lyndene

AutoCAD SHX Text_4413
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4414
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4415
Na Cora

AutoCAD SHX Text_4416
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4417
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4418
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4419
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4420
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4421
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4422
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4423
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4424
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4425
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_4426
32.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4427
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4428
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4429
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4430
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4431
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4432
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4433
DIERDENS TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4434
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4435
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4436
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4437
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4438
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4439
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4440
Big Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_4441
THE MOORINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4442
Dry

AutoCAD SHX Text_4443
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4444
Waters Meet

AutoCAD SHX Text_4445
Keepers Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4446
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4447
MIDDLEWICH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4448
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4449
Lasufer Plus One

AutoCAD SHX Text_4450
Southfork

AutoCAD SHX Text_4451
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4452
Shangri-la

AutoCAD SHX Text_4453
FALLON COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4454
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4455
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4456
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4457
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4458
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4459
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_4460
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4461
PIPPIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_4462
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4463
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4464
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_4465
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4466
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4467
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4468
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4469
SMALLWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4470
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4471
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4472
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_4473
171

AutoCAD SHX Text_4474
Manor Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_4475
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_4476
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_4477
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4478
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4479
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4480
Warmingham

AutoCAD SHX Text_4481
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4482
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4483
Middlewich High School

AutoCAD SHX Text_4484
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4485
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4486
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4487
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4488
White Horse Alley

AutoCAD SHX Text_4489
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4490
LEWIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4491
81a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4492
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4493
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4494
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4495
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4496
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_4497
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4498
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4499
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4500
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4501
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4502
WALKER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4503
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4504
CORONATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4505
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_4506
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4507
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_4508
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4509
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4510
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4511
(course of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4512
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4513
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4514
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4515
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4516
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4517
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4518
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4519
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4520
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4521
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_4522
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_4523
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_4524
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_4525
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4526
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4527
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4528
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4529
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4530
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4531
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4532
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_4533
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4534
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4535
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4536
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4537
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4538
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4539
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4540
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4541
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4542
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4543
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4544
Dry

AutoCAD SHX Text_4545
ROYLANCE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4546
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_4547
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4548
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_4549
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4550
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4551
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4552
SUTTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4553
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4554
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4555
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4556
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4557
KITFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4558
WHIRLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4559
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4560
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4561
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4562
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4563
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_4564
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4565
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_4566
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4567
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4568
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4569
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4570
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4571
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_4572
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4573
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_4574
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4575
39.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4576
Settling

AutoCAD SHX Text_4577
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4578
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4579
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_4580
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4581
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4582
Sanderson's

AutoCAD SHX Text_4583
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4584
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4585
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4586
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4587
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4588
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4589
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4590
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4591
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4592
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4593
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4594
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4595
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4596
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4597
TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4598
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4599
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4600
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4601
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4602
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4603
MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4604
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4605
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_4606
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4607
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4608
51a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4609
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4610
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4611
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4612
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_4613
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4614
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4615
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4616
206

AutoCAD SHX Text_4617
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4618
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4619
ALEXANDRA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4620
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4621
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4622
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4623
St Anne's Wharf

AutoCAD SHX Text_4624
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4625
Whitegate Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_4626
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4627
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4628
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4629
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4630
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_4631
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_4632
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4633
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4634
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4635
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4636
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4637
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4638
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4639
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_4640
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4641
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4642
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_4643
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4644
39.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4645
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4646
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_4647
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4648
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4649
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4650
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4651
61b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4652
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4653
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4654
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4655
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_4656
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4657
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4658
Dock

AutoCAD SHX Text_4659
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4660
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4661
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4662
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4663
39.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4664
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4665
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4666
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4667
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4668
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_4669
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4670
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4671
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4672
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4673
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4674
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4675
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4676
OAK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4677
(Path)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4678
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4679
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4680
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4681
Bembridge Ct

AutoCAD SHX Text_4682
MAIDENHILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4683
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4684
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4685
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_4686
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4687
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4688
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4689
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4690
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4691
MANOR FIELDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4692
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_4693
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4694
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_4695
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4696
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4697
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_4698
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4699
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4700
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_4701
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4702
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4703
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4704
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4705
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4706
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4707
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4708
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4709
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4710
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4711
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4712
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4713
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4714
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4715
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_4716
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4717
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4718
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4719
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4720
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4721
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4722
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4723
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4724
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4725
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_4726
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4727
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_4728
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_4729
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4730
MATHER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4731
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4732
Bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_4733
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4734
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4735
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4736
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4737
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4738
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4739
41.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4740
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4741
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4742
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4743
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4744
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4745
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4746
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4747
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4748
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4749
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4750
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4751
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4752
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4753
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4754
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4755
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4756
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4757
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4758
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4759
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4760
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4761
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4762
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4763
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4764
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_4765
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4766
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4767
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4768
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4769
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_4770
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4771
Leisure Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_4772
WARDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4773
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4774
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4775
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4776
STALLARD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4777
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4778
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4779
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4780
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4781
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_4782
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4783
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4784
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4785
SHROPSHIRE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4786
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4787
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4788
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_4789
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4790
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4791
41.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4792
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4793
(Dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4794
Newton Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4795
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4796
VENTNOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4797
MANOR CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4798
MANOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4799
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4800
Trent and Mersey Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_4801
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_4802
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_4803
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4804
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_4805
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4806
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4807
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4808
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4809
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4810
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4811
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4812
St Mary's Catholic

AutoCAD SHX Text_4813
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4814
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4815
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4816
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4817
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4818
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4819
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4820
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_4821
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4822
42.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4823
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4824
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4825
Wardle

AutoCAD SHX Text_4826
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4827
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4828
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4829
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_4830
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4831
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4832
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4833
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4834
ROAD BETA

AutoCAD SHX Text_4835
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4836
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4837
GEORGE VI AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4838
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_4839
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4840
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4841
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4842
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4843
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4844
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4845
ROLT CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4846
ASHFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4847
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4848
BEMBRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4849
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4850
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4851
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4852
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4853
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4854
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4855
CRESANNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4856
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4857
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4858
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4859
BUTLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4860
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4861
37.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4862
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4863
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4864
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4865
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4866
WESTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_4867
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4868
105a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4869
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4870
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4871
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4872
Flea Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_4873
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4874
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4875
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_4876
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_4877
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4878
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_4879
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_4880
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4881
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4882
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4883
Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_4884
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4885
1 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4886
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4887
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4888
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4889
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4890
WARMINGHAM LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4891
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4892
59a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4893
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4894
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4895
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4896
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4897
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4898
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_4899
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_4900
War Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_4901
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4902
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4903
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4904
LONGWOOD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4905
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4906
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4907
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_4908
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4909
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4910
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4911
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4912
HAYHURST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4913
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4914
SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4915
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4916
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4917
ELM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4918
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4919
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_4920
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4921
Hannah's Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_4922
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4923
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4924
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4925
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4926
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4927
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4928
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4929
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4930
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4931
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4932
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_4933
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4934
ELM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4935
POPLAR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4936
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4937
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4938
QUEEN'S DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4939
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4940
LONG LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4941
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4942
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4943
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4944
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4945
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4946
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4947
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4948
Basin

AutoCAD SHX Text_4949
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4950
DENBIGH CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4951
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4952
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_4953
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4954
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4955
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4956
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4957
Newton

AutoCAD SHX Text_4958
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4959
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_4960
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4961
184

AutoCAD SHX Text_4962
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4963
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4964
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4965
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4966
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4967
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4968
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4969
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4970
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4971
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_4972
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_4973
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_4974
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4975
HENBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4976
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4977
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4978
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4979
ASTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4980
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4981
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4982
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4983
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4984
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4985
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_4986
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4987
ROMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_4988
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4989
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4990
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_4991
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4992
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4993
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4994
RUTLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4995
DALE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4996
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4997
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4998
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4999
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5000
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5001
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5002
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_5003
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5004
SANDOWN CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5005
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5006
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5007
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5008
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5009
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_5010
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5011
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5012
Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5013
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5014
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_5015
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5016
Canal House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5017
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5018
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5019
HURDSFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5020
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5021
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5022
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5023
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5024
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5025
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5026
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5027
Bowling

AutoCAD SHX Text_5028
ASH GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5029
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5030
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5031
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5032
BARRINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_5033
BROOKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5034
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5035
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5036
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5037
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5038
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5039
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5040
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5041
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5042
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5043
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_5044
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5045
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5046
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_5047
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5048
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5049
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5050
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5051
Pumping Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_5052
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5053
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5054
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5055
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5056
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5057
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5058
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5059
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5060
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5061
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5062
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5063
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_5064
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5065
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5066
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_5067
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5068
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5069
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5070
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5071
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5072
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5073
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5074
WESTBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_5075
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_5076
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5077
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5078
Alcocks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5079
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5080
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5081
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5082
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_5083
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5084
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5085
HUBERT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5086
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5087
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_5088
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_5089
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5090
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5091
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5092
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5093
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5094
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5095
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_5096
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5097
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5098
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5099
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5100
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5101
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5102
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_5103
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5104
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5105
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5106
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5107
ORCHARD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5108
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5109
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_5110
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5111
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_5112
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5113
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5114
Brooks Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_5115
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5116
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5117
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5118
DUNMORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5119
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5120
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5121
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5122
LONG LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5123
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5124
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5125
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5126
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5127
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5128
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5129
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_5130
BOOTH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5131
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_5132
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5133
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_5134
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5135
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5136
RUSHTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5137
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5138
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5139
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5140
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5141
LONG LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5142
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_5143
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5144
ST ANN'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5145
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_5146
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5147
Biskey Howe

AutoCAD SHX Text_5148
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5149
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_5150
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5151
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5152
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_5153
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5154
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5155
King's Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5156
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5157
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5158
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5159
Rosenborg

AutoCAD SHX Text_5160
Cledford Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_5161
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5162
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5163
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5164
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5165
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5166
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5167
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5168
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5169
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5170
King's Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5171
ST ANNE'S AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5172
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5173
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5174
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5175
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5176
Wardle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5177
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5178
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5179
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5180
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5181
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5182
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5183
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_5184
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_5185
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5186
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5187
Amorosa

AutoCAD SHX Text_5188
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5189
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5190
BISHOPS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5191
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5192
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_5193
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5194
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5195
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5196
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5197
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5198
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5199
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5200
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5201
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5202
14d

AutoCAD SHX Text_5203
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5204
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5205
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_5206
JUBILEE PASTURES

AutoCAD SHX Text_5207
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5208
Webb Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_5209
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5210
PATRONS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5211
RIMMER GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5212
HARRY MORTIMER WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_5213
PETER FLETCHER CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5214
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5215
TEDDY GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_5216
Church Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_5217
St Peter's

AutoCAD SHX Text_5218
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5219
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5220
1-2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5221
352

AutoCAD SHX Text_5222
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5223
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5224
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5225
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5226
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5227
Sycamore

AutoCAD SHX Text_5228
1 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5229
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5230
Elm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5231
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5232
BRITANNIA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5233
Sandbach United Football Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_5234
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5235
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5236
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5237
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5238
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5239
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5240
& CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5241
Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5242
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5243
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5244
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5245
Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5246
Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5247
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5248
& CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5249
Co Const, UA

AutoCAD SHX Text_5250
Ward

AutoCAD SHX Text_5251
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5252
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5253
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5254
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5255
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5256
Co Const, UA

AutoCAD SHX Text_5257
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5258
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5259
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5260
Co Const, UA

AutoCAD SHX Text_5261
& CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5262
Co Const, UA

AutoCAD SHX Text_5263
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5264
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5265
& CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5266
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5267
CCS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5268
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5269
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5270
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5271
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5272
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5273
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5274
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5275
0.91m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5276
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5277
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5278
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5279
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5280
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5281
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5282
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5283
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5284
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5285
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5286
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5287
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5288
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5289
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5290
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5291
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5292
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5293
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5294
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5295
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5296
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5297
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5298
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5299
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5300
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5301
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5302
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5303
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5304
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5305
SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5306
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5307
SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5308
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5309
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5310
SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5311
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5312
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5313
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5314
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5315
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5316
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5317
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5318
SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5319
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5320
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5321
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5322
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5323
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5324
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5325
Co Const, UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5326
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5327
CCD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5328
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5329
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5330
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5331
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5332
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5333
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5334
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5335
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5336
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5337
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5338
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5339
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5340
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5341
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5342
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5343
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5344
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5345
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5346
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5347
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5348
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5349
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5350
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5351
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5352
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5353
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5354
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5355
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5356
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5357
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5358
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5359
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5360
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5361
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5362
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5363
1.22m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5364
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5365
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5366
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5367
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5368
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5369
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5370
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5371
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5372
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5373
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5374
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5375
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5376
Co

AutoCAD SHX Text_5377
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5378
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5379
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5380
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5381
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5382
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5383
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5384
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5385
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5386
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5387
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5388
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5389
& CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5390
Co Const, UA

AutoCAD SHX Text_5391
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5392
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5393
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5394
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5395
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5396
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5397
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5398
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5399
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5400
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5401
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5402
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5403
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5404
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5405
UA & CP Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5406
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5407
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5408
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5409
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5410
Saxon

AutoCAD SHX Text_5411
Wesley House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5412
Tower House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5413
Church House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5414
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5415
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5416
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5417
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5418
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5419
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5420
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5421
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5422
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5423
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5424
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5425
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5426
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5427
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5428
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5429
Princess

AutoCAD SHX Text_5430
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5431
Business Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_5432
Edwin Foden

AutoCAD SHX Text_5433
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5434
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5435
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5436
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5437
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5438
Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_5439
Industrial

AutoCAD SHX Text_5440
57a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5441
Warmingham Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_5442
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_5443
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5444
Stables

AutoCAD SHX Text_5445
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5446
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_5447
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5448
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5449
Millbuck Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5450
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5451
Fiveacre Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5452
Oakfields Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5453
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_5454
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5455
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5456
1to3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5457
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5458
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_5459
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5460
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5461
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5462
15 to 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5463
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5464
CORNMILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5465
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5466
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5467
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5468
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5469
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5470
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5471
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5472
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5473
The Manor

AutoCAD SHX Text_5474
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5475
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5476
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5477
Wisdom Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_5478
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5479
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5480
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_5481
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5482
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5483
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5484
Smithy Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5485
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5486
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5487
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5488
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5489
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5490
Deb's Stables

AutoCAD SHX Text_5491
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5492
Horseshoe

AutoCAD SHX Text_5493
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5494
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5495
River Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5496
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5497
Cornmill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5498
Bridge Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5499
Millers Race

AutoCAD SHX Text_5500
Weir Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5501
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5502
Marion Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_5503
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_5504
Cricket Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_5505
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5506
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5507
WILLIAM FODEN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5508
54 to 64

AutoCAD SHX Text_5509
42 to 52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5510
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5511
1 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5512
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5513
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5514
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5515
Enterprise

AutoCAD SHX Text_5516
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5517
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5518
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5519
66 to 76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5520
32 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5521
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5522
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5523
ERIC DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5524
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5525
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5526
58c

AutoCAD SHX Text_5527
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5528
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5529
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5530
Oak Tree Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5531
Wheelock Rail Trail

AutoCAD SHX Text_5532
Ess

AutoCAD SHX Text_5533
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5534
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5535
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5536
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5537
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5538
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5539
Gas Meter House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5540
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5541
Blossom Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_5542
Scouts Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_5543
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_5544
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5545
Gas Meter House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5546
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_5547
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5548
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5549
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5550
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_5551
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_5552
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5553
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5554
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5555
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5556
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5557
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_5558
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5559
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5560
Gas Meter House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5561
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_5562
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_5563
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5564
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5565
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5566
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5567
11c

AutoCAD SHX Text_5568
Oakside

AutoCAD SHX Text_5569
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_5570
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5571
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_5572
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5573
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5574
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5575
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5576
Chy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5577
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_5578
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_5579
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5580
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5581
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5582
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5583
Crossings

AutoCAD SHX Text_5584
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5585
Springvale

AutoCAD SHX Text_5586
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5587
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_5588
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5589
Business

AutoCAD SHX Text_5590
Business

AutoCAD SHX Text_5591
Elton

AutoCAD SHX Text_5592
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5593
Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5594
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5595
Trackside

AutoCAD SHX Text_5596
Whitehall Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_5597
Lions Paw

AutoCAD SHX Text_5598
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5599
Millers

AutoCAD SHX Text_5600
Station Garage House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5601
Pet Cemetery

AutoCAD SHX Text_5602
Nyehome

AutoCAD SHX Text_5603
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_5604
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_5605
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5606
64a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5607
The Stable

AutoCAD SHX Text_5608
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5609
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5610
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5611
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5612
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5613
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5614
57a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5615
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5616
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5617
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5618
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5619
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_5620
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5621
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5622
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_5623
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_5624
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_5625
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5626
Gymnasium

AutoCAD SHX Text_5627
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5628
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5629
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5630
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5631
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5632
Rangatira

AutoCAD SHX Text_5633
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5634
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5635
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5636
Pear Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_5637
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5638
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5639
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5640
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5641
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5642
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5643
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5644
Parme Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5645
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5646
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5647
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5648
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5649
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5650
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5651
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5652
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5653
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5654
MP 164

AutoCAD SHX Text_5655
The Hayloft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5656
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_5657
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5658
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5659
64.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5660
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5661
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5662
Fousley Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5663
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5664
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5665
59.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5666
61.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5667
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5668
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5669
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5670
56.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5671
MP .75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5672
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5673
Longcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5674
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5675
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5676
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5677
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5678
The Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_5679
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5680
MP .25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5681
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5682
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5683
55.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5684
The Stables

AutoCAD SHX Text_5685
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5686
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_5687
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5688
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5689
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5690
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5691
63.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5692
57.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5693
56.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5694
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5695
57.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5696
Beech Tree Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5697
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5698
COOKESMERE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5699
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_5700
The Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5701
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5702
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5703
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5704
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5705
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5706
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5707
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5708
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5709
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5710
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5711
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5712
Wood Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5713
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5714
53.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5715
53.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5716
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5717
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5718
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5719
Small Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_5720
WOOD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5721
MP .25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5722
Hilltop

AutoCAD SHX Text_5723
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5724
57.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5725
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5726
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5727
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5728
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5729
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5730
ROMAN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_5731
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5732
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_5733
226

AutoCAD SHX Text_5734
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_5735
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5736
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5737
The Barns

AutoCAD SHX Text_5738
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5739
234

AutoCAD SHX Text_5740
MANIFOLD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5741
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5742
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5743
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5744
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5745
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5746
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5747
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5748
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5749
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5750
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5751
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5752
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5753
The Swallows

AutoCAD SHX Text_5754
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5755
DALTON COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5756
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5757
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5758
THE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5759
185

AutoCAD SHX Text_5760
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5761
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5762
ACACIA

AutoCAD SHX Text_5763
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_5764
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5765
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5766
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5767
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5768
RANDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5769
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5770
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5771
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5772
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5773
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5774
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5775
59.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5776
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5777
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5778
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_5779
Family Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_5780
Staff House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5781
155

AutoCAD SHX Text_5782
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5783
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5784
HATCHMERE CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5785
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5786
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5787
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5788
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5789
BROOKMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5790
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5791
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5792
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5793
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5794
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5795
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5796
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5797
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5798
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5799
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5800
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_5801
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5802
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5803
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5804
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5805
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5806
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5807
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5808
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5809
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5810
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5811
BENNETT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5812
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5813
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5814
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5815
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_5816
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5817
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5818
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_5819
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5820
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5821
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5822
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5823
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5824
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5825
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5826
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5827
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5828
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_5829
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5830
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5831
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5832
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5833
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5834
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5835
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5836
DANE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5837
St Peter's

AutoCAD SHX Text_5838
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_5839
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5840
203

AutoCAD SHX Text_5841
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_5842
Primary

AutoCAD SHX Text_5843
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5844
PECKFORTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5845
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5846
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5847
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5848
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5849
GRANGE CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5850
BRIDGEMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5851
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5852
RADNOR CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5853
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5854
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5855
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5856
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5857
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5858
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5859
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5860
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5861
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5862
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5863
ROWAN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5864
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_5865
CHAPELMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5866
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5867
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5868
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5869
RICHMOND CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5870
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5871
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5872
WRENMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5873
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5874
Barn Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5875
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5876
Marshgreen

AutoCAD SHX Text_5877
DEE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5878
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5879
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5880
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5881
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5882
Haven

AutoCAD SHX Text_5883
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5884
62.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5885
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5886
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5887
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5888
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5889
ST PETER'S RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5890
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5891
BUDWORTH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5892
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5893
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5894
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5895
CRABMILL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5896
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5897
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5898
REDESMERE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5899
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5900
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5901
ETHEROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5902
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5903
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5904
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5905
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5906
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5907
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5908
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5909
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5910
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5911
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5912
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_5913
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5914
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5915
TAXMERE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5916
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5917
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5918
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5919
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5920
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5921
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_5922
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5923
PICKMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5924
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5925
CUMBERMERE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5926
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5927
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5928
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5929
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5930
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5931
KING STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_5932
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5933
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5934
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5935
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5936
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5937
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5938
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5939
63.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5940
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5941
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5942
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5943
BOOTHSMERE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5944
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_5945
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5946
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5947
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5948
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5949
ELLESMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5950
60.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5951
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5952
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_5953
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5954
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5955
THE COPPICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5956
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5957
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5958
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5959
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5960
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5961
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5962
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5963
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5964
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5965
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5966
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5967
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5968
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5969
COOKESMERE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5970
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5971
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5972
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5973
VICARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5974
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5975
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5976
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5977
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_5978
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5979
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5980
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5981
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5982
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5983
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5984
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5985
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5986
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5987
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5988
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5989
OSSMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5990
224

AutoCAD SHX Text_5991
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5992
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_5993
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5994
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5995
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_5996
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5997
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5998
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5999
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6000
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6001
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6002
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6003
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6004
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6005
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6006
59.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6007
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6008
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6009
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6010
26a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6011
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6012
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6013
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6014
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6015
BOLLIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6016
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6017
62.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6018
DELAMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6019
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6020
171

AutoCAD SHX Text_6021
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6022
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6023
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6024
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6025
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_6026
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6027
GOWY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6028
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6029
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6030
OAKMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6031
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6032
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6033
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6034
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6035
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6036
231

AutoCAD SHX Text_6037
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6038
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6039
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6040
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6041
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6042
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6043
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6044
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6045
Elworth C of E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6046
SCHOOL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6047
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6048
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6049
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6050
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6051
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6052
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6053
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6054
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_6055
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6056
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6057
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6058
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6059
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6060
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6061
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6062
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6063
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6064
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_6065
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6066
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6067
217

AutoCAD SHX Text_6068
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6069
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6070
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6071
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6072
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6073
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6074
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6075
BAGMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6076
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6077
WEAVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_6078
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6079
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6080
TABLEY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6081
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6082
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6083
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6084
60.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6085
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6086
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6087
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6088
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6089
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6090
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6091
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6092
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6093
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6094
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6095
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6096
Club House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6097
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6098
Elworth Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6099
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6100
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6101
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6102
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6103
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6104
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6105
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6106
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_6107
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6108
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6109
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6110
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_6111
ROSTHERNE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6112
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6113
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6114
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_6115
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6116
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6117
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6118
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6119
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6120
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6121
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6122
The Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_6123
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6124
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6125
13b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6126
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6127
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6128
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6129
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6130
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6131
Townend Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_6132
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6133
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6134
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6135
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6136
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6137
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6138
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6139
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_6140
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6141
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6142
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6143
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6144
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6145
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_6146
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6147
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6148
Turnpike

AutoCAD SHX Text_6149
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6150
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6151
55.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6152
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6153
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6154
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6155
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6156
MIDDLEWICH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6157
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6158
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_6159
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6160
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6161
DEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6162
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6163
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6164
LAWTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6165
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6166
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6167
Sandbach

AutoCAD SHX Text_6168
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6169
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_6170
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6171
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6172
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6173
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_6174
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6175
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6176
GRANGE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6177
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6178
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6179
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6180
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6181
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6182
189

AutoCAD SHX Text_6183
VICARAGE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6184
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6185
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6186
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6187
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6188
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6189
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6190
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6191
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6192
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6193
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6194
BLAKEMERE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6195
TAME CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6196
GEORGE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_6197
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6198
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6199
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6200
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6201
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6202
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6203
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6204
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6205
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6206
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6207
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_6208
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6209
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6210
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_6211
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6212
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6213
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6214
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6215
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6216
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6217
68a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6218
RUSCOE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6219
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6220
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6221
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_6222
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6223
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6224
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6225
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6226
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6227
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6228
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6229
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_6230
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_6231
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_6232
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6233
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6234
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_6235
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6236
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6237
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6238
East Elworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_6239
Abbeyfields

AutoCAD SHX Text_6240
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6241
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6242
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6243
BLACKACRES CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6244
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_6245
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6246
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6247
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6248
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6249
RILEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6250
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6251
Warehouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_6252
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6253
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6254
Wks

AutoCAD SHX Text_6255
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6256
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_6257
54a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6258
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6259
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6260
63.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6261
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6262
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6263
ELWORTH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6264
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6265
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_6266
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_6267
B 5079

AutoCAD SHX Text_6268
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6269
PROCTORS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6270
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6271
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6272
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6273
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6274
63.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6275
31a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6276
PARK LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6277
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_6278
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6279
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6280
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_6281
62.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6282
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6283
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6284
Wks

AutoCAD SHX Text_6285
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6286
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6287
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6288
54.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6289
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_6290
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6291
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_6292
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6293
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_6294
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6295
319

AutoCAD SHX Text_6296
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_6297
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6298
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_6299
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_6300
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6301
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_6302
B 5079

AutoCAD SHX Text_6303
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_6304
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6305
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6306
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_6307
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6308
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6309
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6310
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6311
MIDDLEWICH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6312
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_6313
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6314
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6315
ABBEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6316
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6317
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_6318
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6319
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_6320
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6321
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6322
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6323
DEANS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6324
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6325
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6326
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6327
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6328
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6329
LODGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6330
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6331
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6332
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6333
59.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6334
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6335
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6336
Old Coach House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6337
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_6338
The Gables

AutoCAD SHX Text_6339
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6340
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6341
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_6342
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6343
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6344
301

AutoCAD SHX Text_6345
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_6346
Wks

AutoCAD SHX Text_6347
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6348
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6349
B 5079

AutoCAD SHX Text_6350
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6351
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6352
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6353
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6354
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6355
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6356
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6357
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6358
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6359
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6360
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_6361
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6362
HIND HEATH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6363
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_6364
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6365
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6366
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6367
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6368
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6369
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6370
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6371
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_6372
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6373
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6374
63.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6375
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6376
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_6377
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6378
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6379
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6380
Sanderson's Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_6381
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6382
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6383
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6384
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6385
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_6386
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6387
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6388
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6389
Curtishulme

AutoCAD SHX Text_6390
46.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6391
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_6392
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_6393
JONES'S LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6394
Joneslane Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6395
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6396
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6397
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6398
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6399
Knightshulme Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6400
Meadow View

AutoCAD SHX Text_6401
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6402
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6403
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6404
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6405
Cherry Tree Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6406
MP 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6407
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6408
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_6409
WOOD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6410
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_6411
Deleacre

AutoCAD SHX Text_6412
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6413
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6414
52.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6415
Lower

AutoCAD SHX Text_6416
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6417
Bed

AutoCAD SHX Text_6418
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6419
54.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6420
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6421
Slurry

AutoCAD SHX Text_6422
Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_6423
Bramble

AutoCAD SHX Text_6424
Filter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6425
Kinder

AutoCAD SHX Text_6426
Hollins Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_6427
54.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6428
Small Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_6429
Hollinswood Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6430
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6431
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6432
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6433
Hollinswood

AutoCAD SHX Text_6434
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6435
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_6436
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6437
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6438
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_6439
Wood Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_6440
Hollinsgreen

AutoCAD SHX Text_6441
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6442
Cott

AutoCAD SHX Text_6443
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6444
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_6445
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6446
Higher Deleacre

AutoCAD SHX Text_6447
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6448
Wood Lane Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6449
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6450
BOOTH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6451
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6452
Crow Nest

AutoCAD SHX Text_6453
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6454
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6455
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6456
Moston

AutoCAD SHX Text_6457
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_6458
50.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6459
46.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6460
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_6461
Crow Nest Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6462
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6463
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_6464
58.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6465
Stud Green Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6466
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_6467
57.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6468
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6469
The Moston

AutoCAD SHX Text_6470
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6471
DRAGON'S LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6472
Trent and Mersey Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_6473
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6474
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6475
Hollins Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_6476
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6477
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6478
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6479
48.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6480
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_6481
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_6482
Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_6483
Barlow Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_6484
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6485
49.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6486
Willow Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6487
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6488
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6489
White

AutoCAD SHX Text_6490
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_6491
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6492
Settling

AutoCAD SHX Text_6493
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6494
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6495
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_6496
Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_6497
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6498
Hollybank Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6499
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6500
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6501
Cranford

AutoCAD SHX Text_6502
Crows Nest Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6503
MP .25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6504
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6505
51.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6506
Mill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6507
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6508
MARSH GREEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6509
Yew Tree Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6510
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6511
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6512
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6513
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_6514
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6515
Ppg

AutoCAD SHX Text_6516
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6517
The Poplars

AutoCAD SHX Text_6518
Hollybank Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6519
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6520
The Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_6521
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6522
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_6523
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6524
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6525
DRAGONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6526
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6527
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6528
Small Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_6529
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6530
Beds

AutoCAD SHX Text_6531
End

AutoCAD SHX Text_6532
Baldrine

AutoCAD SHX Text_6533
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6534
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6535
WHARF

AutoCAD SHX Text_6536
48.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6537
51.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6538
MILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6539
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6540
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6541
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6542
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6543
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6544
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6545
Kingsley Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6546
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6547
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6548
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6549
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6550
CESTRIA CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6551
(um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6552
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6553
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6554
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6555
54.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6556
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6557
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6558
Fernlea

AutoCAD SHX Text_6559
HILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_6560
MOSS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6561
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6562
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6563
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6564
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6565
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6566
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6567
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6568
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6569
Sunnyside

AutoCAD SHX Text_6570
61.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6571
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6572
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6573
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6574
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6575
6f

AutoCAD SHX Text_6576
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6577
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6578
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6579
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6580
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6581
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6582
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6583
MARTREE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6584
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6585
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6586
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6587
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6588
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6589
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6590
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6591
GDNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6592
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6593
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6594
War Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_6595
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6596
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6597
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6598
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6599
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6600
58a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6601
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6602
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6603
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6604
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6605
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6606
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_6607
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6608
Ivy House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6609
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6610
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6611
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6612
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6613
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6614
60.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6615
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6616
(Nature Reserve)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6617
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_6618
Ppg

AutoCAD SHX Text_6619
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6620
MOSTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6621
MOSS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6622
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6623
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6624
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6625
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6626
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6627
Arncliffe

AutoCAD SHX Text_6628
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6629
61.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6630
MARSH GREEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6631
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6632
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6633
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6634
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_6635
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6636
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6637
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6638
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6639
Elworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_6640
Albert

AutoCAD SHX Text_6641
Rose

AutoCAD SHX Text_6642
1c

AutoCAD SHX Text_6643
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6644
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6645
Moss Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6646
MILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6647
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6648
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6649
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6650
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6651
FOUNDRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6652
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6653
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6654
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6655
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6656
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6657
Sunset View

AutoCAD SHX Text_6658
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6659
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6660
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6661
ST STEPHENS COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6662
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6663
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6664
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6665
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6666
Holly Tree Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6667
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6668
61.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6669
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6670
PLANT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6671
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6672
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6673
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6674
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6675
MULBERRY GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6676
OAKWOOD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6677
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6678
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6679
Oakwell

AutoCAD SHX Text_6680
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6681
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6682
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6683
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6684
53.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6685
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6686
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6687
Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6688
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6689
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6690
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6691
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6692
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6693
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6694
236

AutoCAD SHX Text_6695
ANGELINA CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6696
NEW STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_6697
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6698
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6699
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6700
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6701
LONDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6702
57.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6703
Crows Nest Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6704
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6705
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6706
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_6707
Ppg

AutoCAD SHX Text_6708
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6709
Belmore

AutoCAD SHX Text_6710
46.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6711
28b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6712
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6713
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6714
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6715
B 5079

AutoCAD SHX Text_6716
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6717
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6718
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6719
Knightshulme

AutoCAD SHX Text_6720
ELIZABETH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6721
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6722
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6723
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6724
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6725
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6726
52.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6727
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6728
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6729
MARSH GREEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6730
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6731
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6732
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6733
Moss Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_6734
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6735
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6736
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_6737
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6738
Applegate

AutoCAD SHX Text_6739
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6740
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6741
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6742
59.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6743
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6744
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6745
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6746
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6747
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6748
CLIFTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6749
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6750
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6751
Nursing Home

AutoCAD SHX Text_6752
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6753
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6754
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6755
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6756
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6757
Mersey Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_6758
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6759
Elworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_6760
3b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6761
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6762
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_6763
61.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6764
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6765
Halmar

AutoCAD SHX Text_6766
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6767
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6768
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6769
Trent and

AutoCAD SHX Text_6770
61.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6771
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6772
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6773
The Paddock

AutoCAD SHX Text_6774
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6775
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6776
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_6777
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_6778
The Moat

AutoCAD SHX Text_6779
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6780
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6781
Sandbach

AutoCAD SHX Text_6782
MP .75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6783
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6784
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6785
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6786
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6787
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6788
Grenfell House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6789
Elm Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_6790
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6791
Cricket Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_6792
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6793
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6794
60.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6795
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6796
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6797
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_6798
MORNINGTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6799
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6800
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6801
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6802
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6803
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6804
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6805
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6806
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6807
Greenacres

AutoCAD SHX Text_6808
WARMINGHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6809
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6810
Knobs Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_6811
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6812
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_6813
Brentwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_6814
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6815
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6816
Eltonmoss Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6817
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6818
NORTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6819
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6820
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6821
Plex Flash

AutoCAD SHX Text_6822
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6823
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6824
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6825
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6826
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6827
EVA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_6828
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6829
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6830
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_6831
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6832
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6833
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6834
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6835
Clovelly

AutoCAD SHX Text_6836
Elworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_6837
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6838
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6839
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6840
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6841
St Stephens

AutoCAD SHX Text_6842
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6843
STATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6844
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6845
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6846
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6847
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6848
Business Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_6849
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6850
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6851
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6852
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6853
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6854
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6855
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6856
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6857
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6858
Newlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_6859
ELM TREE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6860
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6861
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6862
Wilkinson

AutoCAD SHX Text_6863
ELANOR RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6864
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6865
Car

AutoCAD SHX Text_6866
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6867
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6868
Kerri Kee

AutoCAD SHX Text_6869
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6870
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6871
VICARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6872
OAK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_6873
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6874
SCHOOL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6875
MOSS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6876
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_6877
4b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6878
Crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_6879
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6880
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6881
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6882
OLD APPLECROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6883
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6884
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6885
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6886
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_6887
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6888
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6889
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_6890
.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6891
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6892
GOLDSMITH DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6893
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6894
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6895
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6896
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6897
Rookery

AutoCAD SHX Text_6898
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6899
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6900
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6901
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6902
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6903
Bryn Derwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_6904
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_6905
Moston House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6906
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6907
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6908
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6909
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6910
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_6911
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6912
Scotia

AutoCAD SHX Text_6913
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6914
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6915
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6916
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6917
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6918
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6919
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6920
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6921
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6922
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6923
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6924
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6925
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6926
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6927
Holly House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6928
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6929
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6930
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6931
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6932
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6933
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6934
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6935
The Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6936
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6937
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_6938
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6939
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6940
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6941
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6942
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6943
Springvale Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6944
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_6945
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6946
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6947
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_6948
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6949
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6950
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6951
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6952
MILTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6953
Tavern

AutoCAD SHX Text_6954
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6955
SANDY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6956
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6957
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6958
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6959
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6960
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6961
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6962
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6963
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6964
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6965
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_6966
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6967
SALT LINE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6968
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6969
Daron

AutoCAD SHX Text_6970
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_6971
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6972
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6973
SCOTT CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6974
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6975
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6976
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6977
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6978
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6979
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6980
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6981
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6982
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6983
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6984
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6985
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6986
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6987
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6988
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6989
MP 162

AutoCAD SHX Text_6990
Rookery

AutoCAD SHX Text_6991
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6992
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6993
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6994
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6995
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6996
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6997
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6998
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6999
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7000
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7001
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7002
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7003
Penderell

AutoCAD SHX Text_7004
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_7005
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7006
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7007
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7008
Brirene

AutoCAD SHX Text_7009
CHESTERTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_7010
FOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7011
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7012
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7013
Mount

AutoCAD SHX Text_7014
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7015
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7016
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_7017
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7018
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7019
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_7020
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7021
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7022
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7023
RICHARDSON

AutoCAD SHX Text_7024
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7025
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7026
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7027
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7028
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7029
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7030
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7031
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7032
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7033
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7034
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7035
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7036
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7037
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7038
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7039
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7040
Windy Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_7041
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7042
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7043
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7044
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7045
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_7046
la Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_7047
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7048
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7049
COVERDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7050
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7051
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7052
SHELLEY COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7053
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7054
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7055
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_7056
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7057
MP 71 & 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7058
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7059
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7060
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7061
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7062
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7063
ASHBY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7064
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7065
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_7066
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7067
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7068
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7069
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7070
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7071
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7072
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7073
Karenza

AutoCAD SHX Text_7074
69a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7075
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7076
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7077
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7078
LAWRENCE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7079
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7080
Royds Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_7081
Springvale

AutoCAD SHX Text_7082
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7083
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7084
43.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7085
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7086
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7087
BROWNING CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7088
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7089
WELLAND CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7090
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7091
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7092
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7093
ELTON CROSSINGS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7094
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7095
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7096
Lanark

AutoCAD SHX Text_7097
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7098
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_7099
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7100
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7101
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7102
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_7103
COLERIDGE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7104
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7105
MOSTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7106
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7107
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7108
WORDSWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7109
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_7110
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7111
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_7112
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7113
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7114
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_7115
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7116
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7117
Alendale

AutoCAD SHX Text_7118
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7119
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7120
SLs

AutoCAD SHX Text_7121
RED LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7122
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_7123
Ettiley Heath

AutoCAD SHX Text_7124
Maryland

AutoCAD SHX Text_7125
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7126
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7127
Glan-y-Gors

AutoCAD SHX Text_7128
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_7129
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7130
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7131
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7132
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7133
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7134
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7135
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7136
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7137
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7138
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7139
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7140
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7141
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7142
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7143
ETTILEY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7144
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7145
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7146
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7147
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7148
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_7149
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_7150
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7151
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7152
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7153
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7154
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7155
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7156
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7157
l5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7158
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7159
BYRON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7160
Bridge Mount

AutoCAD SHX Text_7161
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7162
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7163
SLs

AutoCAD SHX Text_7164
50.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7165
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7166
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7167
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7168
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7169
53.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7170
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7171
Nanhoran

AutoCAD SHX Text_7172
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7173
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7174
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7175
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7176
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7177
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7178
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_7179
MP .75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7180
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_7181
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7182
ROOKERY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7183
Hawthorns

AutoCAD SHX Text_7184
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7185
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7186
Sandown

AutoCAD SHX Text_7187
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7188
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7189
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7190
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7191
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7192
Business Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_7193
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_7194
Beech Lea

AutoCAD SHX Text_7195
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_7196
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7197
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7198
SOUTHEY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7199
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7200
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7201
MARLOW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7202
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7203
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7204
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7205
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7206
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7207
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7208
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7209
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7210
NEEDHAMS BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7211
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7212
MP 162

AutoCAD SHX Text_7213
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7214
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7215
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7216
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7217
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7218
ll

AutoCAD SHX Text_7219
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7220
MASEFIELD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_7221
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7222
57.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7223
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7224
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7225
ELWORTH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7226
61.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7227
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7228
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7229
DICKENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7230
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7231
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7232
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7233
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7234
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7235
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7236
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7237
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7238
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7239
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7240
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7241
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7242
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7243
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7244
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7245
Jon

AutoCAD SHX Text_7246
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_7247
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_7248
Longmynd

AutoCAD SHX Text_7249
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7250
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_7251
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_7252
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7253
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7254
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_7255
46.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7256
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7257
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7258
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_7259
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7260
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_7261
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7262
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7263
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7264
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7265
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7266
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7267
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7268
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7269
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7270
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7271
MEADOWGATE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7272
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7273
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7274
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7275
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7276
Kilmorie

AutoCAD SHX Text_7277
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_7278
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7279
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7280
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7281
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7282
GIBSON CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7283
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7284
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7285
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7286
MP .75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7287
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7288
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7289
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7290
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7291
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7292
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7293
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7294
Glen Mona

AutoCAD SHX Text_7295
MOSTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7296
OSBORNE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7297
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7298
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_7299
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7300
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7301
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7302
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7303
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7304
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7305
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7306
RUTLAND CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7307
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7308
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7309
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7310
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7311
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7312
MILLBUCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7313
ELTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7314
Crayford

AutoCAD SHX Text_7315
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7316
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7317
Fields View

AutoCAD SHX Text_7318
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7319
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7320
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7321
Paso

AutoCAD SHX Text_7322
HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7323
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7324
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7325
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7326
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7327
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7328
Elton

AutoCAD SHX Text_7329
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7330
Pleasant

AutoCAD SHX Text_7331
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7332
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7333
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7334
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7335
Conway

AutoCAD SHX Text_7336
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_7337
Mon Abri

AutoCAD SHX Text_7338
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7339
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7340
THACKERY

AutoCAD SHX Text_7341
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7342
Lilla

AutoCAD SHX Text_7343
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7344
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7345
Sedgewick

AutoCAD SHX Text_7346
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7347
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7348
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7349
Lakes

AutoCAD SHX Text_7350
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7351
Holly

AutoCAD SHX Text_7352
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7353
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7354
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_7355
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7356
THORNBROOK WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_7357
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7358
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7359
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7360
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7361
Sunny

AutoCAD SHX Text_7362
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7363
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7364
Sunny

AutoCAD SHX Text_7365
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7366
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7367
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7368
Trent and Mersey Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_7369
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7370
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_7371
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7372
Rookery

AutoCAD SHX Text_7373
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7374
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7375
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7376
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7377
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_7378
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7379
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7380
AUSTEN CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7381
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7382
ARLEY WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7383
MILLBUCK WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_7384
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7385
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7386
STERNE CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7387
CHAUCER GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7388
69b

AutoCAD SHX Text_7389
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7390
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7391
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_7392
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7393
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7394
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7395
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7396
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7397
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_7398
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7399
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7400
Moss Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_7401
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7402
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7403
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7404
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7405
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7406
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_7407
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7408
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7409
Pear Tree Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7410
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7411
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7412
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7413
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7414
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7415
36.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7416
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_7417
Sanderson's Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_7418
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7419
Sanderson's Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_7420
Small Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_7421
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7422
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7423
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7424
MP .75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7425
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_7426
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7427
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7428
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7429
Small Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_7430
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7431
Pipeline

AutoCAD SHX Text_7432
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_7433
Bowfields

AutoCAD SHX Text_7434
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7435
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7436
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7437
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_7438
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7439
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_7440
MP 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7441
New Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7442
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7443
Union Gorse

AutoCAD SHX Text_7444
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7445
Lower Deleacre

AutoCAD SHX Text_7446
45.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7447
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7448
Trent & Mersey Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_7449
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7450
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_7451
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7452
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7453
Bridge House

AutoCAD SHX Text_7454
Gorse

AutoCAD SHX Text_7455
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_7456
Gas Valve Compound

AutoCAD SHX Text_7457
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_7458
Compound

AutoCAD SHX Text_7459
Tetton Bridge Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7460
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7461
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7462
Pipeline

AutoCAD SHX Text_7463
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7464
Gas Valve

AutoCAD SHX Text_7465
MP .25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7466
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_7467
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7468
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_7469
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7470
Swanwillow

AutoCAD SHX Text_7471
Bridge Farm Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_7472
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7473
Towing

AutoCAD SHX Text_7474
Tetton

AutoCAD SHX Text_7475
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7476
BOOTH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7477
TETTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7478
41.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7479
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7480
Small Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_7481
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_7482
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7483
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7484
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7485
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_7486
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7487
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_7488
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_7489
42.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7490
Chy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7491
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7492
Bridge Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7493
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7494
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7495
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7496
Fields Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_7497
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7498
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7499
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7500
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_7501
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7502
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7503
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_7504
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7505
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_7506
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7507
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7508
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7509
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7510
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7511
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7512
Woodville Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7513
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7514
Governor

AutoCAD SHX Text_7515
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7516
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7517
61.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7518
PLANT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7519
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7520
Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text_7521
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7522
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7523
47.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7524
53.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7525
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7526
DRAGON'S LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7527
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7528
Slurry

AutoCAD SHX Text_7529
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7530
Dragon's

AutoCAD SHX Text_7531
Brick Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7532
Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_7533
46.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7534
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7535
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7536
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7537
52.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7538
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7539
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7540
Ivy Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7541
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7542
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7543
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7544
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7545
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7546
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_7547
PLANT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7548
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7549
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7550
Hillcrest

AutoCAD SHX Text_7551
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_7552
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7553
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_7554
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_7555
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7556
Sunnyside

AutoCAD SHX Text_7557
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7558
Salters

AutoCAD SHX Text_7559
OAKWOOD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7560
Yew Tree Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7561
Greenbank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7562
Walnut-tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_7563
Oak

AutoCAD SHX Text_7564
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7565
Oakwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_7566
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7567
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_7568
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7569
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_7570
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7571
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_7572
(Nature Reserve)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7573
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7574
WARMINGHAM LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7575
Laburnum

AutoCAD SHX Text_7576
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7577
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7578
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7579
Hillside

AutoCAD SHX Text_7580
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7581
Hill Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7582
San Rio

AutoCAD SHX Text_7583
Sundown

AutoCAD SHX Text_7584
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7585
Hilary

AutoCAD SHX Text_7586
Sunny Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_7587
Rose

AutoCAD SHX Text_7588
Cartref

AutoCAD SHX Text_7589
Cherry Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7590
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_7591
Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_7592
Ashbank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7593
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7594
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7595
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7596
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_7597
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7598
The Pequa

AutoCAD SHX Text_7599
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7600
Moston Manor

AutoCAD SHX Text_7601
GREEN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7602
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_7603
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7604
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7605
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7606
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7607
The Willows

AutoCAD SHX Text_7608
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7609
Oakdene

AutoCAD SHX Text_7610
Waverley

AutoCAD SHX Text_7611
55.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7612
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_7613
Allandale

AutoCAD SHX Text_7614
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7615
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7616
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7617
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7618
The Moat

AutoCAD SHX Text_7619
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7620
56.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7621
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7622
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_7623
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7624
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7625
Moston Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_7626
Moston House

AutoCAD SHX Text_7627
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_7628
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7629
CRABMILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7630
Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_7631
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7632
Pa-Ne-Ke

AutoCAD SHX Text_7633
Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_7634
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7635
Farm House

AutoCAD SHX Text_7636
46.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7637
Watch Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_7638
43.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7639
Watchlane Flash

AutoCAD SHX Text_7640
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7641
The Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_7642
HALL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7643
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7644
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7645
Moss Dene

AutoCAD SHX Text_7646
Spring Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7647
Elton Golf Driving Range

AutoCAD SHX Text_7648
Moss House Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7649
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7650
Springfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_7651
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7652
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7653
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7654
Flash Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7655
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7656
WATCH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7657
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7658
Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_7659
Fox Heys

AutoCAD SHX Text_7660
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7661
Alfin

AutoCAD SHX Text_7662
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7663
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7664
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7665
Crabmill Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_7666
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7667
WATCH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7668
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_7669
Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_7670
(Nature Reserve)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7671
46.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7672
Ilse Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_7673
Car

AutoCAD SHX Text_7674
44.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7675
Watchlane

AutoCAD SHX Text_7676
44.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7677
4 Lane Ends Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7678
Dallas

AutoCAD SHX Text_7679
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7680
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7681
Aviemore

AutoCAD SHX Text_7682
41.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7683
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7684
44.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7685
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7686
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7687
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7688
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7689
220

AutoCAD SHX Text_7690
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7691
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7692
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7693
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7694
KINGSWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7695
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7696
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7697
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7698
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7699
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7700
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_7701
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7702
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7703
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7704
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7705
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7706
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7707
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7708
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7709
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7710
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7711
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7712
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7713
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7714
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7715
NORTHWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7716
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7717
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7718
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7719
368

AutoCAD SHX Text_7720
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7721
1c

AutoCAD SHX Text_7722
1d

AutoCAD SHX Text_7723
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7724
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7725
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7726
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7727
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7728
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7729
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7730
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7731
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7732
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7733
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7734
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7735
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7736
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7737
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7738
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7739
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7740
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7741
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_7742
Lagoon

AutoCAD SHX Text_7743
242

AutoCAD SHX Text_7744
264

AutoCAD SHX Text_7745
284

AutoCAD SHX Text_7746
356

AutoCAD SHX Text_7747
Sanderson's Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_7748
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7749
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_7750
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7751
ROWAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7752
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7753
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_7754
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7755
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7756
40.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7757
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_7758
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7759
FERNLEIGH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7760
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7761
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7762
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7763
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7764
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7765
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7766
CLEDFORD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7767
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7768
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7769
CHESTERTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_7770
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7771
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7772
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7773
MP .25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7774
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7775
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7776
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7777
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7778
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7779
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7780
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7781
314

AutoCAD SHX Text_7782
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7783
BOOTH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7784
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7785
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7786
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7787
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7788
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7789
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_7790
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7791
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7792
CLEDFORD CRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_7793
COPPICE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7794
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7795
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7796
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7797
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7798
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7799
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7800
Tetton

AutoCAD SHX Text_7801
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7802
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7803
Sports Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_7804
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7805
358

AutoCAD SHX Text_7806
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7807
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7808
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7809
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7810
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7811
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7812
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7813
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7814
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7815
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7816
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7817
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7818
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7819
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7820
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7821
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7822
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7823
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7824
CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7825
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7826
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_7827
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7828
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_7829
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7830
SYCAMORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7831
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_7832
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7833
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7834
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7835
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7836
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_7837
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7838
HUTCHINS' CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7839
354

AutoCAD SHX Text_7840
336

AutoCAD SHX Text_7841
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7842
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7843
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_7844
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7845
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7846
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7847
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7848
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7849
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7850
274

AutoCAD SHX Text_7851
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7852
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_7853
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_7854
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7855
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_7856
SHELLEY CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7857
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7858
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7859
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7860
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7861
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_7862
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7863
254

AutoCAD SHX Text_7864
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7865
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_7866
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_7867
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_7868
190

AutoCAD SHX Text_7869
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7870
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7871
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7872
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7873
SHILTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7874
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7875
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7876
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7877
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7878
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7879
FAULKNER DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7880
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7881
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7882
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7883
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7884
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7885
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7886
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_7887
Rumps Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_7888
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7889
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7890
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7891
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_7892
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7893
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7894
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7895
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7896
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7897
The Dairy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7898
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7899
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7900
230

AutoCAD SHX Text_7901
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7902
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7903
41.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7904
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7905
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7906
294

AutoCAD SHX Text_7907
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7908
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7909
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7910
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7911
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7912
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7913
VENABLES WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_7914
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7915
FAIRACRE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7916
Trent and Mersey Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_7917
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7918
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_7919
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7920
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7921
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7922
Kinderton Arms

AutoCAD SHX Text_7923
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7924
39.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7925
Pipeline

AutoCAD SHX Text_7926
41.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7927
A 533

AutoCAD SHX Text_7928
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7929
Cledford

AutoCAD SHX Text_7930
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_7931
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7932
304

AutoCAD SHX Text_7933
TELFER COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7934
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7935
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7936
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7937
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7938
WOODSTOCK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7939
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7940
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_7941
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7942
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_7943
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_7944
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7945
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7946
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7947
324

AutoCAD SHX Text_7948
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7949
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7950
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7951
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_7952
50.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7953
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7954
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7955
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7956
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_7957
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7958
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7959
Tetton Hall Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_7960
46.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7961
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7962
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7963
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7964
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7965
46.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7966
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7967
Caravan Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_7968
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7969
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7970
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7971
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7972
Tetton Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7973
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_7974
Tetton

AutoCAD SHX Text_7975
TETTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7976
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7977
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7978
BOOTH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7979
51.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7980
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7981
46.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7982
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_7983
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7984
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7985
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7986
53.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7987
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7988
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7989
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7990
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7991
Slurry Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_7992
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7993
Denmar

AutoCAD SHX Text_7994
53.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7995
50.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7996
Kingfisher

AutoCAD SHX Text_7997
50.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7998
WHITE HALL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7999
50.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8000
DRAGON'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_8001
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8002
FORGE MILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8003
Slurry Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_8004
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8005
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8006
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8007
50.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8008
TETTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_8009
50.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8010
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8011
Holly House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8012
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8013
Fields Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8014
52.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8015
Sparrowgrove

AutoCAD SHX Text_8016
Westfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_8017
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8018
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8019
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8020
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8021
54.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8022
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_8023
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8024
Withinstreet Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8025
Oak House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8026
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8027
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8028
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8029
49.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8030
47.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8031
GREEN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8032
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8033
Silver Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_8034
Avondale

AutoCAD SHX Text_8035
Acre

AutoCAD SHX Text_8036
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8037
Corner Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8038
CRABMILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8039
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8040
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8041
Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_8042
Avalon

AutoCAD SHX Text_8043
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_8044
The Crofts

AutoCAD SHX Text_8045
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8046
WHITE HALL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8047
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8048
SCHOOL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8049
49.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8050
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8051
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8052
46.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8053
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8054
White Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_8055
Ryecroft Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8056
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_8057
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_8058
Tithe

AutoCAD SHX Text_8059
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_8060
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_8061
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_8062
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8063
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8064
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8065
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8066
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8067
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8068
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8069
River Wheelock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8070
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_8071
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8072
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8073
Warmingham C of E

AutoCAD SHX Text_8074
Rectory Gates

AutoCAD SHX Text_8075
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8076
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8077
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8078
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8079
Lionspaw

AutoCAD SHX Text_8080
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8081
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8082
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8083
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_8084
School House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8085
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8086
Crabmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_8087
Keepers Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8088
River

AutoCAD SHX Text_8089
WARMINGHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8090
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_8091
47.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8092
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8093
46.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8094
46.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8095
Flash

AutoCAD SHX Text_8096
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_8097
Crabmill Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8098
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8099
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8100
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8101
45.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8102
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8103
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8104
43.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8105
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8106
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8107
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8108
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8109
Wheelock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8110
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8111
Limerick Hill Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8112
(Pond)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8113
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_8114
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_8115
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8116
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8117
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8118
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8119
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8120
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8121
MILTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_8122
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8123
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8124
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_8125
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8126
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8127
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8128
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8129
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8130
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8131
BUNBURY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8132
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8133
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8134
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8135
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8136
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8137
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8138
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_8139
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8140
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8141
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8142
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8143
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_8144
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8145
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8146
FALCON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8147
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_8148
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8149
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8150
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8151
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8152
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_8153
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8154
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8155
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8156
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_8157
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_8158
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_8159
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8160
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8161
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8162
CHADWICK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8163
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8164
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8165
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8166
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8167
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8168
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_8169
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_8170
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8171
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8172
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8173
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8174
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8175
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8176
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_8177
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8178
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8179
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8180
MOSS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8181
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_8182
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8183
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8184
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8185
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8186
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8187
ALLGREAVE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8188
ASHMORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8189
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_8190
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8191
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8192
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8193
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8194
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8195
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8196
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8197
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8198
BOSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_8199
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8200
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8201
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8202
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8203
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_8204
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8205
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8206
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_8207
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_8208
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8209
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_8210
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8211
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8212
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_8213
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8214
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_8215
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8216
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8217
WHITEGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8218
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8219
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8220
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8221
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8222
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8223
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8224
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8225
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8226
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8227
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8228
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8229
TYTHERINGTON CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_8230
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8231
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_8232
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8233
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_8234
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8235
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8236
WARMINGHAM LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8237
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8238
The Turnpike

AutoCAD SHX Text_8239
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8240
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8241
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8242
ALDINGTON DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_8243
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8244
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8245
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8246
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8247
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8248
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8249
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8250
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8251
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8252
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_8253
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8254
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_8255
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8256
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8257
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8258
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_8259
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8260
TARVIN CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_8261
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8262
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_8263
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8264
Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_8265
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8266
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8267
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8268
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8269
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8270
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8271
STEELE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8272
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8273
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_8274
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8275
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8276
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_8277
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8278
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8279
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8280
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8281
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8282
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_8283
BROXTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8284
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8285
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8286
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8287
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8288
GORSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_8289
BLACKWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_8290
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_8291
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8292
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8293
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_8294
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8295
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_8296
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8297
Sutton Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_8298
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8299
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8300
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8301
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8302
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8303
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8304
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8305
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8306
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_8307
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8308
DAVENHAM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_8309
Sports Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_8310
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_8311
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8312
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8313
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8314
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_8315
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_8316
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8317
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8318
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_8319
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8320
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_8321
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_8322
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8323
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8324
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8325
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8326
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8327
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8328
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8329
Sutton

AutoCAD SHX Text_8330
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_8331
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8332
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8333
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8334
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8335
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8336
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8337
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_8338
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8339
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8340
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8341
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8342
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8343
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8344
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8345
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8346
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8347
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8348
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8349
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_8350
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8351
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8352
Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text_8353
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_8354
27a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8355
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8356
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8357
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8358
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8359
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8360
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8361
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_8362
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8363
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8364
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8365
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8366
ALEXANDRA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8367
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8368
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8369
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_8370
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8371
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8372
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8373
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8374
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8375
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8376
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_8377
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8378
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_8379
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8380
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8381
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8382
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_8383
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_8384
Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_8385
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8386
182a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8387
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8388
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8389
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8390
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8391
HANKELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_8392
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8393
29a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8394
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8395
OSPREY CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_8396
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8397
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8398
31a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8399
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8400
79a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8401
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8402
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8403
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_8404
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_8405
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8406
WHITEMORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8407
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_8408
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8409
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8410
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8411
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8412
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_8413
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8414
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8415
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8416
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8417
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8418
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8419
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8420
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8421
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8422
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8423
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8424
NIGHTINGALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8425
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8426
LIVINGSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8427
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8428
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8429
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8430
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8431
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8432
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8433
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8434
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_8435
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_8436
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8437
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8438
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8439
River Wheelock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8440
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8441
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8442
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8443
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8444
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8445
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8446
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8447
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_8448
INGLEWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8449
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8450
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8451
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8452
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8453
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_8454
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8455
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_8456
77a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8457
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_8458
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8459
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8460
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8461
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8462
PRINCESS CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8463
REDSHAW

AutoCAD SHX Text_8464
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8465
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_8466
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8467
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8468
BYRON

AutoCAD SHX Text_8469
184

AutoCAD SHX Text_8470
45.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8471
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8472
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_8473
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8474
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8475
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8476
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8477
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8478
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8479
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8480
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8481
ASHTON CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_8482
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8483
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8484
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8485
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8486
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8487
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8488
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8489
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8490
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8491
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_8492
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8493
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8494
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8495
LISTER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8496
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8497
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8498
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8499
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8500
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_8501
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8502
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_8503
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8504
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8505
KESTREL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8506
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_8507
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8508
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8509
WORLESTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_8510
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8511
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8512
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8513
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_8514
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8515
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8516
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8517
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_8518
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8519
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8520
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_8521
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8522
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_8523
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8524
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8525
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8526
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8527
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8528
CROSS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8529
WOODEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_8530
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8531
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8532
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8533
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8534
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8535
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_8536
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8537
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8538
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8539
Chadwick

AutoCAD SHX Text_8540
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8541
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8542
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8543
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8544
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8545
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8546
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8547
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8548
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8549
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8550
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8551
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8552
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8553
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8554
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_8555
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8556
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8557
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8558
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_8559
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8560
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8561
HEATON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8562
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8563
EARDSWICK

AutoCAD SHX Text_8564
Middlewich Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_8565
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_8566
GEORGE VI AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8567
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8568
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8569
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8570
CORONATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8571
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8572
BEESTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8573
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8574
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_8575
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8576
SUTTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8577
GEORGE VI

AutoCAD SHX Text_8578
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8579
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8580
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8581
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8582
ALEXANDRA RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8583
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8584
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8585
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_8586
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8587
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8588
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_8589
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8590
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8591
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8592
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8593
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8594
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8595
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8596
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8597
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_8598
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8599
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8600
WARMINGHAM LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8601
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8602
Pipe Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_8603
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8604
50.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8605
West Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8606
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8607
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_8608
River Wheelock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8609
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8610
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8611
Pettywood Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8612
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8613
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8614
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8615
Forge Mill Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8616
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8617
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_8618
50.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8619
River

AutoCAD SHX Text_8620
43.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8621
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8622
The Home Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8623
50.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8624
Forge

AutoCAD SHX Text_8625
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8626
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8627
36.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8628
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8629
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8630
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_8631
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8632
Wheelock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8633
WARMINGHAM LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8634
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8635
50.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8636
Hoggins Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_8637
Forge Bank Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8638
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8639
FORGE MILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8640
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8641
Mill Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_8642
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8643
Church Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8644
The Bear's Paw Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_8645
Mill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8646
(remains of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8647
SCHOOL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8648
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8649
39.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8650
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8651
Cross

AutoCAD SHX Text_8652
46.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8653
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8654
The Limes

AutoCAD SHX Text_8655
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8656
Five Elms

AutoCAD SHX Text_8657
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8658
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8659
49.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8660
Warmingham

AutoCAD SHX Text_8661
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_8662
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_8663
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8664
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8665
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_8666
Warmingham

AutoCAD SHX Text_8667
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_8668
Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_8669
St Leonards Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_8670
Island House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8671
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8672
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_8673
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8674
Earthwork

AutoCAD SHX Text_8675
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_8676
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_8677
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_8678
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_8679
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8680
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8681
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_8682
37.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8683
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8684
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_8685
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8686
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8687
49.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8688
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8689
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8690
Hill Top

AutoCAD SHX Text_8691
Hill Top Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8692
River Wheelock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8693
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8694
Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_8695
Warmingham

AutoCAD SHX Text_8696
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8697
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8698
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_8699
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_8700
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8701
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8702
50.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8703
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8704
Pump House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8705
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8706
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8707
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8708
Church House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8709
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8710
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8711
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8712
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8713
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8714
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8715
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_8716
WARMINGHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8717
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_8718
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8719
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8720
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8721
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_8722
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8723
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8724
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8725
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8726
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8727
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8728
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_8729
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8730
50.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8731
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8732
Ridding Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8733
Pond



This page is intentionally left blank



Highways and Transport Committee 
Work Programme 2023-24 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Report 
Reference 

Highways & 
Transport 
Committee 

Title Purpose of Report Lead Officer 

Consultation 
and 

Engagement 
Process and 

Timeline 

Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 

Corporate 
Plan Priority 

Part of 
Budget and 

Policy 
Framework 

Exempt 
Item and 

Paragraph 
Number 

HT/44/22-23 21/09/2023 Middlewich Eastern Bypass 
- Approval to submit Full 
Business Case 

To approve the full business for the 
scheme for submission to DfT 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

 

No No Green No No 

HTC/05/23-
24 

21/09/2023 Winter Maintenance 
2022/23: End of Season 
Review 

Update Committee on the 2022/23 winter 
maintenance season and outcome of 
annual review. To include approval for 
any changes to winter maintenance 
routes as a result of the annual review. 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

No No Open Yes No 

HTC/14/23-
24 

21/09/2023 EV Charging Infrastructure 
- Programme Update 

report will provide an update on the 2 
grant-funded programmes for local EV 
charging infrastructure - namely the On 
Street Residential Charging programme 
and the new Local EV Charging 
Infrastructure (LEVI) programme. The 
report will seek endorsement of our 
Expression of Interest for the LEVI 
funding 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

No Yes Green Yes No 

HT/26/21-22 23/11/2023 Flowerpot Junction 
Improvement Scheme  

Authorise to make Compulsory Purchase 
Orders and Side Roads Orders for the 
delivery of the Flowerpot Junction 
Improvement Scheme. 
 
Approve the forward funding of the 
additional developer contributions in 
accordance with the capital programme 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

No No Green Yes Yes 

HTC/06/23-
25 

23/11/2023 Pedestrian Crossings 
(Uncontrolled and 
Controlled) Policy 

To seek approval for highways to consult 
on a draft pedestrian crossings 
(uncontrolled and controlled) 
policy/strategy allowing further informed 
development following the consultation 
with a view to bringing an updated 
policy/strategy to the Highways and 
Transport Committee in late spring 2024 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

Yes No Open Yes No 

P
age 125

A
genda Item

 8



Highways and Transport Committee 
Work Programme 2023-24 

 

OFFICIAL 

HTC/15/23-
24 

23/11/2023 Engine idling enforcement - 
business case 

To advise committee of the outcomes of 
work to assess the business case for the 
Council to adopt powers to enforce 
against engine-idling under provisions in 
the Road Traffic (Vehicle Emissions) 
(Fixed Penalty) (England) Regulations 
2002. 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

No Yes Green No No 

HTC/16/23-
24 

23/11/2023 Local Bus Support Criteria 
- Consultation Outcomes 

To recommend to committee changes in 
the Council adopted criteria for 
supporting (subsidising) local bus 
services, following public consultation. 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

 

Yes Yes Green Yes No 

HTC/21/23-
24 

23/11/2023 Second Financial Review 
of 2023/24 (Highways and 
Transport Committee) 

This report outlines how the Council is 
managing resources to provide value for 
money services during the 2023/24 
financial year. The purpose of the report 
is to note and comment on the Second 
Financial Review and Performance 
position of 2023/24 and approve 
Supplementary Estimates and Virements. 

 
 

Director of 
Finance and 

Customer 
Services 

No No Open Yes No 

HTC/24/23-
24 

23/11/2023 Medium Term Financial 
Strategy Consultation 
2024/25 - 2027/28 
(Highways & Transport 
Committee) 

All Committees were being asked to 
provide feedback in relation to their 
financial responsibilities as identified 
within the Constitution and linked to the 
budget alignment approved by the 
Finance Sub-Committee in March 2023. 
Responses to the consultation would be 
reported to the Corporate Policy 
Committee to support that Committee in 
making recommendations to Council on 
changes to the current financial strategy. 

 
 

Director of 
Finance and 

Customer 
Services Yes No Open Yes No 

HTC/26/23-
24 

23/11/2023 Notice of Motion: Access to 
the National Parking 
Platform 

To respond to the Notice of Motion 
proposed at Council on 19 July 2023. 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

 

No No Green No No 

P
age 126



Highways and Transport Committee 
Work Programme 2023-24 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
23/11/2023 Cheshire East HS2 

Programme Update 
To provide the Highways and Transport 
Committee with an update on the HS2 
programme and key endorsements of 
recent work undertaken by the Council or 
third parties, including: 
 - An update on the HS2 Phase 2b 
assurance secured in March 2023 and 
the work that has been undertaken post- 
petition withdrawal 
 - An update on the second additional 
provision, AP2, and to endorse the 
Council's petition 
 - An update on the Crewe Hub 
commitments offered by DfT through 
petitioning of the Hybrid Bill and 
endorsement of any key outputs from this 
work 
 - An update on the work being 
undertaken to utilise the HS2 Phase 2a 
Road Safety Fund and endorsement of 
any schemes being proposed through 
this fund 
 - To endorse the proposed alternative 
active travel solution to connect Crewe 
Railway Station to Pedley Street and 
connect to the Mill Street Corridor 
Scheme 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

N/A No Open; Green No No 

HTC/27/23-
24 

23/11/2023 Response to the petition to 
install a pedestrian cross 
on The Hill, Sandbach 

To respond to the petition received to 
install a pedestrian crossing on The Hill, 
Sandbach.  The petition has over 5000 
signatures and is referred to the 
Highways and Transport Committee as 
per the petition procedure. 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

TBC Yes Open TBC No 

HTC/07/23-
24 

25/01/2024 Highways and 
Infrastructure: 2023/24 Mid 
Year Review 

Update Committee on performance and 
activity across the Highways and 
Infrastructure directorate for 2023/24 
(Quarter 1 and 2) 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

No No Open Yes No 

HTC/08/23-
24 

25/01/2024 Lead Local Flood Authority: 
2023/24 Annual Review 

Update Committee on performance and 
activity relating to the Council's 
responsibility as Lead Local Flood 
Authority for 2023/24 (Quarter 1 and 2) 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

No No Open Yes No 

P
age 127



Highways and Transport Committee 
Work Programme 2023-24 

 

OFFICIAL 

HTC/09/23-
24 

25/01/2024 Tree Planting and Verge 
Maintenance (Nature 
Based Approach) Policy 

To seek approval for highways to adopt a 
tree planting and verge maintenance 
policy to allow its implementation from 
2023/24 onwards. 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

Yes No Open; Green Yes No 

HTC/17/23-
24 

25/01/2024 Moving Traffic Offences - 
Local Authority 
Enforcement 

To inform committee of the opportunity 
for the local highway authority to adopt 
powers for enforcement of a limited 
number of moving traffic offences under 
provisions in the Traffic Management Act 
2004 (Section 8). The report will seek a 
decision on how to proceed based upon 
a review of the business case and policy 
implications for Cheshire East Council. 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

Yes Yes Green No No 

HTC/18/23-
24 

25/01/2024 Parking Review 
Implementation Plan 

This report seeks a decision to implement 
outcomes of the boroughwide review of 
Cheshire East Council car parks, in 
accordance with measures defined in the 
adopted Medium Term Financial Strategy 
and taking account of the outcomes of 
public consultation on proposals relating 
to both on-street and off-street parking 
provision. 

Director of 
Highways and 
Infrastructure 

Yes Yes Green Yes No 

HTC/20/23-
24 

25/01/2024 Third Financial Review of 
2023/24 (Highways & 
Transport Committee) 

This report outlines how the Council is 
managing resources to provide value for 
money services during the 2023/24 
financial year. The purpose of the report 
is to note and comment on the Third 
Financial Review and Performance 
position of 2023/24 and approve 
Supplementary Estimates and Virements. 

Director of 
Finance and 

Customer 
Services 

No No Open Yes No 

HTC/25/23-
24 

25/01/2024 Medium Term Financial 
Strategy Consultation 
2024/25 - 2027/28 
Provisional Settlement 
Update (Highways & 
Transport Committee) 

All Committees were being asked to 
provide feedback in relation to their 
financial responsibilities as identified 
within the Constitution and linked to the 
budget alignment approved by the 
Finance Sub-Committee in March 2023. 
Responses to the consultation would be 
reported to the Corporate Policy 
Committee to support that Committee in 
making recommendations to Council on 
changes to the current financial strategy. 

Director of 
Finance and 

Customer 
Services 

Yes No Open Yes No 

 

P
age 128


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Winter 2022/23 End of Season Review
	6 Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Programme - Update
	7 Middlewich Eastern Bypass - Submission of a Full Business Case to the Department for Transport
	Appendix 1 Middlewich Eastern Bypass - Full Business Case_draft
	Appendix 2 - Scheme Plan
	Sheets and Views
	BRJ10403-H-SK-004-GENERAL_ARRANGEMENT_POTRAIT



	8 Work Programme

